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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Bf#5#L &

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY AFEHRBRE
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
HK$ million  HK$ million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million HKS million
BEBTL BEBTL BEBTL BEBT BEET
Revenue - Continuing EEE-REXD
operations
Restaurant, food and BE - REHKEE
hotel 348 424 475 517 580
Property investment ERE RER
and development 47 267 85 96 113
395 691 560 613 693
Profit Attributable to (SYNCIE Z=DN
Owners of the Parent e a F 337 229 173 400 163
Basic Earnings GREXRERN (1)
per Share (cents) 45.18 21.62 15.13 34.93 14.26
Net Assets BEFHE 1,403 2,830 2,999 3,293 3,473
Total Assets BEE 2,338 4,241 4,554 5,107 5,652

Analysis of Revenue -

Analysis of Profit
Attributable to Shareholders
Fi% 3R PE 4l & ) 5 A

Continuing Operations

EREIN — FEEH

HK$ million HK$ million
B EET BEEHET
700 450
400
600
350
500
300
400 250
300 200 —
150
200 ———
100
100
50
0 0
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 5 #



CORPORATE INFORMATION ‘A &]& #}

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

MA, Kai Cheung, pPhD, SBs, 8BS (Chairman)
MA, Kai Yum, PhD (Vice Chairman)

NG, Yan Kwong

MA, Hung Ming, John, PhD, BBS

YUEN, Wai Man

Independent Non-Executive Directors

LO, Ming Chi, Charles, Jsr
LO, Man Kit, Sam
WONG, See King

AUDIT COMMITTEE

LO, Ming Chi, Charles, sp (Chairman)
LO, Man Kit, Sam
WONG, See King

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

LO, Man Kit, Sam (Chairman)
LO, Ming Chi, Charles, Jr
WONG, See King

COMPANY SECRETARY

NG, Yan Kwong
REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon's Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACES OF
BUSINESS

26/F Phase Il Wyler Centre
200 Tai Lin Pai Road

Kwai Chung

New Territories

Hong Kong

5/F Carrianna Friendship Square
2002 Renminnan Road

Lo Wu District

Shenzhen

China
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CORPORATE INFORMATION ‘A &1& £}

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARS AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

HSBC Bank Bermuda Limited
6 Front Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRARS AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
26/F, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

SOLICITORS

King & Wood
King & Company

LEGAL ADVISERS ON BERMUDA LAW

Appleby

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Wing Hang Bank Limited

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.taksing.com.hk
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &S5

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present
to you the Annual Report of Tak Sing Alliance Holdings
Limited for the financial year ended 31 March 2011.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group's turnover
was HK$692,840,000 (2010: HK$613,180,000), increased
by 13% from last year. The Group's profit attributable to
shareholders was HK$163,209,000 (2010: HK$399,695,000),
reduced by 59% from last year. The reason for the decrease
in profit was that in last year, the listing of China South City
Holdings Limited in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange resulted
in a non-recurring profit of HK$330 million. Excluding the
effect of this special profit, profit attributable to shareholders
was 136% higher than last year. The Group's two operating
segments, namely property and hotel, restaurant and food,
both recorded satisfactory growth in turnover as well as
operating profit.

DIVIDEND

The Directors have recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK2 cents per share for the year ended 31 March
2011.

PROPERTY

Turnover for property for the year was HK$113,157,000
(2010: HK$95,818,000), higher than last year by 18%.
Excluding the effect of China South City listing non-recurring
profit and gain from changes in fair value of investment
properties, segment profit was HK$79,738,000 (2010:
HK$51,691,000), increased by 54% from last year. Rental
income for the year increased by 12% to HK$58,840,000
while property sales revenue increased by 25% to
HK$54,317,000. During the year, the Group’s two shopping
malls in Shenzhen, Carrianna Friendship Square and Imperial
Palace, recorded increase in both occupancy rate and rental
rate. Together with other investment properties in Shenzhen
and Hong Kong, these properties provide stable and growing
rental income to the Group.

$/\q§ﬁi€§$A A = A7) & i B 3R R
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KR
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT /&S5

Property sales revenue recorded in last year mainly came
from sales of remaining properties of phase 1 of Grand
Lake City project in Yiyang city of Hunan Province. The
construction of the last two high rise lake side residential
buildings of phase 1 with gross floor area of 27,000M? had
been completed. After completion of various government
inspection procedures, the residential units will be hand over
to buyers in the third quarter of 2011. During the year, over
90% of the two buildings were sold with sales revenue of
approximately HK$100 million. These sales will be recorded
as income in the coming financial year in accordance with
relevant accounting standard. On the other hand, the
construction of Grand Lake City phase 2 development
comprising 160,000M?2, 6 high rise lake view residential
buildings and a shopping mall has been started and is
expected to be completed in two stages by year end of 2012
and 2013 respectively.

During the year, construction of the logistic and commercial
project, China East City, in Lianyungang of Jiangsu province
had been started. Phase 1 of the project comprises
160,000M? of leather and construction material wholesale
markets. The construction will be completed in two stages
by year end of 2011 and mid year of 2012. In June 2011,
100,000M? of the shops in the market was launched for
sales. Within two weeks, over 50% with revenue exceeding
HK$300 million has been sold. These sales will be recorded
as income in the coming financial year.

The Group’s 50% interest associated company, South China
International Purchasing Exchange Limited, had paid all
land cost of RMB410 million and obtained land certificates
for the commercial project in Dongguan city. The land
was approximately 80,000M? with total floor area over
300,000M2. The project is under construction planning stage
and is expected to start construction by the end of 2011.

Looking forward for the coming year, with sales already
completed in Grand Lake City and China East City of
approximately HK$400 million and the stable and growing
rental income from investment properties, segment result for
property is expected to show substantial improvement.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 43R
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &S5

Hotel, Restaurant and Food

Turnover for hotel, restaurant and food division for the year
was HK$579,683,000 (2010: HK$517,362,000), increased
by 12% from last year. Segment profit was HK$110,983,000
(2010: HK$74,059,000), increased significantly by 50%.
Growth in turnover and profit was mainly attributable to
food business. The increase in production capacity and
production cost efficiency of the Hainan food factory is the
main reason for the significant growth in food sales and
profit.

For restaurant business, most restaurants recorded growth
during the year despite fierce competition. Hong Kong and
Hainan restaurants recorded highest growth in turnover.
Operating profit for restaurants was about the same as last
year due to significant increase in human resources as well
as food costs which offset the growth in revenue. For hotels,
turnover and operating results were both better than last
year. The improvement in Carrianna Yiyang International
Hotel in Hunan province was more notable than Carrianna
Hotel in Foshan, Guangdong.

For the coming year, the Group will further expand the
Hainan food factory. Together with the production in
Kunming food factory, food business is expected to continue
its growth. For hotel and restaurants, human resources and
food costs are expected to further increase in the coming
year, management will work hard to control cost and
improve service in order to achieve growth in revenue and
operating profit under fierce competition environment.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to extend my
appreciation to the Board of Directors, our management
team and staff for their support and dedication to the Group
and to our shareholders, customers, suppliers and other
business partners for their unfailing support.

Dr. Ma Kai Cheung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2011
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DIRECTOR AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES EEN SR ETE A BSFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MA Kai Cheung, rrp, s8s, 88s, aged 69, is the Chairman
and founder of the Group. Mr. Ma has more than 40 years’
experience in the garment distribution and manufacturing
business, over 20 and 10 years’ experience in the restaurant
business and property development respectively. He
is responsible for the strategic planning and business
development of the Group. He is a committee member of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He
is the President of Shenzhen Overseas Chinese International
Association. Mr. Ma also serves as President of Federation
of Hong Kong Guangdong Community Organisations,
Permanent Honorary President of Federation of Hong Kong
Chiu Chow Community Organizations, Permanent Honorary
President of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce
Limited and President of Hong Kong & Kowloon Chiu Chow
Public Association. Mr. Ma is a brother of Mr. Ma Kai Yum.

MA Kai Yum, rnp, aged 60, is Vice Chairman and
Managing Director of the Group. He has been a Director of
the Group since 1984 and has over 30 years’ experience in
the garment business. Mr. Ma is responsible for the daily
operations and administration and, together with Mr. Ma Kai
Cheung, for the strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Ma is
a member of Guangdong Provincial Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference and also serves
as a Director of the Chinese Manufacturers Association of
Hong Kong, Vice President of Hong Kong & Kowloon Chiu
Chow Public Association. Mr. Ma is a brother of Mr. Ma Kai
Cheung.

NG Yan Kwong, aged 50, is Executive Director, Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Group since
2000. He holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Commerce of the
University of Newcastle in Australia and is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the CPA Australia. Before joining the Group, Mr. Ng was
the finance director of a US beverage company operating in
Mainland China. Mr. Ng has more than 10 years corporate
and financial management experience with multinational
consumer product companies in South East Asia and Greater
China region. He also has substantial working experience
in public accountancy practice with a major international
accounting firm.
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DIRECTOR AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES EEN SR ETE A BSFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

MA Hung Ming, John, rnp, 88s, aged 44, has been the
Managing Director of Carrianna Holdings Limited since
26th April 2002. Mr. Ma joined the Group in 1990 and is
currently responsible for the Group’s property development
operations. He has extensive experience in the catering
industry, as well as property management and development.
Mr. Ma was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) from
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in 2003 and a Honorary Doctorate of Philosophy
degree by Morrison University in 2004. Mr. Ma was the
Chairman of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals for the year 2002.
He is a member of the Standing Committee of Shenzhen
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and a Director of Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce Ltd. He is the son of Mr. Ma Kai
Cheung, the Chairman and an executive director of the
Company.

YUEN Wai Man, aged 51, is the general manager of the
Group’s Carrianna brand restaurants in the PRC. He has
been serving the Group since 1991. Mr. Yuen has about 30
years' experience in restaurant operations and the catering
industry.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LO Ming Chi, Charles, /r, aged 61, joined the Group in
1991. Mr. Lo is a member of the CPA Australia and fellow
of the Financial Services Institute of Australasia. Mr. Lo is
an executive director and Chief Executive Officer of China
Tycoon Beverage Holdings Limited (formerly known as Sewco
International Holdings Limited). He is an executive director
and Chief Executive Officer of New lIsland Printing Holdings
Limited. He is also an independent non-executive director
of New Environmental Energy Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Hembly International Holdings Limited) and Cash
Financial Services Group Limited. He was Deputy Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of Poly Development Holdings
Limited from 7 December 2000 to 19 November 2009. He
was an Executive Director of New Century Group Hong Kong
Limited from 29 March 1999 to 1 February 2009 and Sun
Innovation Holdings Limited from 21 July 2009 to 1 March
2010. All of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. He has more than 20 years of professional and
business experience in financial and investment services in
Australia, Hong Kong and other Asian countries.
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DIRECTOR AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES EE N SETE A BREFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)

LO Man Kit, Sam, aged 50, joined the Group in July 2004.
Mr. Lo is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and a consultant
of Messrs. C.C. Lee & Co.. He has over 20 years of extensive
experience in the areas of conveyancing, banking and
commercial law. He is also admitted as solicitor in England
and Singapore.

WONG See King, aged 50, joined the Group in August
2007. Mr. Wong is currently a Chief Financial Officer of
HAGER Asia Limited, a subsidiary of the HAGER Group which
is a US market leader of building hardware products and is
engaging in a joint venture in the People’s Republic of China
("China”) to manufacture mainly hinge hardware products.
Mr. Wong had also worked as financial and business
executive in various Australian, UK and US multi-national
companies. He has over 15 years’ of working experience
in the corporate finance, building hardware, FMCG
manufacturing and distribution business in Hong Kong and
China and property development business in Australia. He
holds a bachelor’s degree in Economics from Macquarie
University (Australia) and is a member of the Australian
Society of CPAs.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MA Hung Man, Raymond, aged 35, is the Vice President
of China East International Materials City. Mr. Ma graduated
from the University of California, Davis with a Bachelor
of Science Degree in Civil Engineering and he holds a
Professional Engineer license in Civil Engineering in USA.
He has substantial experience in structural engineering,
construction management and property development. He is
the son of Mr. Ma Kai Cheung.

YAU So Kan, aged 40, is General Manager of the
Carrianna Hotel in Foshan, PRC. She has been serving
the Group since 2004. Ms. Yau has formed an effective
management team in hotel management since the Company
took over the management of Carrianna Hotel. Ms. Yau
has about 10 years' experience in hotel management and
operation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 of The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) which became effective on 1 January 2005. The
corporate governance principles of the Company emphasis a
quality board of directors, sound internal control, principles
and practices and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Company has complied
with the Code throughout the accounting period covered by
this report, except for deviation in respect of the separation
of the roles of chairman and chief executive officer.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code for securities transactions by Directors of the Company.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard under the Model Code throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
currently comprises eight Directors and its composition is as
follows:

Executive Directors

Ma Kai Cheung (Chairman)
Ma Kai Yum (Vice Chairman)
Ng Yan Kwong

Ma Hung Ming, John

Yuen Wai Man

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Lo Ming Chi, Charles
Lo Man Kit, Sam
Wong See King

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in
the "Director and Senior Management’'s Biographies” on
pages 8 to 10 of this report.

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure
that it has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience
which can meet the requirements of the business of the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Responsibility of Directors

The Board is responsible for ensuring continuity of
leadership, development of sound business strategies,
availability of adequate capital and managerial resources
to implement the business strategies adopted, adequacy of
systems of financial and internal controls and conduct of
business in conformity with applicable laws and regulations.
All Directors have made full and active contribution to the
affairs of the Board and the Board has always acted in the
best interests of the Group.

The Executive Directors and senior management are
delegated with respective levels of authorities with regard
to key corporate strategy and policy and contractual
commitments. Management is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group with divisional heads responsible for
different aspects of the business.

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements. The Company has adopted the generally
accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong in preparing
the financial statements, appropriate accounting policies
have been adopted and applied consistently, and reasonable
and prudent judgement and estimates have been made. The
publication of the financial statements of the Group is also in
a timely manner.

The Board has reviewed the financial projections of
the Group and the Board is not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. Accordingly, the Board has continued
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

Board Meetings

During the year, the Board met regularly and held eight
meetings. The attendance record, on a named basis, at these
meetings is set out in the table on page 18 of this report.

Regular board meetings are scheduled in advance
to facilitate all directors’ attendance. Regular board
meetings are scheduled to be held four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. At least 14 days’ notice
of a board meeting is given to all directors who are given
an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the
agenda. If potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or a director arises, the matter is discussed
in a physical meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by
written resolution. The directors attend meetings in persons
or through other means of electronic communication in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meetings (continued)

Board papers are circulated approximately three days before
the board meetings to enable the directors to make informed
decisions on matters to be raised. The Company Secretary
assists the chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings
and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are
complied with. The Company Secretary shall attend all
regular board meetings to advise on corporate governance,
statutory compliance, accounting and financial matters when
necessary. Directors shall have full access to information on
the Group and are able to obtain independent professional
advice whenever deemed necessary by the directors. The
Company Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep records
of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all board
meetings.

Each newly-appointed director will be provided with a
package of orientation materials setting out the duties and
responsibilities of directors under the Listing Rules, related
ordinances and relevant regulatory requirements of Hong
Kong. Updates are provided to directors when necessary to
ensure that directors are aware of the latest changes in the
commercial and regulatory environment in which the Group
conducts its business.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

Up to the date of this report, the Board has not appointed an
individual to the post of chief executive officer. The roles of
the chief executive officer have been performed collectively
by all the executive directors, including the chairman, of the
Company. The Board considers that this arrangement allows
contributions from all executive directors with different
expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the Company’s
policies and strategies.

Going forward, the Board will periodically review the
effectiveness of this arrangement and considers appointing
an individual to becoming a chief executive officer when it
thinks appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1 EYS

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

(continued)

One of the important roles of the Chairman is to provide
leadership to the Board to ensure that the Board always acts
in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman shall ensure
that the Board works effectively and fully discharges its
responsibilities, and that all key issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely manner. All directors have been consulted
about any matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda.
With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman
seeks to ensure that all directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at any board meeting and have received
adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors provide a wide range of
expertise and experience as well as checks and balances to
safeguard the interests of the Group and its shareholders.
Their participation in the board and committee meetings
brings independent judgement on issues relating to the
Group's strategy, performance, conflicts of interest and
management process to ensure that the interests of all
shareholders of the Company have been duly considered.

The non-executive directors of the Company have been
appointed for a term subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. According
to Bye-law 102(A) of the Bye-laws of the Company,
director appointed to fill any casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the next annual general meeting after
their appointment and shall be subject to re-election by the
shareholders of the Company. According to Bye-law 99 of
the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation (except
Chairman or Managing Director) and shall be eligible for re-
election at each annual general meeting.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has three independent non-executive directors
representing more than one-third of the Board. More
than one of the independent non-executive directors have
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Board
confirms that the Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors an annual confirmation
of his independence and considers that all the independent
non-executive directors are independent under the guidelines
set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee was established on 1 April
2005 and currently comprises three independent non-
executive directors and its composition is as follows:

Lo Man Kit, Sam (Chairman)
Lo Ming Chi, Charles
Wong See King

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting. The attendance record, on a named basis, at this
meeting is set out in the table on page 18 of this report.

The objectives of the Remuneration Committee are to
establish and maintain an appropriate and competitive level
of remuneration to attract, retain and motivate directors
and key executives to run the Company successfully. The
Remuneration Committee also ensures that the remuneration
policies and systems of the Group support the Group’'s
objectives and strategies. The Committee is provided with
other resources enabling it to discharge its duties fully. A set
of written terms of reference, which described the authority
and duties of the Remuneration Committee, was adopted by
the Board on 1 April 2005 and the contents of which are in
compliance with the code provisions of the Code.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are as follows:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration;

(b) to have the delegated responsibility to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management, including benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the board of the remuneration
of non-executive directors. The remuneration
committee should consider factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1 EYS

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(c) to review and approve performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time;

(d) to review and approve compensation payable to
executive directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair and
not excessive for the Company;

(e) to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that such arrangements are
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that any compensation payment is otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

(f)  to ensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration and that, as
regards the remuneration of a non-executive director
who is a member of the Committee, his remuneration
should be determined by the other members of the
Committee; and

(g) to advise shareholders of the Company on how to vote
with respect to any service contracts of directors that
require shareholders’ approval under Rule 13.68 of
Listing Rules.

During the year 2011, the Remuneration Committee made
recommendations to the Board on executive directors’
remuneration packages and terms of employment. The
Committee also formulated and evaluated the remuneration
policy and structure for the directors and senior management
of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has not set up a nomination committee in
relation to the appointment of directors. The directors of the
Company are responsible for making recommendations to
the Board for consideration and approval on nominations,
appointment of directors and board succession, with a
view to appoint individuals to the Board with relevant
experience and capabilities so as to maintain and improve
the competitiveness of the Company. The Board formulates
the policy, reviews the size, structure and composition of the
Board, and assesses the independence of its independent
non-executive directors in accordance with the criteria
prescribed under the Listing Rules and the Code. The
appointment of new directors will be considered and
approved by the Board and all new directors are subject to
re-election by shareholders at the annual general meeting in
the first year of their appointment pursuant to the Bye-laws
of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 1 April 1999
and currently comprises three independent non-executive
directors. It is chaired by an independent non-executive
director. Its composition is as follow:—

Lo Ming Chi, Charles (Chairman)
Lo Man Kit, Sam
Wong See King

A set of new written terms of reference, which described the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee, was adopted
by the Board on 1 September 2004 and the contents of
which are in compliance with the Code Provisions and
Recommended Best Practices of the Code.

The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board and the
principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review
and supervision of the Group's financial reporting processes
and internal controls. The Committee is also provided with
other resources to enable it to discharge its duties fully.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings
and the external auditors were in attendance. The
attendance record, on a named basis, at these meetings is
set out in the table on page 18 of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
of the Company and Ernst & Young, the auditors of the
Company, the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and has discussed auditing, internal controls
and financial reporting matters, including the review of the
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2011.

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the auditors of the
Group received approximately HK$2,790,000 for audit
service.

The auditors shall not take any non-auditing job to keep
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its independence. The disclosure regarding the auditors’ — LAREREE I o B B2 AN N & £ 81 75
remuneration was set out in the note 6 to the financial iﬁ%WEEGWWEE"
statements.
Attendance records at the meetings of the Board of #HZ iﬁ——i A=+—HLEFER
Directors, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee 272 &EFZ @Jﬂ?,\a NEZEZE®
held for the year ended 31 March 2011 are as follows:— .’E.\E%Zu”jfﬁ?,%ﬂﬁﬁﬂ—l—
Remuneration
Board of Directors Committee Audit Committee
No. of No. of No. of
Name 1] Meetings Attendance | Meetings Attendance | Meetings Attendance
EXg FMzAe EUZRE

ERAY HERH ERAY HERH ERAY HERH
Executive Directors BTESR
Ma Kai Cheung SNE 8 8 N/A N/A 2 N/A
Ma Kai Yum SN 8 7 N/A N/A 2 1%
Ng Yan Kwong RBK 8 8 N/A 1% 2 2
Ma Hung Ming, John S5 8 3 N/A N/A 2 N/A
Yuen Wai Man REX 8 3 N/A N/A 2 N/A
Independent Non-Executive ~ BIFHTES

Directors
Lo Ming Chi, Charles SRR 8 3 1 1 2 2
Lo Man Kit, Sam B3 8 3 1 1 2 2
Wong See King BER 8 3 1 1 2 2
“N/A”: Not applicable “N/A” ;T E
*“- In attendance * Bl jEE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMMUNICATION CHANNELS

In order to develop and maintain continuing relationships
with the shareholders of the Company, the Company has
established various channels to facilitate and enhance
communication:

(i) the annual general meeting provides a forum for
shareholders of the Company to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board;

(i) updated key information of the Group is available
on the Company’'s website at www.taksing.com.hk
to enable the shareholders of the Company and
the investor community to have timely access to
information about the Group; and

(iii) the Company’s website offers a communication channel
between the Company and its shareholders and
investors.

The Chairman and the directors are available at annual
general meetings to answer questions raised by shareholders
of the Company or other interested parties.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is overall responsible for overseeing the operations
of all the businesses units within the Group. Suitable
candidates are appointed by the Board to join in the boards
of all subsidiaries and associates operating in key business
areas, to attend the board meetings and to oversee the
operations of such companies. The management of each
business area is accountable for these operation and
performance of the business under its area of responsibility.

The Board has conducted bi-annual reviews of internal
control system of the Group pursuant to the Codes and
considers that all the material internal controls in the Group
are adequate and effective during the year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW 7% [0l B8

Property

Turnover for property for the year was HK$113,157,000
(2010: HK$95,818,000), higher than last year by 18%.
Excluding the effect of China South City listing non-recurring
profit and gain from changes in fair value of investment
properties, segment profit was HK$79,738,000 (2010:
HK$51,691,000), increased by 54% from last year. Rental
income for the year increased by 12% to HK$58,840,000
while property sales revenue increased by 25% to
HK$54,317,000. During the year, the Group’s two shopping
malls in Shenzhen, Carrianna Friendship Square and Imperial
Palace, recorded increase in both occupancy rate and rental
rate. Together with other investment properties in Shenzhen
and Hong Kong, these properties provide stable and growing
rental income to the Group.

Property sales revenue recorded in last year mainly came
from sales of remaining properties of phase 1 of Grand
Lake City project in Yiyang city of Hunan Province. The
construction of the last two high rise lake side residential
buildings of phase 1 with gross floor area of 27,000M? had
been completed. After completion of various government
inspection procedures, the residential units will be hand over
to buyers in the third quarter of 2011. During the year, over
90% of the two buildings were sold with sales revenue of
approximately HK$100 million. These sales will be recorded
as income in the coming financial year in accordance with
relevant accounting standard. On the other hand, the
construction of Grand Lake City phase 2 development
comprising 160,000M?, 6 high rise lake view residential
buildings and a shopping mall has been started and is
expected to be completed in two stages by year end of 2012
and 2013 respectively.
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During the year, construction of the logistic and commercial
project, China East City, in Lianyungang of Jiangsu province
had been started. Phase 1 of the project comprises
160,000M? of leather and construction material wholesale
markets. The construction will be completed in two stages
by year end of 2011 and mid year of 2012. In June 2011,
100,000M? of the shops in the market was launched for
sales. Within two weeks, over 50% with revenue exceeding
HK$300 million has been sold. These sales will be recorded
as income in the coming financial year.

The Group’s 50% interest associated company, South China
International Purchasing Exchange Limited, had paid all
land cost of RMB410 million and obtained land certificates
for the commercial project in Dongguan city. The land
was approximately 80,000M? with total floor area over
300,000M2. The project is under construction planning stage
and is expected to start construction by the end of 2011.

Looking forward for the coming year, with sales already
completed in Grand Lake City and China East City of
approximately HK$400 million and the stable and growing
rental income from investment properties, segment result for
property is expected to show substantial improvement.
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Property

~
j:‘HEI E Grand Lake City is a new town development project with total GFA of 2.5 million sg.m.
15 LLD# 9 2 — (2,500,000 75 2K 89 #7932 7R B B ©

The construction of Grand Lake City phase 2 development comprising
160,000M?, 6 high rise lake view residential buildings and a shopping
mall has been started.
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The construction of the
last two high rise lake side
residential buildings of
phase 1 with gross floor
area of 27,000M? had been
completed. After completion
of various government
inspection procedures, the
residential units will be hand
over to buyers in the third
quarter of 2011.
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Construction of the logistic and commercial project,
China East City, in Lianyungang of Jiangsu province
had been started. Phase 1 of the project comprises
160,000M? of leather and construction material
wholesale markets. In June 2011, 100,000M? of the
shops in the market was launched for sales. Within
two weeks, over 50% has been sold.
SEUNIHEETEMNEEYRER [ERBE
T i R | B R AR I R 2 SR M R #£160,000F
FARKYRBROELE T -E2011F6 A EEHEL L
100,000 A RV EHHE - EMBRNELEH BB
— Mo

BUSINESS REVIEW 7% [0l B8
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The Group’s two shopping malls in Shenzhen, Carrianna Friendship Square and Imperial Palace, recorded increase in
occupancy rate and rental rate.
SEERINES CEBRARSIEELEANHARRTHALAMER -

both

Carrianna Friendship Square
EEPRERES

Imperial Palace

KR E
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Hotel, Restaurant and Food

Turnover for hotel, restaurant and food division for the year
was HK$579,683,000 (2010: HK$517,362,000), increased
by 12% from last year. Segment profit was HK$110,983,000
(2010: HK$74,059,000), increased significantly by 50%.
Growth in turnover and profit was mainly attributable to
food business. The increase in production capacity and
production cost efficiency of the Hainan food factory is the
main reason for the significant growth in food sales and
profit.

For restaurant business, most restaurants recorded growth
during the year despite fierce competition. Hong Kong and
Hainan restaurants recorded highest growth in turnover.
Operating profit for restaurants was about the same as last
year due to significant increase in human resources as well
as food costs which offset the growth in revenue. For hotels,
turnover and operating results were both better than last
year. The improvement in Carrianna Yiyang International
Hotel in Hunan province was more notable than Carrianna
Hotel in Foshan, Guangdong.

For the coming year, the Group will further expand the
Hainan food factory. Together with the production in
Kunming food factory, food business is expected to continue
its growth. For hotel and restaurants, human resources and
food costs are expected to further increase in the coming
year, management will work hard to control cost and
improve service in order to achieve growth in revenue and
operating profit under fierce competition environment.
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HOTEL, RESTAURANT AND FOOD
BJE - BENR G

Yiyang Carrianna International Hotel

7 55 125 28 40 B0 B KO /B

ESBXEE

Teorriomme

Foshan Carrianna Hotel

| BLEEHAES
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Most restaurants recorded growth during the year. Hong Kong and Hainan restaurants recorded highest growth in turnover.

SEARMOEEHEEEXRER ERFBELEBENERRK-

Hainan Carrianna Restaurant

B EEEE

Shenzhen Carrianna Friendship Square Restaurant

RYNE B IR RE S N EE
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The increase in production capacity and production cost efficiency of the Hainan food factory is the main reason for the
significant growth in food sales and profit.
BERMBNESENRK IS ERALRGRMEEN S X RABHERBEEIERS -

v T iy o

Food factory in Hainan
&R o R
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2011, the Group’s consolidated net
assets after deduction of non-controlling interests was
HK$3,161,975,000 (2010: HK$3,062,248,000) and
consolidated net assets after deduction of non-controlling
interests per share was HK$2.76 (2010: HK$2.68).

The Group’s free cash and bank balances was
HK$221,606,000. Netting off cash deposits pledged
for borrowings, the Group’s net bank borrowings was
HK$889,936,000. Net bank borrowings less free cash
and bank balances was HK$668,330,000, representing
21% (2010: 18%) of the Group’s consolidated net assets
after deduction of non-controlling interests. The Group’s
borrowings are principally on a floating rate basis.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal for the
year ended 31 March 2011.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND FUTURE
COMMITMENT

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contingent liabilities relating to guarantees given to
banks for mortgage loan facilities granted to purchasers
of properties of approximately HK$117,642,000 (2010:
HK$90,238,000).

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at the end of the reporting period, certain of the
Group's property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, properties under development, properties
held for sale, time deposits, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and an other receivable with a total
carrying value of approximately HK$1,993,949,000 (2010:
HK$1,515,962,000) were pledged to secure general banking,
trade finance and other facilities granted to the Group.
In addition, rental income generated in respect of certain
investment properties of the Group was assigned to bankers
to secure loan facilities granted to the Group.

EXPOSURE ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE
FLUCTUATIONS AND TREASURY POLICY

Major transactions of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong dollar and Renminbi. The Group has no significant
currency exposure.
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The directors herein present their report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries comprise the
property investment and development, the operations of
hotel, restaurant and food businesses.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2011 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 50 to
195.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK2 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year
payable to the shareholders. This recommendation has been
incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of
retained profits within the equity section of the statement of
financial position.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 24 August 2011 to Monday, 29 August
2011, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. In order for a shareholder to be
eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Shares Registrars in
Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 23 August, 2011.

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 28 September 2011 to Friday, 30 September
2011, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend (subject to shareholders’ approval
at the Annual General Meeting), all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's Share Registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 27 September 2011.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION MESHBE

The table set out below summarises the published results, T&REV AEBBEZREFBEFEEZD
assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group ~ A ¥4E B E B (& N IE I IR R #
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the 5 JiESFEAEE 2 KEZTHBRE -
audited financial statements and restated as appropriate. W EE B o thiH 2 BB X
This summary does not form part of the audited financial — #3R&E Z 361D °

statements.

Year ended 31 March
ZA=+—-HLEE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——% -T2 ZCZITTNEFE ZTTN\F CZTTtF

TR TET TET TR THET

RESULTS L |

REVENUE Wz
Continuing operations FEES 692,840 613,180 560,291 691,459 395,217
Discontinued operation RBREEY - - - 153,860 260,594
692,840 613,180 560,291 845,319 655,811
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRiaF 175,404 417,245 180,676 246,404 343,897

Attributable to: JE1S -

Owners of [SYNCIEY=DN

the parent 163,209 399,695 173,127 228,910 336,670
Non-controlling interests IR IR R 12,195 17,550 7,549 17,494 7,227

175,404 417,245 180,676 246,404 343,897

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE AR

NON-CONTROLLING FEBRBRREERS

INTERESTS

TOTAL ASSETS BRE 5,651,843  5106,782 4,553,719 4,240,510 2,338,480
TOTAL LIABILITIES AR (2,179,322)  (1,813,605)  (1,554,820)  (1,410,731) (935,979)
NON-CONTROLLING FREBRRER

INTERESTS (310,546)  (230,929) (238,214) (245,916) (34,191)

3,161,975 3,062,248 2,760,685 2,583,863 1,368,310
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Group during the year
are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the year are set out in notes 36 and 37
to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 38 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2011, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provision
of The Bermuda Companies Act 1981, amounted to
HK$139,512,000, of which HK$22,882,000 has been
proposed as a final dividend for the year. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$1,275,015,000, may be distributed in the form of fully-
paid bonus shares.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF
ASSETS

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities and pledge of
assets are set out in notes 41 and 44, respectively, to the
financial statements.
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CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totalling HK$1,126,000 (2010: HK$220,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors:
Ma Kai Cheung

Ma Kai Yum

Ng Yan Kwong

Ma Hung Ming, John
Yuen Wai Man

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Lo Ming Chi, Charles

Lo Man Kit, Sam

Wong See King

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Ng Yan Kwong will retire by rotation and, being eligible,
will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Wong See King will retire by rotation and, being eligible,
will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Ma Kai Cheung had entered into a service contract
with the Company. The contract has no fixed terms of
engagement and is subject to termination by either party
giving three months’ notice in writing.

Mr. Ng Yan Kwong had entered into a service contract
with the Company. The contract has no fixed terms of
engagement and is subject to retirement by rotation as
required by the Company’s Bye-laws and termination by
either party giving three months’ notice in writing.

Mr. Ma Kai Yum, Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John and Mr. Yuen Wai
Man had no service contract with the Company as at the end
of the reporting period.

The non-executive directors of the Company have been
appointed for a term subject to retirement by rotation as
required by the Company’s Bye-laws.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not terminable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’
interests in the securities of the Group”, and in the share
option scheme disclosures in note 37 to the financial
statements, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Company’s directors, their respective spouse or minor
children to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES
OF THE GROUP

As at 31 March 2011, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"))
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or which (b) were required pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO to be entered in the register referred therein; or which
(c) were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) under the Listing Rules, were as follows:

EERFKENEGFHD

RZEB——F=A=+—H AREIZE
ENEBITHRABRARBHNARRIE
= nm (EER (BHEERAEGE)
EXVER) - REER D REFFHEBAT
B NOAR - S EmA )R (BH M
B1&GI) EXVEBET7 D 88N FE8D B 2 4R
EHNERRBARBEMAERZMBERRA
A ([BFr]) (BHE (BHEAPEK
1) EEARBWAERER 2 EE MK
B) o b)RFERERN (EH LB
FEINHRRMEATHFEZERMA: (o)
RELHRAY 2 EHRRESETES
R ZBESTR ([BETRI]) ARTTH
SARRP Rz Emm T

Long positions in shares RERZHE
(a) The Company (a) x4 H
Underlying Percentage
Number of ordinary shares held shares of the
and nature of interest pursuant to Company's
Personal Family Other share options issued share
Name of director Capacity interests interests interests (note 1) Total capital
REmEE HELH
RFELERRABERERNE HRRRHE BETRF
EEpg 5 BAER RE#ES RftER (M5E1) £ Btk
Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner, 220,124,172 9,300,000 259,129,025 10,000,000 498,553,197 43.58
ENE interest of spouse and (note 2) (note 3)
beneficiary of trust (MsE2) (M3)
EnEAA EBERR
FERXHEA
Ma Kai Yum Beneficial owner, 41,834,260 3,200,000 101,201,040 10,000,000 156,235,300 13.66
BN interest of spouse and (note 4)  (notes 5 &6)
beneficiary of trust (MizEa) (HzE576)
BERAAA REEER
FEREXHEA
Ng Yan Kwong Beneficial owner 11,768,000 - - 500,000 12,268,000 1.07
REK EEBEEA
Ma Hung Ming, John Beneficial owner, 310,000 3,044,000 - 8,500,000 11,854,000 1.04
S5t interest of spouse (note 7)
EaliB AREBER (M5E7)
Lo Ming Chi, Charles Beneficial owner - - - 450,000 450,000 0.04

98

EiEAA
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES
OF THE GROUP (continued)

Long positions in shares (continued)

(a) The Company (continued)

Notes:

(1) The underlying shares represent interests of options granted
to the Directors and senior executive under the Share Option
Scheme to acquire shares of the Company, further details of
which are set out in note 37 to the financial statements under
the section headed “Share Option Scheme”.

(2)  The shares were owned by Cheung Lin Kiu, the spouse of Ma
Kai Cheung.

(3) Ma Kai Cheung and his family are the objects of a discretionary
trust which effectively owns the entire issued share capital of
Regent World Investments Limited (“Regent World”) and 70%
of the entire issued share capital of Bond Well Investments
Limited ("Bond Well"). At the balance sheet date, Regent World
owned 184,121,625 shares and Bond Well owned 75,007,400
shares of the Company.

(4)  The shares were owned by Kwok Kit Mei, the spouse of Ma Kai
Yum.

(5)  Ma Kai Yum and his family are the objects of a discretionary
trust which effectively owns the entire issued share capital
of Grand Wealth Investments Limited (“Grand Wealth”) and
Peaceful World Limited (“Peaceful World”). At the balance
sheet date, Grand Wealth owned 74,651,040 shares and
Peaceful World owned 19,050,000 shares of the Company.

(6)  Peaceful World owns the entire issued share capital of Real
Potential Limited (“Real Potential”). At the balance sheet
date, Real Potential owned 7,500,000 shares of the Company.
The interests of Real Potential in the Company are therefore
deemed to be the interests of Peaceful World in which Ma Kai
Yum is also deemed to have interests for the reason as stated in
note 5 above.

(7)  The shares were owned by Choi Ka Man, Carmen, the spouse
of Ma Hung Ming, John.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES EFNTKENESER (8
OF THE GROUP (continued)
Long positions in shares (continued) RERZFE (&)
(b) Subsidiaries (b) HELaE
Percentage of
the subsidiary’s
issued share
Name of Number of  Type of  capital (ordinary
Name of subsidiary director Capacity shares held  shares shares)
GRELF
ERTRFEERLL
MELREE EENE & RERHBE KRiHERN (BEBRH)
Carrianna Chiu Chow Ma Kai Yum Beneficiary of trust 15,000  Ordinary 1.5
Restaurant (T.S.T))
Limited
EEHHMNEE SN FRXHEA Lk
(RPHE)ERA
Ginza Development Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner 15 Ordinary 2.5
Company Limited
SUEERARA SNE ERBEBA =Rl
Ginza Development Ma Kai Yum Beneficiary of trust 18 Ordinary 3
Company Limited
EVEEREBERDA SN FEIHEA Lk
Gartrend Development ~ Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner 500,000  Non-voting N/A
Limited - deferred
EREREBR LA ENE EREBA BERER NER
BT
Gartrend Development ~ Ma Kai Yum Beneficial owner 500,000 Non-voting N/A
Limited deferred
FRERARAT SNH ERBEAA ERER TiER
BT
Tak Sing Alliance Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner 9,000  Non-voting N/A
Limited deferred
SNE ERBEAA mR TER
EER D
Tak Sing Alliance Ma Kai Yum Beneficial owner 1,000 Non-voting N/A
Limited - deferred
SN EREBA ERER NER
BT
BEEEP (ZH)EE  Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner N/A  N/A 10
BRAF -
REX ERBEBA
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DIRECTORS’

OF THE GROUP (continued)

Long positions in shares (continued)

(b) Subsidiaries (continued)

RS

INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES

EERFKEMNEFHD ()

REmzirE (8)

(b) MEB LA (&)

Percentage of

the subsidiary’s

issued share

Name of Number of  Type of  capital (ordinary
Name of subsidiary director Capacity shares held  shares shares)
EHBLAR
ERTRFEHL
i) NGRS EER4 L] FERHBE  ROEHN (BiEBRM)
BHEERRR Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner NA  N/A 10
ARAT
REX ERBBA
FEEEHFELRERE  Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner NA  N/A 10
ARAT -
REX BREBA
REERERER Ma Hung Ming, John Beneficial owner N/A  N/A 15
Eﬁﬁx -
B E&BEAA
BERE ﬂ}] E% Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner NA  N/A 20
ARR -
REX ERBBA
REEENER Ma Hung Ming, John Beneficial owner NA  N/A 10
ARAR -
HEH BREBA
FIEBFEZERE  Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner NA  N/A 15
BERAF
REX ERBEBA
REEEMHBEEE  Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner NA  N/A 12
ARAT
REX ERBBA
EREEMEEER  Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner NA  N/A 25
ARAR -
REX BREBA
In addition to the above, Ma Kai Cheung and Ma Kai Yum  BRBA_EFTilish  ENERENMRRAEE
have non-beneficial personal equity interests in certain  FAE& TH B AR AIEE o= @ A MK A
subsidiaries held for the benefit of the Group solely for  zZ  IWTHEARFEABIKREEE NRIER
the purpose of complying with their minimum company EMEFA e

membership requirements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES
OF THE GROUP (continued)

Long positions in shares (continued)

All the interests stated above represent long positions.
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, none of
the directors or chief executives of the Company, nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company, or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as detailed in note 45 to the financial statements, no
director had a beneficial interest in any material contract to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
"Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Company’s directors, including
independent non-executive directors, other employees of the
Group. The Scheme became effective on 10 October 2005
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

Particulars of the Company's share option scheme are set out
in note 37 to the financial statements.

EERFKEMNEFHD ()

RERzER (&)

Pz EEYATE -BREXHEES
IR ZE——F=A=+—H BE
(BHRHEIEG) F3526BEFHERFZ
B R EBRESFAIRARR A KR
Frast 2B ARBIZEEHREBITH
AB HEEZHEATBMERERRRIN
THEEEE (7 (BERBEER) F
XVEZ ®E&) 2 kh - HER N kEHF
BEERERIKE -

EERSNED

BREA TS M M LA PRt E SN BEER
R E RN AN A 3 AT I B 2 A
SEFTUNEMNERENTHEBEEaE

22
m °

fis A% 42 51 &
ARARE—BEBREE (&%

) RYAKEEBEHERMZAE
B2 EERM R N RE)  ZiTEZEE
REREBEARBES  BRBILIFH
TEF AREEMBET -ZtdRN=-F
TRFE+ATBEER HERRIFETHIE
R ZAEIBRNEHRA T FRNEREH
R o

AD AR B2 BB R RS
37 o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BERRERTE (&)

The following share options were outstanding under the — RFR - RIFZTEIE N s R1T76 2B
Scheme during the year: BT

Number of share options
WRENE

Date of Exercise
At1  Granted Exercised Forfeited At 31 grant of Exercise price of At grant
April during during during March share period of share date of
2010 the year the year the year 2011 options* share options options**  options
HKS HKS
per share per share
B®
R 8§
Z2-8F RER RER RER =R B fTER R TR REEE
mA—-H e {THE %% =1-8 BRERRH- MR BEES BH<AH
SiEr SRR
Executive Directors
BiTE
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung 7,000,000 - - - 7,000,000 26-10-2005 26-10-2005 to 0.30 0.30
SNERE 25-10-2015
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 18-12-2006 18-12-2006 to 1.30 1.30
17-12-2016
Mr. Ma Kai Yum 7,000,000 - - - 7,000,000 26-10-2005 26-10-2005 to 0.30 0.30
i 25-10-2015
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 18-12-2006 18-12-2006 to 130 1.30
17-12-2016
Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John 7,000,000 - - - 7,000,000 26-10-2005 26-10-2005 to 0.30 0.30
SRELE 25-10-2015
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 18-12-2006 18-12-2006 to 130 130
17-12-2016
Mr. Ng Yan Kwong - 500,000 - - 500,000 3-1-2011 3-1-2012 to 1.03 1.03
REREE 2-1-2014
- 500,000 - - 500,000 3-1-2011 3-1-2012 to 1.03 1.03
2-1-2014
28,000,000 1,000,000 - - 29,000,000
Independent
Non-Executive Director
BURTES
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles 300,000 - - - 300,000 26-10-2005 26-10-2005 to 0.30 0.30
SHBELL 25-10-2015
150,000 - - - 150,000 18-12-2006 18-12-2006 to 130 1.30
17-12-2016
450,000 - - - 450,000
Other employees
HftlEg
150,000 - - - 150,000 18-12-2006 18-12-2006 to 130 1.30
17-12-2016
700,000 - - - 700,000 24-8-2007 24-2-2008 to 2.15 2.15
23-8-2012
- 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 3-1-2011 3-1-2012 to 1.03 1.03
2-1-2014
- 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 3-1-2011 3-1-2013 to 1.03 1.03
2-1-2015
- 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 3-1-2011 3-1-2014 to 1.03 1.03
2-1-2016
- 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 3-1-2011 3-1-2015 to 1.03 1.03
2-1-2017
- 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 3-1-2011 3-1-2016 to 1.03 1.03
2-1-2018
850,000 6,000,000 - - 6,850,000
29,300,000 7,000,000 - - 36,300,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes to reconciliation of share options outstanding during the year:

* The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant
until the commencement of the exercise period.

**  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company'’s share capital.

RRERHEETE (&)

PR P B 2 B AR Y 5

* BREETEMNOEMEAREE BRAE
BEETEHNFGA -

o RMREROTTE (B R E B A H AR SRR AT
B kA R AR 0 B B TR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2011, according to the register kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so far
as was known to the Directors, the following persons or
corporations (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Long positions in shares

FERE

R-ZTB——F=A=+—H8" REARQ

B (RELMEERD) E336KFEZLE
CMAMR ARBRESRHRAM TIAL
FAE (LFARAEFTHREIETRA
B)EARRA 2D LA HE s
KR WARIERE 75 R E 1R B XV
#2088 M B30 BHE W EE

Rz E

Number of Percentage of the
ordinary Company’s issued

Name of shareholder Capacity Notes shares held share capital
BFAERTE HFELTH
FEEX 13 B F BERBA ERITRFISLE
East Asia International Trustees Trustee a 360,330,065 31.49
Limited EEA
Golden Yield Holdings Limited Interest in controlled b 259,129,025 22.65
corporations
b E/NCIE 3y
Wealthy Platform Limited Interest in controlled C 101,201,040 8.85
corporations
S Z/NCIE 2y
Regent World Investments Holding corporation b 184,121,625 16.09
Limited BERERAT
Bond Well Investments Limited Holding corporation b 75,007,400 6.55
HEERAR
Grand Wealth Investments Holding corporation C 74,651,040 6.52
Limited BERERAT
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in shares (continued)

Notes:

Save

East Asia International Trustees Limited (“EAIT") is the trustee of a
discretionary trust of which Mr. Ma Kai Cheung and his family are
the objects and through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Golden Yield
Holdings Limited (”“Golden Yield”), EAIT was indirectly interested in
259,129,025 shares of the Company. EAIT is also the trustee of a
discretionary trust of which Mr. Ma Kai Yum and his family are the
objects and through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wealthy Platform
Limited (“Wealthy Platform”), EAIT was indirectly interested in
101,201,040 shares in the Company. As at the balance sheet date,
EAIT was effectively interested in a total of 360,330,065 shares of the
Company.

Golden Yield owns the entire issued share capital of Regent World
and 70% of the entire issued share capital of Bond Well, was
indirectly interested in a total of 259,129,025 shares of the Company.
The total shares held by both Regent World and Bond Well are the
same block of shares as disclosed in “Other interests” of Mr. Ma
Kai Cheung under the section headed “Directors’ Interests in the
Securities of the Group” set out above.

Wealthy Platform owns the entire issued share capital of Grand
Wealth and Peaceful World and indirect owns the entire issued share
capital of Real Potential through Peaceful World, was indirectly
interested in 101,201,040 shares of the Company. The total shares
held by Grand Wealth, Peaceful World and Real Potential are the same
block of shares as disclosed in “Other interests” of Mr. Ma Kai Yum
under the section headed “Directors’ Interests in the Securities of the
Group” set out above.

as disclosed above, the directors of the Company are

not aware of any other persons who, as at 31 March 2011,
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company in the register that was
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #£

HES

EERRE (&)

REmzirE (8)

a. East Asia International Trustees Limited
(TEATD ABNEBEERERKERT &
AMKZH—B2EEENETA LE
i HE 2 &M E A FGolden Yield Holdings
Limited ([ Golden Yield J) MM #E #HEE A A
7]259,129,0250% 2 & 17 © B 5N+ EAIT IR [F] B
BENREERERKRIEAZ T AMMAZ
W—EDEEENETEA LEAEZEN
B A 7]Wealthy Platform Limited ([ Wealthy
Platform J ) i & % ¥ 5 A< ‘2 ®]101,201 040
2D REER EAT BERn#EEERR
#360,330,065/% & f% 17 ©

b.  Golden Yield##% A Regent World%® &2 %
77R& 15 & Bond Well 70%E§§?ﬁﬂ§1"ﬁ‘ﬁf‘ﬁ
BB AR R A 259,129,025 2 & 17
Regent World &2 Bond Well& ,\T—rﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
FXTEERAEENHFER ] RSN
BEhEz [EtiER] PREBENR—HR

T/\ o

C. Wealthy Platform#& #%5 A& Grand Wealth &
Peaceful World2 3B #7172k K& #
Peaceful Worldf## & 2 #fReal Potential 2,
BT 2 IRy M E B ¥ A2 81101,201,040
f% 2 A% 5 » Grand Wealth, Peaceful World &%
Real Potential& £FBFWMRM AL [ESE
RAEENESER ] PRRASENSREEZ
[Efbigzs] RATEENR —HERG -

B E i S B A AT 18
1 (% RS ED) B336046AT RS
BRMAEEAATHR T —— 5=
A=+—REAAQAFRGRIENRG
ZHEREAR -

K & B
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS OF
THE LISTING RULES

Loan agreement with covenants relating to
specific performance obligation of the controlling
shareholders (Rule 13.18 of Chapter 13)

The agreement for the following loan to the Group
imposes specific performance obligations on the controlling
shareholders of the Company:

IHRAZIHBRHEERE

RETFERRBREDR ZERTABERE
TEEZRE (F+=%$13.181F)

THHBETAREEERZHHEREAR
ZEEBRRARERITAML:

Outstanding balance of Specific
banking facilities as at Final maturity of performance
31 March 2011 banking facilities obligations
HK$'000
R-E——%=RA=+—H HMITRREREIHE BEBITRE
KEZHRITHRERA
TET
61,560 7 November 2014 (Note)
—HE+—AtH (MH5E)

Note:

Mr. Ma Kai Cheung, the Chairman and the controlling shareholder of
the Company, holds 43.58% shareholding interest in the Company, and
Mr. Ma Kai Yum, the managing director of the Company, holds 13.66%
shareholding interest in the Company, undertakes to maintain for a total of
at least 51% of the shares of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions for the year are set out
in note 45 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions
which need to be disclosed as connected transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 March 2011.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, as
at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s sales to the five largest
customers and purchases from the five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s revenue and
purchases for the year respectively.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group's staff consists of approximately 100 employees
in Hong Kong and approximately 2,200 employees outside
Hong Kong. Employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the general framework of the Group's
salary and bonus system.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code for securities transactions by Directors of the Company.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard under the Model Code for the year ended 31
March 2011.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Information on the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is
set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 11
to 19.

B
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RALRIGKE

REARRARBGZAHERERES
PRANZS  MAHENHBH  ARAIER
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors of the Company.

The audit committee has reviewed with the management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2011.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code on Corporate Governance Practices,
the Company has established its Remuneration Committee
in April 2005. The Remuneration Committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lo Man Kit,
Sam (Chairman), Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles and Mr. Wong See
King. A set of written terms of reference, which described
the authority and duties of the remuneration committee, was
adopted by the Board on 1 April 2005.

The Remuneration Committee’s objectives are to establish
and maintain an appropriate and competitive level of
remuneration to attract, retain and motivate directors
and key executives to run the Company successfully. The
Remuneration Committee will ensure that the remuneration
policies and systems of the Group support the Group's
objective and strategies.

The remuneration details of directors during the year are set
out in note 8 to the financial statements.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board confirmed that the Company has received from
each of its independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and still considers all of the independent
non-executive directors to be independent.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2011, the Group’s consolidated net
assets after deduction of non-controlling interests was
HK$3,161,975,000 (2010: HK$3,062,248,000) and
consolidated net assets after deduction of minority interests
per share was HK$2.76 (2010: HK$2.68).

The Group's free cash and bank balances was
HK$221,606,000. Netting off cash deposits pledged
for borrowing, the Group's net bank borrowings was
HK$889,936,000. Net bank borrowings less free cash
and bank balances was HK$668,330,000, representing
21% (2010: 18%) of the Group’s consolidated net assets
after deduction of non-controlling interests. The Group’s
borrowings are principally on a floating rate basis.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

OUTLOOK

The Group will continue to develop and grow while
maintaining its healthy financial position and solid business
foundation to create long-term shareholder value.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Dr. Ma Kai Yum
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 30 June 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT & 37 #% EhElER &

Elf ERNST & YOUNG

= ik

To the shareholders of Tak Sing Alliance Holdings
Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
50 to 195, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2011,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2011, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

30 June 2011
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 436Uk zs

Year ended 31 March 2011 #{Z2 -FT——F=F=+—HIFE

2011 2010
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—T——% —ET-FF
Mg 3E TF#ET FETT
REVENUE A 5 692,840 613,180
Cost of sales SHE AR (398,758) (330,632)
Gross profit E 7 294,082 282,548
Other income and gains H A W A R ez 150,814 383,658
Selling and distribution expenses 73 4 & $5 & F &2 (139,754) (131,114)
Administrative expenses TBAX (109,920) (105,242)
Other expenses, net HhFs  JF58 (13,827) (10,404)
Finance costs FBRAX 7 (31,857) (31,092)
Share of profits and losses of FEAG Bt i 1 B]& A1 &2
associates B8 74,712 48,163
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR#aa# 6 224,250 436,517
Income tax expense FiEsfiAx 10 (48,846) (19,272)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR XEEERT 175,404 417,245
Attributable to: FE{
Owners of the parent SRAREER A 11 163,209 399,695
Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR 2 12,195 17,550
175,404 417,245
HK cents HK cents
4 B
EARNINGS PER SHARE (SN S
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY wE NG
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE FiR&A
PARENT 13
Basic B IN 14.26 34.93
Diluted b 14.08 34.45

Details of the dividend proposed for the year are disclosed in
note 12 to the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 424 2 AdRE

Year ended 31 March 2011 E#Z - E——F=fF=+—HILFE

2011 2010
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——%F —E-TF
Bt 5 FHET FAT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR XEERF 175,404 417,245
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Htt2ZEBA
INCOME/(LOSS) (518)
Change in fair value of an AHEHEREZ
available-for-sale investment NEEEH (80,007) 42,608
Exchange differences on BMEBINEB 2
translation of foreign M 5 =58
operations 45,264 4,070
Share of other comprehensive JEAG — B & R A
income of an associate Hfih 2 W= - 34
Reclassification adjustment on Lol S /NGTE - 6 < EE a1l v
deregistration of subsidiaries BN EAE 39 (209) (943)
Reclassification adjustment on RAELE — A&
deemed disposal of RAIZEFHEE
an associate RS - (132,614)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FTEHMZEAGR
LOSS FOR THE YEAR (34,952) (86,845)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FXTEE#A2ZEWRA
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 140,452 330,400
Attributable to: JEAG
Owners of the parent (SNSIEZFEPN 121,964 312,339
Non-controlling interests FE5 AR M 2 18,488 18,061
140,452 330,400

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E FX £
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #R

31 March 2011 = Z——%=F=+—H

BRI K

31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated) (Restated)
—E2——§ —E-TF% ZETNE
=B=+-H =A=+-8 MA—H
Btk THET AT AT
(mE75) (LgE75)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERR 14 468,686 429,592 438,657
Investment properties REME 15 1,346,196 1,238,598 1,211,768
Prepaid land lease payment BN TiEEFE 16 13,306 13,167 13,502
Goodwill S 17 40,111 40,111 40,264
Other intangible assets HithmEE 18 399,732 533,559 533,559
Investment in a jointly-controlled entity 1% & ftEE 5B 8 20 - - -
Investments in associates REHZ AT 21 217,214 18,129 928,582
Available-for-sale investments AHEEERE 22 1,120,098 1,201,375 9,742
Financial assets at fair value BATEERABRET
through profit or loss EEZCREE 23 497 489 7,347
Other receivable H b UK 24 - 11,626 =
Properties under development BRAME 25 950,004 808,831 460,909
Deposits paid for purchases of land BELHIRANERS - - 80,943
Pledged time deposits EEAEBRER 29 18,524 21,276 21,030
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 4,574,368 4,316,753 3,746,303
CURRENT ASSETS RHEE
Properties under development ZEAME 25 209,926 197,966 191,085
Properties held for sale FIEHEME 355,693 210,749 162,916
Inventories & 26 49,179 41,017 45,434
Debtors, deposits and prepayments MR 1R & R B 27 152,497 204,476 275,789
Due from a director Elh—2EZ 28 652 1,291 =
Due from non-controlling shareholders & U 3F 122 A% A% 58 67,234 = =
Financial assets at fair value BATEIERAERF
through profit or loss REZCHEE 23 - 8,270 =
Other receivable H b UK 24 11,626 = =
Restricted cash BRFRE 29 7,018 5,827 =
Pledged time deposits BEATHER 29 2,044 7,055 7,041
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREEEER 29 221,606 113,378 125,151
Total current assets REEELE 1,077,475 790,029 807,416
CURRENT LIABILITIES wE AR
Trade creditors JENE 5 8RN 30 (75,207) (51,495) (38,662)
Sundry creditors, accruals and Hi B  EFEAR
deposits received icliei&n (319,351) (196,419) (185,106)
Due to directors ERES 45(c) (2,362) (17,874) (1,767)
Due to non-controlling shareholders &} 3F2 AR A% 3R 45(c) (11,566) (9,436) (7,559)
Interest-bearing bank and other M2z |RITREMER
borrowings 31 (541,080) (483,278) (522,002)
Finance lease payables ERRERL 32 - (245) (630)
Deferred income EIERA 35 (14,203) = =
Tax payable A (91,423) (73,186) (117,394)
Total current liabilities mEaEEE (1,055,192) (831,933) (873,120)
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RHEERE(AR) 22,283 (41,904) (65,704)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BREHERTDAR
LIABILITIES
-page 53 — 538 4,596,651 4,274,849 3,680,599
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

= A
el

RN

31 March 2011 = ZE——%=A8=+—H

31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated) (Restated)
—E2——§ —E-TF% ZETNE
=B=+-H =A=+t—H MA—H
i3 FTET TAET FTAET
(mE75) (LgE75)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BERERRDRR
LIABILITIES
—page 52 — %528 4,596,651 4,274,849 3,680,599
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAR
Due to a director ER—%EZ 45(c) (37,522) (63,151) (58,281)
Due to non-controlling shareholders — FEf JEH2 A% A & 45(c) (49,126) (37,653) (31,453)
Interest-bearing bank and other 82 BT REMER
borrowings 31 (369,424) (221,600) (201,967)
Finance lease payables EARERY 32 - = (243)
Derivative financial instrument SRTETA 34 (669) = =
Deferred income BRI 35 (252,661) (261,788) =
Deposits received KRR (5,884) (5,647) -
Deferred tax BT AE 33 (408,844) (391,833) (389,756)
Total non-current liabilities ERBAERE (1,124,130) (981,672) (681,700)
Net assets BEZE 3,472,521 3,293,177 2,998,899
EQUITY B &
Equity attributable to owners of BRRARMES ARAER
the parent
Issued capital [REREN 36 114,412 114,412 114,412
Reserves [t 38(a) 3,024,681 2,924,954 2,634,832
Proposed final dividend BERAE 12 22,882 22,882 11,441
3,161,975 3,062,248 2,760,685
Non-controlling interests R ER 310,546 230,929 238,214
Total equity BRAE 3,472,521 3,293,177 2,998,899
Ma Kai Yum Ng Yan Kwong
Director Director
EF EZE

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X %
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2 STENEN =
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ré& s B B3R
Year ended 31 March 2011 HZEZ=—Z——F=A=+—HILFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BARRAHAARE
Leasehold Available-
land and for-sale
Share  building Share Exchange Capital investment Proposed Non-
Issued  premium revaluation option  Goodwill equalisation redemption Reserve revaluation Capital  Retained final controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve reserve profits  dividend Total interests equity
Note HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARLH milHeE
L1} R BRER ER #% BEEH B Ea: 1
L4 aRE  EREER RER  WEEE  THRE  RERE L1 B REEE  REEN  FNBR ai 8  #RE
Bt T T Firn Tin T T Fin T T Fin T T T Tin T
At 1 April 2009 RZZENE
mA-H 14,412 1,275,015 56,060 19,122 (86,2300 159,415 316 6,113 = 36,554 1,168,467 11,441 2,760,685 238214 2,998,899
Profit for the year KEERA - - - - - - - - - - 399,695 - 399,695 17550 417,45
Other comprehensive REESRE
incomef{loss) for the year: YA/ (&)
Change in fair value of ~ AHERERE L
an available-for-sale ATEED
investment = = = = = = = = 42,608 = = = 42,608 = 42,608
Exchange differences o~ REESNEHZ
translation of foreign EXES
operations - - - - - 3,559 - - - - - - 3,559 511 4,070
Share of other FEl-fke
comprehensive income ~ AFAEM2RE
of an associate WA - - - - - 34 - - - - - - 34 - 34
Reclassification adjustment  —FIHBAA
on deregistration of a M
subsidiary EFAEAR - - - - - (943) - - - - - - (943) - (943)
Reclassification RiEtE-
adjustment on deemed ~ BEEAF 2
disposal of an associate ~ EHHHBE - - - - - (96,060) - - - (36,554) - - (132,614) - (132614)
Total comprehensive REEHZE
incomeflloss) for the year A/ (B#) = = = = = (93,410) - - 42,608 (36,554) 399,695 - 312,339 18,061 330,400
Contribution from non-  FEHKR
controlling shareholders A& & - - - - - - - - - - - - - 4,742 4,742
Dividends paid to non- ~ FERRRRE
controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - - (30,088  (30,088)
Share of an associate AE-BHELT - - - 659 - - - 6 - - - - 665 - 665
Release upon deemed ~ EfEHE—F
disposal of an associate ~ BE AT - - - (13,504 - - - (5,538) = = 19,042 = = = =
Final 2009 dividend ER-FTNF
declared RERE - - - - - - - - - - - (11,441) (11,441) - (11,441)
Proposed final 2010 BE-T-3F
dividend S 12 = - = = = = = = - - (22,882) 22,882 - - -
At31 March 2010 RZE-%%
=fA=1-A 14,412 1,275,015 56,060 6,277 (86,230) 66,005 316 581 42,608 - 1,564,322 22,882 3,062,248 230929 3,293,177
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ratEm &gk

Year ended 31 March 2011 E#Z - E——F=fF=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATRGRE AR
Leasehold Available-
land and for-sale
Share  building Share Exchange Capital investment Proposed Non-
Issued  premium revaluation option  Goodwill equalisation redemption  Reserve revaluation  Capital  Retained final controlling Total
capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve funds  reserve reserve profits  dividend Total interests equity
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
ARt CEdH
L] R#F  BOER ER RE RAREf 2 R
-] BEE  EARE BEE HERE TEER WORG L1 B HAEE  REEN  XWER At #8 #EsE
i3 FEn T L Tt Tk L Tikr Tk Tk Tir Tt ThL L Tt Tk
At 1 April 2010 RZE-%F
mA-H 14,412 1,275,015 56,060 6,277 (86,230) 66,005 316 581 42,608 - 1,564,322 22,882 3,062,248 230929 3,293,177
Profit for the year KEERA - - - - - - - - - - 163,209 - 163,209 12195 175404
Other comprehensive REESRE
incomef{loss) for the year: YA/ (E%8)
Change in fair value of ~ AHERERE L
an available-for-sale NTEED
investment - - - - - - - - (80,007) - - - (80,007) - (80,007)
Exchange differences o~ REESNEHZ
translation of foreign EXES
operations - - - - - 38971 - - - - - - 38,971 6,293 45,264
Reclassification adjustment M B2 &) 43
on deregistration of itz &
subsidiaries PERE - - - = = (209) - - - - - - (209) - (209)
Total comprehensive REEHZE
incomeflloss) for the year A/ (B%) - - - - - 38,762 - - (80,007) - 163,209 - 121,964 18,488 140452
Deregistration of BEERKELR
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - - - (8,698) (8,698)
Contribution from non-  FEHEE
controlling shareholders A& S - - - - - - - - - - - - - 101,518 101518
Dividends paid to non- ~ FERRERE
controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - - (31,5300  (31,530)
Deemed disposal of interest 18 {F & —F
in a subsidiary HEBL AR - - - - - - - - - 161 - - 161 (161) -
Equity-settled share option 75— B & A &)
arrangements 37 - - - 484 - - - - - - - - 434 - 484
Final 2010 dividend EE-2-%F
declared KRS 12 - - - - - - - - - - - (22,882) (22,882) - (22,882)
Proposed final 2011 o S
dividend KRS 12 = = = = = = °© = - - (22,882) 22,882 - - -
At 31 March 2011 RZF--%
=fA=t-R 114,412 1,275,015* 56,060% 6,761* (86,230  104,767* 316* 581*  (37,399)% 161% 1,704,649* 22,882 3,161,975 310,546 3,472,521
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * W ZEFEEA $£3,024,681,0008 0 (ZE—F

HK$3,024,681,000 (2010: HK$2,924,954,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

£ :2,924,954,000% 70 ) B BIEE4R & M IS
MRRZ BB 2R

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 March 2011 #{Z2 -FT——F=F=+—HIFE

mEREMER

2011 2010
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——%F —E-FF
B 5 TET FAET
NET CASH FLOWS FROM REEEEBD
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BakASH 40(a) 89,535 91,376
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING #EFBZ
ACTIVITIES BangE
Bank interest received 2 YER1T F B 981 867
Interest received from an other B 0 At W 3k
receivable SN 686 174
Realised fair value loss on SRMITETAY
derivative financial instruments — 2 &R EE
transactions not qualifying
as hedges (2,258) —
Dividend received from AP ERE
available-for-sale investments ISR PN 17,779 =
Purchases of items of property, BAME BER
plant and equipment B (66,197) (30,038)
Proceeds from disposal of items HEWE - HE K
of property, HIER TS EIR
plant and equipment 7,820 21
Proceeds from disposal of HEMHEERE
available-for-sale investments Fr 15 3038 1,276 29,059
Proceeds from disposal of HERAFEINER
financial assets at fair value REGFREZ
through profit or loss EREEMFHIE 8,191 =
Purchase of financial assets BARAFEYERR
at fair value through REERFREEZS
profit or loss BEE = (504)
Purchase of an other receivable & A H fib fE U 7% - (11,626)
Net repayment/(advance) to M—ZEEER
a director (B}) 699 (1,289)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged EEHATHTERZ
time deposits A (3gn) 3,132 (216)
Increase in restricted cash BRHIRE 28 (955) (5,816)
Increase in time deposits with IR ER=EAT
original maturity of more than HTF R Z 3
three months (5,840) (496)
Increase in advance to associates, MBS N Al #FN 2
net #an - FEE (120,722) =
Net cash flows used in investing #&&/EF& 2
activities e M FRE (155,408) (19,864)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #r&

Year ended 31 March 2011 BE—_Z——F=A=+—HILFE

iﬁimﬁ%%

2011 2010
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—2—— —E-TF
L TET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING M EEFBZ
ACTIVITIES BenkE
New bank loans L IRITE R 1,464,638 438,307
New other loans I EH M E R 5,788 11,940
Repayment of bank loans EERITE K (1,251,238) (455,276)
Repayment of other loans BEHME R (19,743) (1,786)
Capital element of finance lease B E 49 & A
payments BB (245) (628)
Dividends paid N e (22,882) (11,441)
Dividends paid to BT IEE R AR R AR 2
non-controlling shareholders (31,530) (30,088)
Advance from/(to) non- FEHE AR AR BR E R
controlling shareholders, net (54,003) 8,062
Contribution from non- FEFE AR AR R B BA
controlling shareholders 101,518 4,742
Interest paid B F 8 (32,730) (34,605)
Interest element of finance lease &i& M #H & &Y
payments EAIRSN:i v (4) (45)
Net cash flows from/(used in) METGH RS
financing activities A O 58 159,569 (70,818)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND BReRBeFHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS HE®m 93,696 694
Cash and cash equivalents at FzRe Rk
beginning of year ReFEER 119,937 118,940
Effect of foreign exchange rate ~ EXZBHFE -
changes, net e 3,611 303
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S ZH&R
AT END OF YEAR HRe®ERH 217,244 119,937
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES BeRE&£EE
OF CASH AND CASH HERBRZA I
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as FEVBRARANZ
stated in the consolidated leRe MReFH
statement of financial position (ERERE! 29 221,606 113,378
Time deposits with original AR =1EH
maturity of less than three mERIER— R
months when acquired, RITEE 2 EH
pledged as security for general T
banking facilities 29 2,044 7,055
Bank overdrafts RITEZ 31 (50) =
Non-pledged time deposits with  EIHIB AR =1E 8 =
original maturity of more than I E B
three months (6,356) (496)
Cash and cash equivalents as meRenBERANE
stated in the consolidated e Rk
statement of cash flows ReFEIEAR 217,244 119,937
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BAF&S AR R 3=

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—T——5 —T-%F “ZTNE
=ZR=+-H =R=t-H mA—A
B 5E THT TAEL TEL
(g&5)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RENB AT 19 1,554,651 1,570,914 1,537,959
CURRENT ASSETS REHEE
Other receivables and deposits Hih RS RiEe 32 350 253
Due from associates JE B = N R BR 3R 3,930 159 159
Pledged time deposits EERTERER 29 44 4 4
Cash and cash equivalents BehReEERR 29 133 142 3,178
Total current assets REYEERE 4,139 692 3,631
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Sundry creditors and accruals Hi R LB E A (1,097) (1,238) (3,639)
Due to directors ERES 45(c) (5,930) (15,780) (10,022)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings EZHRITER 31 - = (8,629)
Total current liabilities nEYABRAE (7,027) (17,018) (22,290)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RHARSE (2,888) (16,326) (18,659)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HERERTDRRA
LIABILITIES 1,551,763 1,554,588 1,519,300
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY ERBAR
Due to a director ER—UEZ 45(c) (15,747) (25,415) (12,751)
Net assets BEFE 1,536,016 1,529,173 1,506,549
EQUITY 2
Issued capital BETRE 36 114,412 114,412 114,412
Reserves f#E 38(h) 1,398,722 1,391,879 1,380,696
Proposed final dividend EERAE 12 22,882 22,882 11,441
Total equity ERRE 1,536,016 1,529,173 1,506,549
Ma Kai Yum Ng Yan Kwong
Director Director
EE EE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #7653k & Btz %

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office
of the Company is located at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged
in investment holding, property investment and
development, and the operations of hotel, restaurant
and food businesses.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for certain leasehold land and buildings,
investment properties, derivative financial instrument,
and certain financial assets, which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H
LFIEH

EREER—BRBEREFMK
YZEBRRAA - ARAFM#tE
BEAI Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda °

FRAEENTIBEBEARER
B MENRERERMEEBE -
BEERMER-

wEEE

AHBHRENRBEBGAMAE
Bz BRMBHREEL ([FAH
BmE £ (ABEEMAEE
MBREER - FESHEAN(F
BEERDERRE) BEEE
Rz et £ RBEB ARG Z
WEE AR E - W ER B E LA L R
(BRARFEEFEZHELH K
EYE - eMOILETARETER
BERIN) - AP BHRETIABTE
5 MRIERBHA ABEECH
BEREBEOZTITEM-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bt 5%

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

Basis of consolidation from 1 April 2010

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2011. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries, are prepared for the same reporting period
as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases. All intra-group
balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends
are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-
controlling interest even if that results in a deficit
balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #7653k & Btz %

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Basis of consolidation prior to 1 April 2010

Certain of the above-mentioned requirements have
been applied on a prospective basis. The following
differences, however, are carried forward in certain
instances from the previous basis of consolidation:

e Acquisitions of non-controlling interests (formerly
known as minority interests), prior to 1 April
2010, were accounted for using the parent entity
extension method, whereby the differences
between the consideration and the book value
of the share of the net assets acquired were
recognised in goodwill.

e Losses incurred by the Group were attributed
to the non-controlling interest until the balance
was reduced to nil. Any further excess losses
were attributable to the parent, unless the non-
controlling interest had a binding obligation to
cover these. Losses prior to 1 April 2010 were not
reallocated between non-controlling interest and
the parent shareholders.

e Upon loss of control, the Group accounted for the
investment retained at its proportionate share of
net asset value at the date control was lost. The
carrying amount of such investment at 1 April
2010 has not been restated.

Operating cycle

The operating cycle of the Group for the property
investment and development business is the time
between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Due to the
nature of such business, the normal operating cycle
is longer than 12 months. The Group's current assets
include assets (such as properties under development
and properties held for sale) are sold, consumed or
realised as part of the normal operating cycle for the
property investment and development business even
when they are not expected to be realised within 12
months after the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bt 5%

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 Amendment

HKAS 39 Amendment

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 ¥k

First-time Adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-
time Adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting
Standards — Additional
Exemptions for First-time
Adopters

Amendments to HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment —
Group Cash-settled Share-
based Payment Transactions

Business Combinations

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

Amendment to HKAS 32
Financial Instruments:
Presentation
— Classification of Rights
Issues

Amendment to HKAS 39
Financial Instruments:
Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible
Hedged Items
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #7653k & Btz %

31 March 2011 ZZE——F%=A=+—H
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND 2 28@iBRREZEZEH (&)
DISCLOSURES (continued)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash B (BERUMBRE WEFASEHEEE
Assets to Owners #ABZE®) E
—BRBEITHR
HKFRS 5 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 5 ARER_ZTN\F BERUBREEIESH
included in Non-current Assets Held TREMRZ RIERFEXRBEE
Improvements to for Sale and Discontinued BRHIBHEE  RELUSLERE—
HKFRSs issued in Operations — Plan to sell Bz H#ENL FELER—FINE
October 2008 the controlling interest in a ERMBREE  AAHEEZZE
subsidiary BIZESH 2 55T i
Improvements to Amendments to a number of ZEFNFEENHE R_EENFLARM
HKFRSs 2009 HKFRSs issued in May 2009 WEEAzXE  HEREBRMBRE
3l H)
HK Interpretation 4 Amendment to HK BRREF4 BRRBEANHE-E
Amendment Interpretation 4 Leases — % (B3]) EEHEEL MY
Determination of Bz REZEET
the Length of Lease Term in
respect of Hong Kong Land
Leases
HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial BBREESH HB#HZZ 25— B
Statements — Classification VEky &2 40
by the Borrower of a BREHZ EHEH
Term Loan that Contains 278
a Repayment on Demand
Clause
Other than as further explained below regarding the BRIt EEE B B RELE
impact of HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised) and HK B3 (K1EE]) - BHEGEHER
Interpretation 5, the adoption of the new and revised 275 (BER]) KRB BEZREFSBSHR
HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these BN RMZE G RSB
financial statements. BEAUBMELENE R BRI

BEAMBHEZE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bt 5%

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised
HKFRSs are as follows:

(a) HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

and HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements

HKFRS 3 (Revised) introduces a number of changes
in the accounting for business combinations that
affect the initial measurement of non-controlling
interests, the accounting for transaction costs, the
initial recognition and subsequent measurement
of a contingent consideration and business
combinations achieved in stages. These changes
will impact the amount of goodwill recognised, the
reported results in the period that an acquisition
occurs, and future reported results.

HKAS 27 (Revised) requires that a change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary without
loss of control is accounted for as an equity
transaction. Therefore, such a change will have
no impact on goodwill, nor will it give rise to a
gain or loss. Furthermore, the revised standard
changes the accounting for losses incurred by
the subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a
subsidiary. Consequential amendments were made
to various standards, including, but not limited
to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS 12
Income Taxes, HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates, HKAS 28 Investments in
Associates and HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures.

The changes introduced by these revised standards
are applied prospectively and affect the accounting
of acquisitions, loss of control and transactions
with non-controlling interests after 1 April 2010.
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31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

(=

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND 22 €3 BEREEZER (&)
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) ERREESMHBHEZNZE

(b) HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of

Financial Statements - Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The interpretation requires a term loan that
contains a clause that gives the lender the
unconditional right to call the loan at any time
shall be classified in total by the borrower as
current in the statement of financial position.
This is irrespective of whether a default event has
occurred and notwithstanding any other terms and
maturity stated in the loan agreement.

Prior to the adoption of this interpretation, the
Group's term loans were classified in the statement
of financial position separately as to the current
and non-current liability portion based on the
maturity dates of repayment. The interpretation
has been applied by the Group retrospectively
and comparative amounts have been restated. In
addition, as a result of this change and as required
by HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements,
these financial statements also include a statement
of financial position as at 1 April 2009. Further
details of the loans are disclosed in note 31 to the
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bff =3

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements - Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

(continued)

The above change has had no effect on the
consolidated income statement. The effect on the
consolidated statement of financial position is

summarised as follows:

®Z

rrrrrr

o7 85 4 4o

Ve — =]

VAN
/%/T\IZI

m -

22t REEZEE (5)

(b) ERREESMHBHEZNZE
F-EXAHE S TREFER
1R 8 1 76 79 7E R B = 49 5 37
(&)

AR A Was &

LR

31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——% CZZT-TF C—ZTNE
=ZR=+—-H =A=+—H MA—A
FTET TET TET
CURRENT LIABILITIES pd
Increase in interest-bearing bank  Fff 8 2 $R47 R E b E L M
and other borrowings 89,998 89,552 97,471
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBRER
Decrease in interest-bearing bank I8 ZR7T R EMEFR D
and other borrowings 89,998 89,552 97,471

There was no impact on the net assets of the

Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#&#R < Btz

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND 22 € BERBEZE®H &)
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of (b) EERESESHYBHRENE
Financial Statements - Classification | -EFAEBETREFER
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that IREEKEIER B85
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause (%)

(continued)

The effect on the Company's statement of HRARRIMBRARTE
financial position is summarised as follows: BEEWT
31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—E——5 CT-TH CITTHF

=A=+—-HB =A=1+—H MA—H

THT FHT FET

CURRENT LIABILITIES RBRAR
Increase in interest-bearing Pt B 2 RITERIEM

bank borrowings - - 5,305
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBARK
Decrease in interest-bearing Mt 8 2 RITEFUR D

bank borrowings - - 5,305
There was no impact on the net assets of the HARARRIZEEFBELREXE-
Company.
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31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EHEAMERKERNHEEME

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements:

HKFRS 1 Amendment

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 12
Amendments

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 28 (Revised)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 ¥k

Amendment to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards —
Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters’

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-

time Adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting
Standards — Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal
of Fixed Dates for First-time
Adopters?

Amendments to HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets’?

Financial Instruments®

Consolidated Financial
Statements®
Joint Arrangements®

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities®
Fair Value Measurement®

Amendments to HKAS 12
Income Taxes — Deferred
Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets?

Related Party Disclosures?

Separate Financial Statements®

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures®

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-
Int 14 Prepayments of
a Minimum Funding
Requirement?

Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity
Instruments’
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #7653k & Btz %

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 which sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs primarily with
a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. The amendments to HKFRS 3 and HKAS 27
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2010, whereas the amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS
7, HKAS 1, HKAS 34 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011 although there are separate transitional provisions
for each standard.

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013

Further information about those changes that are
expected to significantly affect the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of
phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments. Recognition and
Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on the
basis of both the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of HKAS 39.

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H
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31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EHEAMERKERNHEEME

70

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to
HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”)
and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most
of the Additions were carried forward unchanged
from HKAS 39, while changes were made to the
measurement of financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the fair value option
("FVO"). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of
change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable
to changes in credit risk must be presented in other
comprehensive income (“OCI"). The remainder of the
change in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless

WEER (&)

R-F—FF+—F FBEGE
RERMEBHHREEAFIR
BIMEST (TRRIMEX ) PATm it 2 &)
BE IHEEEHERFINN
BERKRIERASHTARERAE
78 M 15 3R RIS 95 - AN BR D BN
EX TR BB BT ERFE39A
HRTE BERIREEERAAT
BREE (A TPEREER]BBEA
SR AFEIF SR BEEE
HeRMEAFEEZREEMS -

SERBREHSIENEBERAFEE
PeRMUARNEMEEKA (TEAt

N

presentation of the fair value change in respect of the EHWAL 27 -HBR R FEEH
liability’s credit risk in OCl would create or enlarge an REBERZ7 EREMEERAZ
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan BEGERBRCZEEATEESH

commitments and financial guarantee contracts which
have been designated under the FVO are scoped out of
the Additions.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its
entirety. Before this entire replacement, the guidance
in HKAS 39 on hedge accounting and impairment of
financial assets continues to apply. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2013.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #7653k & Btz %

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 were issued in December
2010 which introduce a rebuttable presumption
that deferred tax on investment property measured
using the fair value model in HKAS 40 /nvestment
Property should be determined in the basis that its
carrying amount will be recovered through sale. The
amendments also require that deferred tax on non-
depreciable assets measured using the revaluation
model in HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment,
should always be measured on a sale basis. As a result
of the amendments, Hong Kong (SIC)-21 /Income Taxes
— Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets will be
superseded once the amendments become effective.
The Group expects to adopt the Amendments to HKAS
12 retrospectively from 1 April 2012. The Group has
previously provided deferred tax on the fair value
gains on its investments properties assuming that the
carrying amount of these properties will be recovered
through use. The Group expects the adoption of these
amendments will result in changes in the accounting
policy and the Group's deferred tax liabilities and
income tax charges will be reduced respectively.

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definition
of related parties. It also provides for a partial
exemption of related party disclosure to government-
related entities for transactions with the same
government or entities that are controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the same
government. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 24
(Revised) from 1 April 2011 and the comparative related
party disclosures will be amended accordingly.

While the adoption of the revised standard will result
in changes in the accounting policy, the revised
standard is unlikely to have any impact on the related
party disclosures as the Group currently does not have
any significant transactions with government-related
entities.
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23 ERMGERKRERHELEME

WEHER (&)

RIB2010F 12 A BB ERE
125% (& 5]) Bl #E 7] X B &9 # 7€ -
KREYMHERAE BT ERFE405
ZEBAFEEER  EREHE
HEAEAREERKREME ZKEE
B mMEEABEIAEHEEEE:
ZELEHIBEETER T EFENE
BERFRAARBSSTERNE165Y
¥ HEESEPEHEARNUE
HEBEATE E % - HK(SIC)-21
B -FEHR-—BEHFEFTEEE
ERNWREEREE BSRRRITTE
HEE - REETBFMN2012F4A18
HKEABEGEERNE125: (BE]) o
AEEZARKAFEREMEZER
EHBEREEEREMHE 2 AFEK
wmmMEAREEEREAFREE:
AEEBARBZEERECE
AREEN AISAEEZELER
HBERFAEHD AR -

RIEEFTEB ST EAE24HREE R
BERETMER el BEER
T S 15 BT ) - A RHE SIS E X
TENEBETRZMEA R —BA
BHRERFRBEE S HENROFH
R AKEREANR_T——FNTA
—BRMBBGFEN R L2450 F
Dffn 2 L BRI ARRIEET

RAKET 2 ENBHEFHER
B RETZEBTaRE
BEACRSGEE AAKERAE
ERFEBEZHBREEAR
5 o

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E FX £ 71



72

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bt 5%

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010
sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 April
2011. There are separate transitional provisions for
each standard. While the adoption of some of the
amendments may result in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments are expected to
have a significant financial impact on the Group. Those
amendments that are expected to have a significant
impact on the Group's policies are as follows:

(@) HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies
that the amendments to HKFRS 7, HKAS 32
and HKAS 39 that eliminate the exemption
for contingent consideration do not apply to
contingent consideration that arose from business
combinations whose acquisition dates precede the
application of HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008).

In addition, the amendments limit the
measurement choice of non-controlling interests
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets to components
of non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity's net assets
in the event of liquidation. Other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by another HKFRS.

The amendments also added explicit guidance to
clarify the accounting treatment for non-replaced
and voluntarily replaced share-based payment
awards.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6325 Bt 33

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(b) HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Clarifies that an analysis of other comprehensive
income for each component of equity can be
presented either in the statement of changes in
equity or in the notes to the financial statements.

(c) HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements: Clarifies that the consequential
amendments from HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008)
made to HKAS 21, HKAS 28 and HKAS 31 shall be
applied prospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009 or earlier if HKAS 27 is
applied earlier.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company's income statement to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and
the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture and the
basis on which the assets are to be realised upon its
dissolution. The profits or losses from the joint venture’s
operations and any distributions of surplus assets are
shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their
respective capital contributions, or in accordance with
the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not
have unilateral control, but has joint control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral
or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly,
generally not less than 20% of the joint venture’s
registered capital and is in a position to exercise
significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or
indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture’s
registered capital and has neither joint control of,
nor is in a position to exercise significant influence
over, the joint venture.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Btz %

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is
subject to joint control, resulting in none of the
participating parties having unilateral control over the
economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group's investment in a jointly-controlled entity
is stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. The Group's share of the post-acquisition results
and reserves of the jointly-controlled entity is included
in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and the
jointly-controlled entity are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investment in the jointly-controlled entity,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group’s
share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated reserves, respectively.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Associates (continued)

Where the Group’s equity interest in an associate is
diluted by virtue of the additional issue of shares by
such associate (i.e., a deemed disposal), any gain or
loss arising from the deemed disposal, including the
realisation of the attributable reserves, is dealt with in
the Group's consolidated income statement.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations from 1 April 2010

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in
the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value as at the acquisition date through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Btz %

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Business combinations from 1 April 2010
(continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration which is deemed to be an
asset or liability is recognised in accordance with HKAS
39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration
is classified as equity, it shall not be remeasured until it
is finally settled within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the net identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Business combinations from 1 April 2010
(continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on
the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Business combinations prior to 1 April 2010
but after 1 April 2005

In comparison to the above-mentioned requirements
which were applied on a prospective basis, the
following differences applied to business combinations
prior to 1 April 2010:

Business combinations were accounted for using the
purchase method. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition formed part of the acquisition costs.
The non-controlling interest was measured at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

Business combinations achieved in stages were
accounted for as separate steps. Any additional
acquired share of interest did not affect previously
recognised goodwill.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7%k

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Business combinations prior to 1 April 2010
but after 1 April 2005 (continued)

When the Group acquired a business, embedded
derivatives separated from the host contract by the
acquiree were not reassessed on acquisition unless the
business combination resulted in a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modified the cash
flows that otherwise would have been required under
the contract.

Contingent consideration was recognised if, and only
if, the Group had a present obligation, the economic
outflow was more likely than not and a reliable estimate
was determinable. Subsequent adjustments to the
contingent consideration were recognised as part of
goodwill.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, financial assets, investment properties
and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 763k & Bt 5%

31 March 2011 =T ——%F=HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the income statement in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7%k

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by,
or is under common control with, the Group; (ii)
has an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control
over the Group;

the party is an associate;
the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 763k & Bt 5%

31 March 2011 =T ——%F=HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:
Hotel properties Over the lease terms
Leasehold land under

finance leases Over the lease terms
Buildings 2.5% to 3%
Leasehold improvements 5% to 15%
Plant and machinery 10%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15% to 20%
Motor vehicles 20% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7%k

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings
under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the income
statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income
statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 763k & Bt 5%

31 March 2011 =T ——%F=HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as
at the date of acquisition. The useful life of intangible
asset is assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible asset with finite life is subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets represent the rights to purchase pre-
determined lots of land pursuant to legal binding
agreements. Intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Intangible assets are amortised to properties under
development as land costs in accordance with the
future acquisition patterns of these pre-determined lots
of land within the unexpired periods of the agreements.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to the income
statement so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7%k

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and comprise land costs,
construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees
and other costs directly attributable to such properties
incurred during the development period.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond the normal operating cycle. On completion, the
properties are transferred to properties held for sale.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 763k & Bt 5%

31 March 2011 =T ——%F=HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-
sale financial investments, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank
balances, time deposits, an other receivable, debtors
and deposits, amounts due from a director and non-
controlling shareholders, amounts due from associates,
and quoted and unquoted financial instruments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Btz %

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement. These net fair value changes do not include
any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess
whether the intent to sell them in the near term is
still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade
these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable
future significantly changes, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
The reclassification from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss to loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity
investments depends on the nature of the assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

2AFESRECHE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance
income in the income statement. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the income statement in
other expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
securities. Equity investments classified as available-for-
sale are those which are neither classified as held for
trading nor designated at fair value through profit or
loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the income statement in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in
the income statement in other expenses and removed
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve. Interest and dividends earned are reported as
interest income and dividend income, respectively and
are recognised in the income statement as other income
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Btz %

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant
for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial
assets whether the ability and intention to sell them in
the near term are still appropriate. When the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets and management’s intent to do so significantly
changes in the foreseeable future, the Group may elect
to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted
when the financial assets meet the definition of loans
and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability
to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to
maturity. The reclassification to the held-to-maturity
category is permitted only when the entity has the
ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of the
financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-
sale category, any previous gain or loss on that asset
that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the investment using
the effective interest rate. Any difference between the
new amortised cost and the expected cash flows is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded
in equity is reclassified to the income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Btz %

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

2AFESRECHE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either
directly or through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
the income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Btz %

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these
assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the income statement, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment below its cost. The determination of what
is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the income statement — is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the income statement. Increases in
their fair value after impairment are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEEHHECEME (8)

94

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, and loans and borrowings. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at
initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade creditors,
sundry creditors, accruals and deposits received,
amounts due to directors and non-controlling
shareholders, interest-bearing loans and borrowings,
and finance lease payables.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term. This category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the income statement. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in the income
statement does not include any interest charged on
these financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Btz %

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded
in active markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price
for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For
financial instruments where there is no active market,
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the
current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis;
and option pricing models or other valuation models.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Btz %

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent
measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as
interest rate swaps to hedge its interest rate risk. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair
value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the income statement,
except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value on an individual property basis.
Cost includes all development expenditure, applicable
borrowing costs and other direct costs attributable to
such properties. Net realisable value is estimated by the
directors by reference to the prevailing market price.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Btz %

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with interests in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with interests in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an asset, the
fair value is credited to a deferred income account and
is released to the income statement on a systematic
basis over the useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 5/ 7% 3 &5 Ffd 5%
31 March 2011 ZZE——F%=A=+—H
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24X EERBRCEE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition & =30
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the 52N ££ B o] JE B & E K 25 0 T Uk 2%
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when A EREME S B U258 iR T A E
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following FEARR:
bases:
(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks (a) SHEEMIDEEEERHEAKX

and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b) income from the restaurant and food businesses,
at the point of sale to customers;

(c) income from the sale of completed properties, on
the exchange of legally binding unconditional sales
contracts;

(d) rental income, in the period in which the
properties are let out and on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms;

(e) hotel and other service income, in the period in
which such services are rendered; and

(f) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which
are given in note 37 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 3k 25 Bt 33

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-
settled transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

2AFESRECHE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in central pension schemes (the “CP Schemes”)
operated by respective local municipal governments.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their covered payroll to the CP Schemes
to fund their benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the CP Schemes is to pay the
ongoing required contributions under the CP Schemes.
Contributions under the CP Schemes are charged
to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the CP Schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Btz %

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences are taken
to the income statement. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
associates and jointly-controlled entity are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period and their income
statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate
component of equity. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
income statement.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Btz %

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments - Group as
lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group.

3. EX®
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &k

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties (continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If
these portions could be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts
for the portions separately. If the portions could not
be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an
individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

Classification between investment properties
and properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and
properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Judgement is made by management
in determining whether a property is designated as
an investment property or a property held for sale.
The Group considers its intention of holding the
properties at the early development stage of the related
properties. During the course of construction, the
related properties under construction are accounted
for as properties under development if the properties
are intended for sale after its completion, whereas, the
properties are accounted for as investment properties
under construction if the properties are intended to
be held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Upon completion of the properties, the properties held
for sale are transferred to completed properties held
for sale and are stated at cost, while the properties
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation are
transferred to investment properties and are subject to
revaluation at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7%k

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2011 was
HK$40,111,000 (2010: HK$40,111,000). More details
are given in note 17.

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

The Group engaged independent professionally
qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the
investment properties of the Group at the end of the
reporting period. The valuations were carried out as
follows:

In the valuation, the valuers consider information from a
variety of sources, including:

(a) direct comparison approach and made reference to
the recent transactions for similar premises in the
proximity;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties (continued)

(b) discounted cash flow analysis which discounts
the projected free cash flows generated from the
properties at an appropriate market rate of return
to arrive at the present values of the properties;
and

(c) a combination of the market and depreciated
replacement cost approach in assessing the land
portion of the properties and the buildings and
structures standing on the land respectively.

The carrying amount of investment properties of the
Group as at 31 March 2011 was HK$1,346,196,000
(2010: HK$1,238,598,000).

Estimation of fair value of other intangible
assets

The Group engaged independent professionally
qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the
intangible assets of the Group at the date of acquisition
of a subsidiary. Such valuation was based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. The
carrying amount of other intangible assets of the Group
as at 31 March 2011 was HK$399,732,000 (2010:
HK$533,559,000).

Corporate income tax (“CIT"”)

The Group is subject to income taxes in the People
Republic of China (“PRC"”). As a result of the fact
that certain matters relating to the income taxes have
not been confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective
estimate and judgement based on currently enacted tax
laws, regulations and other related policies are required
in determining the provision for income taxes to be
made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts originally recorded, the
differences will impact on the income tax and tax
provisions in the period in which the differences realise.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Btz %

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Land appreciation tax (“LAT"”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision
for LAT is based on management’'s best estimates
according to the understanding of the requirements set
forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The
actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by
the tax authorities upon the completion of the property
development projects. As the Group has not finalised its
LAT calculation and payments with the tax authorities
for certain of its property development projects, the
final outcome could be different from the amounts that
were initially recorded.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible
assets are tested for impairment annually and at
other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there
are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs to sell is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows for the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EXEstHERMAE (&)

112

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised tax losses at 31 March 2011 was
HK$8,634,000 (2010: HK$7,457,000). Further details
are contained in note 33 to the financial statements.

Recognition and allocation of construction
cost on properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as
properties under development during the construction
stage and will be transferred to properties held for
sale upon completion. An apportionment of these
costs will be recognised in the income statement upon
the recognition of the sales of completed properties.
Before the final settlement of the development costs
and other costs relating to the sale of the completed
properties, these costs are accrued by the Group based
on management’s best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide the
development projects into phases. Specific costs directly
related to the development of a phase are recorded
as the cost of such phase. Costs that are common to
phases are allocated to individual phases based on the
estimated saleable area of the entire project.

Where the final settlement of costs and the related cost
allocation is different from the initial estimates, any
increase or decrease in the development costs and other
costs would affect the profit or loss in future years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Btz %

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the restaurant, food and hotel segment is engaged
in restaurant and hotel operations and the
provision of food and beverage services;

(b) the property investment and development segment
comprises the development and sale of properties
and the leasing of commercial and residential
premises; and

(c) the “others” segment comprises, principally,
investment holding and other operations.

Management monitors the results of its operating
segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before
tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except that bank interest income, interest
income from an other receivable, finance costs as
well as corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.

4.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 76 3k 25 Bf 33

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 5 ¥k

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BESEEH (&)
(continued)
Property
Restaurant, investment
Year ended BE_B——F food and and
31 March 2011 =A=+-H hotel development Others Total
it B MERE
BRRERE RBER Hit i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue: SEMEA
Sales to external customers HETHARP 579,683 113,157 - 692,840
Intersegment sales NHEEE 830 5,986 - 6,816
699,656
Reconciliation: B
Elimination of intersegment Wfﬁ’”ﬁ A2 HER
sales (6,816)
Total revenue A 692,840
Segment results SBRE 110,983 178,612 (152) 289,443
Reconciliation: W
Bank interest income fEﬁﬂJ 8 Hﬁl)\ 981
Interest income from Hip R 2
an other receivable FEWA 686
Corporate and unallocated REEIDZEEBR
expenses tEZ M (35,003)
Finance costs HBRY (31,857)
Profit before tax BR 754 A 42 A 224,250
Other segment HuoBEH:
information:
Share of profits and losses of ~ FE{EEE & A 8% | &
associates BiE - 74,712 - 74,712
Gain on deregistration of GIENGE- ¢ Rl
subsidiaries gy 22,735 - - 22,735
Impairment of trade debtors RS 2R E 114 6,425 - 6,539
Recognition of prepaid land BREMLEEHRE
lease payment 385 - - 385
Depreciation e
- segment -nH 29,452 8,559 - 38,011
- unallocated v 1,427
39,438
Investments in associates REBE DT - 217,056 158 217,214
Capital expenditure BAX
- segment - NH 54,459 11,132 - 65,591
- unallocated o 606
66,197*
3 Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * B E T BN BER
equipment. & o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#&#R Btz

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

N\

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

HESWEH (8

Property
Restaurant, investment
Year ended BE_2-TF food and and
31 March 2010 =A=1+—-H hotel  development Others Total
B MERE
o MBE RER Hit Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAET FAET
Segment revenue: SBEA
Sales to external customers HETINARP 517,362 95,818 - 613,180
Intersegment sales D EfE 2 SHE 1,717 5,717 = 7,434
620,614
Reconciliation: e
Elimination of intersegment ki ol= 1
sales HERE (7,434)
Total revenue s A 613,180
Segment results PHEE 74,059 408,594 19,627 502,280
Reconciliation: W
Bank interest income fﬁﬁﬂ S HﬁU\ 867
Interest income from an other ﬁﬂr%l K2 S A
receivable 174
Corporate and unallocated ReBl D HEBR
expenses PEYH (35,712)
Finance costs HBRL (31,092)
Profit before tax BRER AT a R 436,517
Other segment Kt A EH -
information:
Share of profits and losses of BBt & A7)
associates B R EE — 48,163 — 48,163
Gain on deemed disposal of ~ BR{EHEBE AT
an associate Wiz - 330,717 - 330,717
Gain on deregistration of i L= NGTE G pvd
a subsidiary Wz 943 - - 943
Impairment of trade debtors U Z RE 606 3,342 - 3,948
Recognition of prepaid land BRBMN L EEHE
lease payment 378 - - 378
Depreciation e
- segment -nH 27,251 9,226 - 36,477
- unallocated KA 1,497
37,974
Investments in associates BENRER - 17,894 235 18,129
Capital expenditure BARXH
- segment -nH 23,302 6,432 - 29,734
- unallocated v 304
30,038*
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and & B MH 6 fffﬁﬁﬁ%;%‘ BE R
equipment. R BT 1 1 B 5 H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 76 3k 25 Bf 33

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

4. BESWEH ()

i 1 R E

(a) BHHIFREFZHA

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000

—E——5F —ZT—FF

T#ET FET

Hong Kong BB 44,174 43,452
Mainland China AR K BE 648,666 569,728
692,840 613,180

The revenue information above is based on the

location of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

EARAE B TIRER P T

Z b [& 1 5E
(b) FikBIEE

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000

—E——F _—_ZT-ZTF

THET FAET

Hong Kong BB 150,814 127,402
Mainland China [ K B 3,137,421 2,936,456
3,288,235 3,063,858

The non-current asset information above is based
on the location of assets and excludes financial

instruments.

No customer accounted for 10%

or more of the

Group's total revenue for the years ended 31 March

2010 and 2011.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 3k 25 Bt 33

REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents
gross restaurant and food business income and net
invoiced value of goods sold, net of relevant business
tax and allowances for trade discounts; income from
the rendering of services; proceeds from the sale

(=

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

5. k&

WaBIHERAKB 2 255 15
FREERRMEFBRABBENRD
EERBERFEABMBEAEEHLE
ST RERB WA - HEY
FWas kBRI 2 WA BE R

of properties; and gross rental income received and JE U BR 5K
receivable during the year.
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA :
Group
FEH
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —ZT—IZF
FHET FAT
Income from the hotel, BIE - BERRMLER
restaurant and food WA
businesses 579,683 517,362
Gross rental income MHe WA LR 58,840 52,388
Proceeds from the sale of HEMERE
properties 54,317 43,430
692,840 613,180
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRIRmIAF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after AEEBRBRAEFE MK, (5
charging/(crediting): A
Group
*5HE
2011 2010
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F Z—ZT—ZF
Bt 5 FE&T FHET
Cost of inventories sold and BEEFERERHREZ
services provided B AN 398,758 330,632
Depreciation e 14 39,438 37,974
Recognition of prepaid land NI EERE
lease payment R 16 385 378
Release of goodwill upon sale  HEDERERYWE Y
of developed properties* R 17 - 153
Lease payments under FRETHREFRE
operating leases for land and HAOMHEE
buildings:
Minimum lease payments XEMEE 25,335 22,761
Contingent rents AT 1,765 1,684
27,100 24,445
Auditors’ remuneration % S4B & B 2,790 2,523
Employee benefit expense EERAFAX
(excluding directors’ (T BEMESZ
remuneration (note 8))*: BEEPe) -
Wages and salaries TERF® 92,625 86,774
Equity-settled share option RS E B
expense X 368 -
Pension scheme RIKREETEIH K
contributions (FEEHETE)
(defined contribution
scheme) 8,405 8,554
101,398 95,328
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 3k 25 Bt 33

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after

(=

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

6. FRMAAEF (&)

AEBBRBADENE MR, (5

charging/(crediting): (continued) A) o (88)
Group
*TEH
2011 2010
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
—E——F5 ZZZT-ZFF
B 5 TERT FAET
Foreign exchange differences, JEX Z%FE
net 10,346 2,516
Impairment of trade debtors FEW FORE 27 6,539 3,948
Fair value loss/(gain) on B A EHERR
financial assets at REZFREZ
fair value through profit or TREERATE FHE
loss, net 71 (908)
Changes in fair value of KREMEATEES:
investment properties, net F R 15 (98,874) (26,186)
Fair value loss on MTETIEZz RAFEBD
derivative instruments — ¥R ER SN
— transactions not qualifying
as hedges 2,927 _
Gross rental income Me WA LR (58,840) (52,388)
Direct operating expenses REDFEHSWAZ
(including repairs and EEREEYH
maintenance) arising on (BREERRE)
rental-earning investment
properties 1,910 1,623
(56,930) (50,765)
Bank interest income |ITH B WA (981) (867)
Interest income from an H b Wk 2 FILE A
other receivable (686) (174)
Dividend income from available- AIt4E FHRER S
for-sale listed investments N (17,779) —
Gain on disposal of an HEHIFERE 2 W=
available-for-sale investment (6) (20,587)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEWE BEK&E
items of property, (&) EE
plant and equipment (3,620) 29
Write-off of items of property, M5 %  BE KX E
plant and equipment 14 - 2,354
Gain on deregistration of B B 2 BB 5 1 2 W s
subsidiaries 39 (22,735) (943)
Gain on deemed disposal of RIELE—FEBERRZ
an associate g - (330,717)

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E FX £
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 6.

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting): (continued)

* Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary whose principal
activity is property investment and development was released by
reference to the sale of the related developed properties. The
amount was included in “Other expenses, net” on the face of

the consolidated income statement.

# Inclusive of an amount of HK$71,316,000 (2010:
HK$67,471,000) classified under cost of inventories sold and

services provided.

FRIgAEF ()

AEBBRBADENE MR, (5
A) (&)

* WE—MNBARELZHE HEE
EBRYMERERER NHERRD
HRYEREL  WBURE BENGS
Was kA [ EmmEx 58] -

# HbhpESEAMETE RIRERE
771,316,000 0 (=T — T 4F :
67,471,000/ 7T ) °

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MBRAX
Group
*x5KHE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F5 —Z-ZF
FERT FAET
Interest in respect of: AR
Bank loans, overdrafts WITER BEXR
and other loans wholly BERAFRNEHE
repayable within five years BZHMER
or on demand 27,510 30,488
Bank loans not wholly RITERTERAFA
repayable within five years THEE 5,220 4,117
Finance leases & A A 4 45
Total interest expense on B BERRIEATE
financial liabilities AEzeRAGEZ
not at fair value through FMEMZRE
profit or loss 32,734 34,650
Less: Finance costs capitalised  J& : & A&A{LF & (877) (3,558)
31,857 31,092
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Btz %

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of the Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:

(=

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

EFN®

BEEBEHAXIMERAGES
EWARB (T EWRA ) REEAF
BHE161EHEEESEME T :

Group

x5E
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$000
“E——5%F _—_T—TF
TET FAET
Fees ke 300 300

Other emoluments: HA <2 -

Salaries and allowances ¥ KOER 8,169 7,143
Bonuses paid and payable* BT R ERTEAL* 7,949 12,513
Equity-settled share option expense  JARR{D &5 B R AR = 116 -
Pension scheme contributions R RET S 178 178
16,412 19,834
16,712 20,134
o Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to & RRARMITESAIER ZEARKS

bonus payments which are approved by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the Group’s current year profit
and individual performance.

During the year, certain directors were granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option scheme of the Company, further
details of which are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options which has
been recognised in the income statement over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above directors’
remuneration disclosures.

MWEE S ERSEREEE FEN
BE{E A KRB MEE

RAFE ETEZTAHAKEHZ
AR - ¥ AN A B B R AT S R B
P - SIS BN B 5 ¥R 5 Y 7E37 o
ZEBREZATE(ERESH
AWBERRTHER) HER T B B
B MEAXRFEEMBRE 2K
BENEERELLAEEMESIRE-

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E FX £
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

directors during the year were as follows:

8. EXM& (&)

(a) BIFMITESE

REREENBILIFEATESRR
sy U

Fees
HK$'000
e
FET

2011 ———%5
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles BT LE 100
Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam BB 100
Mr. Wong See King =RBLAE 100
300
Fees
HK$'000
e
FAT

2010 —2—FF
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles B EAE 100
Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam Bk 100
Mr. Wong See King =mRBLE 100
300

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the

year (2010: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 7% %k 25 Fff 7%
31 March 2011 —ZE——f=A=+—H
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EFE& (&)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) BITEERIEMITESE
directors
Equity-
Bonuses settled Pension
Salaries and paid and  share option scheme Total
Fees  allowances payable expense contributions remuneration
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EffR  HBRRER e
e ReRal EREL  BEREXH g Hawd
TERL TERL TERL TR TR TAL

2011 -2—-f
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung SNBREE - 2N 2,150 - 52 4474
Mr. Ma Kai Yum SNicE - 1,963 2,150 - 52 4,165
Mr. Ng Yan Kwong REfEE - 1,693 1333 58 50 3,134
Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John* SRR L - 1,484 2316 58 12 3,870
Mr. Yuen Wai Man* RENSEE - 757 - - 12 769
- 8,169 7,949 116 178 16,412
2010 8-3%
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung SNELE - 2,263 5,005 - 52 7320
Mr. Ma Kai Yum SN9EE - 1,729 5,005 - 52 6,786
Mr. Ng Yan Kwong REfEE - 1,691 2,503 S 50 4,244
Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John* SEHA L - 645 - - 12 657
Mr. Yuen Wai Man* REXGE - 740 - - 12 75
- 7,068 12,513 - 178 19,759
Non-executive director: FHAES:
Mr. Yip Hing Chung** ERRLEH - 75 - - - 75
- 7143 12,513 - 178 19,834
3 Appointed as executive directors on 25 May 20009. 3 RZETZNFRAZTHAEZR
FHITES -
**  Resigned as a non-executive director on 28 August 2009. 3 RZZZNAFNAZ+TN\BEE
FERMITESBS -
There was no arrangement under which a director RERBBEEAHBEARES
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration MEHFREREENE -

during the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES'’ 9. AfuFMERZER
REMUNERATION
The five highest paid employees of the Group during AFEEzAfNE=RHEEBRREAN
the year included five (2010: four) directors, details —E-TF M) ESE BN
of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. FEEINN EXHFES cREF - H
Details of the remuneration of the remaining one non- BR—UFESNESFEENHES
director, highest paid employee for the prior year were BT
as follows:
Group
*5KE
2010
HK$'000
—ET-FTF
FH&ET
Salaries and allowances e &oRRL 82
Bonuses paid and payable BT R ERTEAT 619
701
The remuneration of the one non-director, highest paid REF —UFEFHNESH
employees for the prior year fell within the band of & B % M % E %&500,000/8 TE
HK$500,000 to HK$1,000,000. 1,000,000/% 7T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 3k 25 Bt 33

(=

31 March 2011 ZZE——F%=A=+—H
10. INCOME TAX 10. R
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate BEANEGEBHDIBREBEFENRRES
of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable Z A hET E R B A IR B E16.5%5t
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes B(ZZE—ZFF:16.5%) cHBEK
on profits assessable in Mainland China have been e JE &R 5t A1) 2 B TE Th AR 4R B K
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in Mainland P2 BITMEGTEBAE -
China.
Group
x%H
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —EZ-ZF
TFHET FAET
Current — Hong Kong B —&E
Charge for the year REFHIE X H 701 360
Current — Mainland China BV HR — A B K e
CIT PEMEHR 27,753 16,328
LAT TR ER - 545
Underprovision in prior years VAR [ B RR B 4,031 -
Deferred tax (note 33) BT IA (PRE33) 16,361 2,039
Total tax charge for the year REEHBBIAZ 48,846 19,272
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10. INCOME TAX (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries
is domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax
rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e.,
the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as

10. Fif8 1R (&)

T8 75 32 i 1 B PR R DA B AUE AR
BEERERHE  UARAIRHEE
22 M /B8 1% A 2 5 1 3 A B % A AT
Moz BB R EBRA R WA
BETEHER (MREERE) BE
MR ZLE T

follows:
Group
x50
2011 2010
—2——% —T-%F
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
FTET TAETL
Profit before tax BR % A1 7 224,250 436,517
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory 1RE & A EH Kt &
tax rate A 37,001 16.5 72,025 16.5
Higher tax rate of specific HEEEENREZ
provinces in Mainland China = 6,059 2.7 5,217 1.2
Adjustments in respect of REFENEHHE
current tax of previous RBE
periods 4,031 1.8 - -
Profits and losses attributable ~ FE{hEE & AR &,/
to associates (E#) (12,327) (5.5) (7,947) (1.8)
Income not subject to tax DA 2 WA (13,990) (6.2) (68,575) (15.7)
Expenses not deductible for tax  FAfEF{E
1Rz ER 17,613 7.9 14,712 33
LAT THIEER - - (1,004) (0.2)
Tax losses utilised from previous B EIFEBAHM 2
periods HEER (3,722) (1.7) (460) (0.1)
Tax losses not recognised AERZBHEBE 14,181 6.3 5,304 1.2
Tax charge at the Group's BRAEEERB X
effective rate EeHBERAT 48,846 21.8 19,272 4.4

In the prior year, the share of tax attributable to an
associate amounting to HK$23,949,000 was included
in “Share of profits and losses of associates” in the
consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Btz %

11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
parent for the year ended 31 March 2011 includes a
profit of HK$29,241,000 (2010: HK$34,065,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company (note 38(b)).

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

M. BAFREBARGERR

HE_ZT——F=ZA=+—HLHF
B BRARBEEAEBGLESRFE
FE% 729,241,000 T (ZE—F
£ :34,065,000/8 7T) ' ERAR A
M mEh AREIE (M:E38(D)) -

12. DIVIDEND 12. R
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——5 —ZT—ZF
FHT FHET
Proposed final — HK2 cents (2010: moAH - g R E BB
HK2 cents) per ordinary share _—g TF - GR2BM) 22,882 22,882

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 1,144,122,328 (2010:
1,144,122,328) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have
been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise
of all share options into ordinary shares.

AERBZEBZRARBAFARA
BERREGARZRRBFEAS £
-

BAFRERERAARELS
R EF

13.

EREABRINDIBREAFESA
TBERERE ARG RF
NEBTEAER ZMEFHH
1,144,122 3281&(_? TF:
1,144,122,328Hx)

ﬁ%%%@ﬂﬁﬁ%KﬁEi@ﬂ
EERERE ANBEENGTE -H
ﬁﬁh%%%z 3B A N RE S 15 B
IR EERERBRNMFEAZA
FEHRTEBREE  ARBERK
BROESEBRIZEHEETN
BITH B AR N8

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X %

127



128

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 76 3k 25 Bf 33

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

13. BARREKRERAAELS

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BB (&)
PARENT (continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share BEREXRBANREERANGEE
are based on: JiNE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E——%F —E-TF
FTET FHETT
Earnings 2%
Profit attributable to ordinary RARFAEEREREF 2
equity holders of the parent, BAREBRERES A
used in the basic earnings per FEAG 5 A
share calculation 163,209 399,695
Number of shares
B ® A
2011 2010
—T——% —T-TF
Shares Bin
Weighted average number of ordinary FAARFESTR
shares in issue during BEREMZ BE#LT
the year used in the basic earnings per TR T
share calculation 1,144,122,328 1,144,122,328

Effect of dilution — weighted average
number of ordinary shares:
Share options
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14. PROPERTY,

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 871

31 March 2011

_ﬁ__qz

—=

14. X - BERRIG

15 ¥ &5 P
=A=+-H

N\

il

Group xEH
Furniture,
Hotel Land and Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor  Construction
properties buildings  improvements machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Y BER Rl RE
AENE THREF nERE e RG E1] ERIE #an
TR TAL TAT TEr TAL TAT Thr TEL
31 March 2011 Z8—%=ZA=+-A
At 31 March 2010 and R-ZZ-ZF
at 1 April 2010: =R=t-Bk
RZE-F4MA-R:
Cost or valuation REAEREE 326,627 78,806 90,788 23,901 68,784 17,49 2,050 608,452
Accumulated depreciation ZiMERAE
and impairment (22,927) (20,662) (75,048) (5332) (44,894) (9.997) - (178,860)
Net carrying amount REFE 303,700 58,144 15,740 18,569 23,890 7,499 2,050 429,592
At 1 April 2010, net of R=Z-ZFNWA—-R"
accumulated depreciation BB 2 TE RAE
and impairment 303,700 58,144 15,740 18,569 23,890 7,499 2,050 429,592
Additions hE 44,477 = 5,209 3,441 3,762 2,431 6,877 66,197
Depreciation provided during ~ F AT E & {E (Hiz6)
the year (note 6) (10,030 (3,502) (13,113) (2,292) (8,261) (2,240) = (39,438)
Disposals he - (3,648) - (109) (38) (405) = (4,200)
Transfers &% - 7,755 - - - = (7,755) -
Exchange realignment ERAZ 13,148 1,416 432 369 843 265 62 16,535
At 31 March 2011, net of RZB——F
accumulated depreciation =A=t+-8"
and impairment BB 25 47E R 351,295 60,165 8,268 19,978 20,196 7,550 1,234 468,686
At 31 March 2011: RZZ——%
=A=+-H:
Cost or valuation REABHEE 385,423 83,704 99,736 27,624 74,503 18,934 1,234 691,158
Accumulated depreciation ZAMERAE
and impairment (34,128) (23,539) (91,468) (7,646) (54,307) (11,384) - (222,472)
Net carrying amount REFE 351,295 60,165 8,268 19,978 20,196 7,550 1,234 468,686
TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E fX £
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 76 3k 25 Bf 33

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 9% BERRMW (&)
(continued)
Group xEMH
Furniture,
Hotel Land and Leasehold Plantand  fixtures and Motor  Construction
properties buildings improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g RBER i BE
B LHRHT hREE L] R L] ERIB LY
T Tin T Tin Tin Thr Tin TiEn
31 March 2010 Z2-Z£ZRZ+-H
At 1 April 2009: RZZENFNA—-H
Cost or valuation RRAESEE 312,303 77,609 121,415 21,209 70,412 16,193 = 619,141
Accumulated depreciation 23t ERiEfE
and impairment (13,679) (18,350) (94,608) (3,655) (41,940) (8,252) - (180,484)
Net carrying amount EmFE 298,624 59,259 26,807 17,554 28,472 7,941 = 438,657
At 1 April 2009, net of RZZENFEA-H-
accumulated depreciation  BHREHFTERRE
and impairment 298,624 59,259 26,807 17,554 28472 7,941 - 438,657
Additions HE 13,282 1,094 4,875 2,695 4217 1,769 2,046 30,038
Depreciation provided FRITERE (fitik6)
during the year (note 6) (9,186) 2,312) (14,355) (1,668) (8,249) (2,204) - (37,974)
Disposals HE = = (10) (20) (20) = = (50)
Write-off M = = (1,642) = (682) (30) = (2,354)
Exchange realignment EXRE 980 103 65 8 9 23 4 1,275
At31 March 2010, netof ~ R=ZT—Z%
accumulated depreciation =R=+-H"
and impairment BB RHTE RAE 303,700 58,144 15,740 18,569 23,890 7,499 2,050 429,592
At 31 March 2010: RZZE-%F
=H=1=H:
Cost or valuation RRAESEE 326,627 78,806 90,788 23,901 68,784 17,49 2,050 608,452
Accumulated depreciation 23t EREfE
and impairment (22,927) (20,662) (75,048) (5332) (44,894) (9,997) - (178,860)
Net carrying amount EmFaE 303,700 58,144 15,740 18,569 23,890 7,499 2,050 429,592




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Btz %

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The net carrying amount of the Group’s items of
property, plant and equipment held under finance
leases included in the total amounts of motor vehicles
at 31 March 2010, amounted to HK$882,000.

Certain of the Group's leasehold land and buildings
were revalued at 31 March 1995, by independent
professionally qualified valuers at an open market value
based on their existing use. Since 1995, no further
valuations of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings
have been carried out, as the Group has relied upon the
exemption granted under the transitional provisions in
paragraph 80A of HKAS 16, from the requirement to
carry out further revaluations of its property, plant and
equipment which were stated at valuation at that time.

Had these leasehold land and buildings been carried
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, their total carrying amount
would have been approximately HK$1,556,000 (2010:
HK$1,658,000 (as restated)).

At 31 March 2011, certain of the Group's
property, plant and equipment with a net carrying
amount of approximately HK$380,192,000 (2010:
HK$338,113,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 44).

The analysis of the cost/valuation of the Group’s land
and buildings and hotel properties by geographical
location and lease term is as follows:

14. 9% BERKE (&)

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

)
/

piili;

RZE—ZTF=A=+—H K&
BREREMELFENERREF
{8 /2882,000/ JT °

BYEXRGEMDRREARZE
EUEENNEELHREFTR
—ANAEF=A=+—RHZ2AM
BETHEE-BE—ANEF KA&H
ZHETHFEFIESGE RNR
HEAR SEFEEEEFMA
SR L BB EAFIHRT S
B0AE 2 BRI T B A HETTEH
Ef-BZBEREYEZIHE T
MEFZHBE

WAEBRKEGHZHELHRETF
MK AEREFITECEBEARK:
@ ER B B FE 4 /1,556,000 7T

—E—FTHF 1,658,000 7T (K E
) ) e

R—ZE——F=A=+—H K&
B XA BRE F(E4380,192,0008 T
(ZZ—=4%:338,113,000/87C) Z
ETUE BB KR ERR - LA
B—MIBITEE (HE44) -

AEERMENEEFHE D 2+
i N AR T BB TR W) 3 B PR AN B S fih
BEawmT:

Group
r. 3. |
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —ZT-FTF
TET FAETT
Medium term leasehold land and REBHEEZ TR
buildings situated in Hong Kong, BFP ALY
at 1995 valuation B—NNTFEHKE 23,991 23,991
Medium term leasehold land and AR B R BE 2 4 &
buildings situated in Mainland BFHREAELY  EAAE
China, at cost 59,713 54,815
Medium term hotel properties B AR B K B 2 OB T ) 2
situated in Mainland China, at cost REIFR A IR AN E 385,423 326,627
469,127 405,433
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

The Group's investment properties, of which
HK$1,181,857,000 (2010: HK$1,100,343,000) are
held under medium term leases and HK$164,339,000
(2010: HK$138,255,000) under long term leases, were
revalued on 31 March 2011 by Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuers, at open market value, based on their existing
use. The investment properties are leased to third
parties under operating leases, further summary details
of which are included in note 42(a) to the financial
statements.

At 31 March 2011, the Group’'s investment
properties with a value of HK$1,146,102,000 (2010:
HK$1,129,133,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 44).

Further particulars of the Group's investment properties
are included on pages 196 to 198.
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. BYER
Group
*5KE
2011 2010
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
—E——F —T-FF
Bt 5E FHERT FHET
Carrying amount at beginning ~ RFE¥ Z BREE
of year, at valuation RiGE 1,238,598 1,211,768
Net profit from fair value BAFERAEZFEA
adjustments 6 98,874 26,186
Exchange realignment ME 5 38 B 8,724 644
Carrying amount at 31 March, ®R=ZA=+—HZ
at valuation FREE REE 1,346,196 1,238,598
Analysis by geographical R Bl 5
location:
Hong Kong BB 104,134 87,217
Mainland China LICIPN 1,242,062 1,151,381
1,346,196 1,238,598

B BEMEMBETEENGE
MERARERBERGR CEES
EAEEZHHEERARNEED
¥ RN _ZE——F=ZA=+—HH
NHETEDBIA1,181,857,000/8 7T
(ZZ—=4:1,100,343,000 7T )
164,339,000 Bt (ZZE—ZF:
/138,255,000 70) - I EMETY
EEEHERTE=ZF FBEH
7 B 75 3 25 BT 52 42(a) A ©

R-TE——F=A=+—BEE
4#81E1,146,102,0008 0 (Z T —F
£:1,129,133,000/8 7T ) IR & W)
¥R - EAREAEEME—K
RITEE 2 ER (HFF44) -

ARBZBENIAREHIINSE
1961985 °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Btz %

31 March 2011 ZZE——F%=A=+—H
16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENT 16. Aff Lt MBEERTR
Group
r- 3 .|
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F5 C—ZZET-FF
TERT FAET
Carrying amount at beginning of year R FE ¥ REE 13,546 13,880
Recognised during the year (note 6) RERER (KHizE6) (385) (378)
Exchange realignment bE X 73 & 539 44
Carrying amount at 31 March R=RA=+—HKEE 13,700 13,546
Current portion included BNERER {0 B 151 FE U BR 3K
in debtors, deposits and EeRENFEZA
prepayments (394) (379)
Non-current portion FEBNER &L 17 13,306 13,167
The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is MELHAPHBELORE ARF
held under a medium term lease. BN
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

17. GOODWILL 17. 08
Group XEH
HK$°000
FAET
At 31 March 2009: RZZETZNF=ZA=+—8:
Cost DN 45,062
Accumulated release upon sale of HECREMEZRFTEL
developed properties (1,135)
Accumulated impairment RETRE (3,663)
Net carrying amount BREDVFE 40,264
Cost at 1 April 2009, net of accumulated RZEZNFHA-—BZHAE-
impairment and release R EHRVE & 40,264
Release during the year upon sale of FARHEEERMERED
developed properties (note 6)* (FFaE6) * (153)
At 31 March 2010 N_ZE—ZEF=A=+—H 40,111
At 31 March 2010: N_E—TF=A=+—8:
Cost DN 45,062
Accumulated release upon sale of HEDREMEZRFTEL
developed properties (1,288)
Accumulated impairment ZEEHRE (3,663)
Net carrying amount AREDF(E 40,111
Cost at 1 April 2010 and 31 March 2011, RZE—ZTFWMA—AK
net of accumulated impairment and —E——F=ZA=+—HKAL"
release BRET R E KRBT 40,111
At 31 March 2011: RN-_E——F=H=+—8:
Cost DN 45,062
Accumulated release upon sale of HEDERVERTEL
developed properties (1,288)
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (3,663)
Net carrying amount BREVFE 40,111
& Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary whose principal @ WiE—FENBAREE HE A E

activity is property investment and development was released by
reference to the sales of the related developed properties.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA #5345 B 3

17. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has
been allocated to the following cash-generating units,
which are reportable segments, for impairment testing:

o restaurant, food and hotel cash-generating unit;
and

e property investment and development cash-
generating unit.

Restaurant, food and hotel cash-generating
unit

The recoverable amount of the restaurant, food and
hotel cash-generating unit has been determined based
on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 12% (2010:
12%) and cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a growth rate of 4% (2010: 4%)
which is the same as the long term average growth rate
of the industry.

Property investment and development cash-
generating unit

The recoverable amount of the property investment and
development cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering the
expected development project period approved by
senior management. The discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 13% (2010: 13%).

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

17. 828 (&)

&z i (E A

HAXAHELZBECOERR
SELEM HRERZ BN
YERL(E A & -

s BB RENKEEREEALE
(VAR

s MERERERRESELE

fi °

B RERBEHRSELEN

B - RRLBERCELEUL
A EBECERESREEAR
WEAFHMBREERR SR
EFRAHEZEREEE-RER
BEFRABERZIRERIZ2% (ZF
—ZTF:12%) RBEEREREEHE
BRFUAERRAY (ZE—TF:
4% ) EEZITEARMFHER
= SEICE

MERBERRRIASELEN

MERERBERREELEENMZA]
WEHBEEBESREEASH#]
HEZBHRREEE FHUKEE RS
BE:REBAFEZFEHREE
F-BEeREBIBRAZITBERA
13% (ZE—ZFF:13% ) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

17. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Property investment and development cash-
generating unit (continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of
the cash-generating unit is as follows:

Restaurant,
food and hotel
ER-RaRERE

2011 2010

17. 88

g

—~
e
T
—

BmEZEEANR (F)

WRRERBRASELEN
(%)

mECERAE I RSE —REASE
AT :

Property investment

and development Total
PERBEBRER aH
2011 2010 2011 2010

—E——% _2-%F Z2——§ _2-%F ZE2——§ 2%

HK$'000  HK$'000
FEx  ThExn

< <

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET TAr TFHER TR

BEREE

Carrying amount of

goodwill 8,721 8,721

31,390 31,390 40,111 40,111

Key assumptions were used in the value in use
calculation of the restaurant, food and hotel cash-
generating unit and the property investment and
development cash-generating unit for 31 March 2011
and 31 March 2010. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash
flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins
is the average gross margins achieved in the year
immediately before the budget year, increased for
expected efficiency improvements and expected market
development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 3R 2 Bft 5

N\

ol

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H
18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. H BB E
Group
x5KMHE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2010: R=-ZEZhAFMNA—AK
—EEAF=A=+—H
Cost and net carrying amount PR % BR T SHE 533,559
Cost at 1 April 2010 —E-ZEFRA—BZHEAR 533,559
Amortisation provided during the RERNZ#D*
year* (133,827)
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F=H=+—H 399,732
At 31 March 2011: R—E——F=ZA=+—H
Cost DN 533,559
Accumulated amortisation RS (133,827)
Net carrying amount AR E R A 399,732
* As further described in note 2.4 to the financial statements @ LRAYEEAETHKAE BIEE D

19.

the amortisation has been included in properties under
development as land cost.

HIEEHRN M B REME2.47M

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. RERBELT
Company
b /N

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F5 ZZT-FF
FERT FET
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRG  IREKARE 61,990 61,990
Due from subsidiaries J& W P /&8 2 =) RRIR 1,785,988 1,824,568
Due to subsidiaries JEE <1 Bff /B8 X R KIE (273,980) (310,176)
1,573,998 1,576,382
Impairment? BE! (19,347) (5,468)
1,554,651 1,570,914
# An impairment was recognised for certain amounts due from 8 HRETHBRARNBEFHE ZEE

subsidiaries with a total carrying amount of HK$137,396,000
(2010: HK$15,571,000) because certain subsidiaries have
suffered losses over the years and the amounts are considered
as not recoverable. The movement in the impairment of
HK$13,879,000 during the year represented the additional
amounts considered as not recoverable. In the prior year, the
movement in impairment of HK$5,949,000 represented the
amount written off upon deregistration of a subsidiary during
that year.

RIEDE AT EE - F & T EYK
MEBARRBZAEREEDERZR
E/4137,396,000/8 0 (ZZ—ZTF:
15,571,000/ 7T ) - £ WA 13,879,000
ﬁémﬂz@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁz%ﬁ%Tﬂﬁm o DART 4
J£5,949,0007% JT R (B & 8) A — R B
ARIBHEERZ EE-
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

19. REMBRT (8)

The amounts due from/to the subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company

are as follows:

Nominal value

JE U FE AN I BB A Bl 2 BB R R AR
o ADETRB N B R AR

TEHEATNEBOT

Place of of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration and  Class of equity registered attributable to Principal
Name operations interest held share capital the Company activities
301 ERfTHE/ FORIEERE
1) HRREE R FriGREER EREx Bl FERH
2011 2010
T i
Amica Properties Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$10,000 100 100 Property investment
SEMEXARAA BA ERR 10,0007 WERE
Carrianna (BVI) Ltd * British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
LERAEB/BE  EER 1% REER
Carrianna (Chiu Chow) Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$8,000,000 73 73 Restaurant operations
Restaurant Limited®
EEH (M) R B EER 8,000,000 T REAE
BRAR
Carrianna Chinese Food Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$900,000 89 89 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited
EEFrARD (BE) EA TER 900,007 7T REZR
ARAH
Carrianna Holdings Limited  Hong Kong/ Ordinary shares HK$25,000,000 100 100 Property investment
Mainland China and development
EEfEEERAT 5/ PEAR EER 25,000,000/ T UES VTS
Carrianna (Shenzhen) PRC/ Registered capital HK$80,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd.*"! Mainland China and property
development
EEH ORI k& REAE A 80,000,000/ 7 REZER
BRRFM ES:
China East International Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$1,000,000 72 72 Investment holding
Materials City Limited
ZRERNANERAA BB ERR 1,000,000 RARK
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #&3Rk<

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Nominal value

ff 5t

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

19. RBEMBAT (8)

Place of of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration and Class of equity registered attributable to Principal
Name operations interest held share capital the Company activities
s/ BRTEE/ FoRm RN
& HMREEHE B IR A EREE [:R:]:4 FERE
2011 2010
—ET—-% ZF-F%
Crown Tech Investments Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$ 1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited
EERABRAR Bk LRk 127 REER
Earn Fame Group Limited*  British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
AESEARLA LBRAER/EE BBk 1% RE2RK
Elite Brave Development British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited* Hong Kong
REERARAT EBRAME/BE LAR 1% REER
Goldfield Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 100 100 Property investment
FEEXBARAA &R LRk BT VESE
Huge Moral International  British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited* Hong Kong
ERERERAR EERAME/BE LAR 1% REER
Kunming Carrianna PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital HK$12,000,000 60 60 Restaurant operations
Chaozhou Restaurant
Ltd +e
EHEE ﬂ[ﬂ/ MR AR AfEA 12,000,000 7T REMLE
ﬁ@ At
Tak Sing Alliance Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$200 100 100 Property investment
Non-voting deferred HK$1,000,000 - -
shares
& LRk 20087 VESIE
ERFRELRD 1,000,000% 7T
Tak Sing (Panyu) Fashion ~ PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital HK$51,000,000 100 100 Property investment
Company Limited*
ENTERREARLR REARE &R 51,000,0007 7% ESE

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # fX £ =
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Nominal value

19. RBMWBLT (&)

)
/

Place of of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration and Class of equity registered attributable to Principal
Name operations interest held share capital the Company activities
301 ERfTEE/ FOREERE
E1 ERRESH R PR AR EMEF Balt FERE
2011 2010
—ET—-% ZF-F%
EEM (B % PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital RMB14,700,000 100 100 Hotel and restaurant
AR AR*x0 operations
HEAE AR AR 14,700,000 BERREES
TEZHRFRERAF®  PRCMainland China  Registered capital RMB3,600,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
REAE A ER AR #3,600,0007C RELE
REEEHLHBMRAF®  PRCMainland China  Registered capital RMB1,000,000 70 70 Restaurant operations
HEAE AR AR¥1,000,0007T RELE
RERERREEER PRC/Mainland China ~ Registered capital RMB3,000,000 53 53 Restaurant operations
ARAR
AR AMEA AR 3,000,000 RELE
MIEEFERER PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital RMB5,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
ARARHE
REARE AfEA AR #5,000,0007C RELE
BREEFRAERAF  PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital RMB13,000,000 55 55 Food business
PEAE AR AR 13,000,000 RmEE
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #&3Rk<

ff 5t

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

19. RBEMBAT (8)

Nominal value
Place of of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration and Class of equity registered attributable to Principal
Name operations interest held share capital the Company activities
3010 ERfTEE/ FOREGERE
E1 EMRESHE FisRERR EMEx aak ITERE
2011 2010
—ET—-% ZF-F%
whEEH I&%‘/@E £%  PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital RMB100,000,000 80 80  Hotel operations
BRAA!
HEAE A AR AR%100,000,0007 BEGE
Carrianna (Hunan) PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital RMB400,000,000 712.5 75 Property investment
Enterprise Co., Ltd. and development
("Hunan Carrianna")* ¥
TEM(RE)ER AR HMER AR#400,000,0007 NERERER
BRAA
("HEEEH)
ERABERMAMAE  PRCMainland China  Registered capital US$36,000,000 7 72 Property investment
(BE%)ERAR and development
AR HMER 36,000,000% T NERERER
TREEPEEER PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital RMB12,000,000 75 75 Restaurant operations
ARARH
EAE A ER A5 #12,000,0007C RELE
AIEEMHREMRAF®  PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital RMB6,000,000 68 68 Restaurant operations
HEAE AfEA AK%6,000,0007C RELE
o Direct subsidiaries of the Company & RAREEMB R A
**  55% of equity interest is directly attributable to the Company o KRRTEEFBASS%REER
i The statutory financial statements of these companies were not i KM EBMANNNAE RS

audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm

of the Ernst & Young global network

o Wholly-foreign-owned enterprises

@ Sino-foreign joint venture companies

@ Domestic enterprises

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

which,

in the opinion of the directors,

principally

affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

B E

SN E R
RO ERE
NERHE

REEGHNER LA LMFIENE

RAIRBE

BREASERFEAN

FEIARAEEEEFRENER
BB EVHS B AR A R RS E

B AR E R K<

RILK e

HEFR B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

20. INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY- 20. R EHEFZEFIERE
CONTROLLED ENTITY

Group
x&KE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —T-FF
FET FAET
Share of net assets BIEEEFE 1,790 1,790
Amount due to the JE {F £L [R] 4% 11 & 28 K18
jointly-controlled entity (612) (612)
Provision for impairment VERIZE L] (1,178) (1,178)
The balance with the jointly-controlled entity is ﬁﬁ%’&“%ﬂﬁ SRR R BEET R
unsecured, interest-free and is not repayable within one A8 BERIREHARERT—
year from the end of the reporting period. ¢W1Ei§f
Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity are as follows: HEZEHEREZFBOT :

Percentage of

Business Place of Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name structure registration interest power sharing activity
35 FEEARKESL
£ Rk i B B BrERE FHAE EERH
Chengdu Carrianna Corporate PRC 51 50 51 Dormant
Chaozhou
Restaurant Co., Ltd.
KEEER NG I TEex
NEE AR AT
The investment in the jointly-controlled entity is RAREEHEELRZEHEE-

indirectly held by the Company.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 3k 25 Bt 33

31 March 2011 —ZE——F=8=+—H
21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. RBBE LT

Group

A5KH
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——% _—_ZT—TF
FET FET
Share of net assets B EEFE 72,643 2,443
Due from associates JFE W Bt & R B BR 3K 158,977 29,829
Due to associates JE ST BE = R Al BR 3K (3,778) (3,515)
227,842 28,757
Provision for impairment VERIEE L] (10,628) (10,628)
217,214 18,129
The amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, HAEBBE RN NER FEMK
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. B AEER TFHAMNERERE

EE PR -
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Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

Particulars of

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21. BEMEB LT (8)

TEMERFFBOT:

Percentage of
equity interest

issued Business Place of attributable Principal
Name shares held structure incorporation to the Group activities
2011 2010
RERE 2 5 [ A S B
£4 ] BECBTRF 3 7 A 3 Bl TEEH
—Z——f —Z-Tf

China South City Holdings ~ Ordinary shares of Corporate Hong Kong - 14.82*  Property development
Limited ("CSCHL") HK$0.01 each and management

and hotel services

ERFERERAA gl NG B NEERREER
(rgmml) FiR0.01% T B & AR 7%

South China International Ordinary shares of Corporate Hong Kong 50 50  Property investment
Purchasing Exchange HK$1 each and development
Centre Limited? (unlisted)

ZHEERBEI PO Evle N BE NERERER
BRAA! FRUET

(3EE7)
# Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member AR KEETMEFFAIINAERS

firm of the Ernst & Young global network

* On 30 September 2009, CSCHL was listed on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and
as a result, the Group's equity interest in CSCHL was diluted to
14.82%. Accordingly, CSCHL ceased to be an associate of the
Company since 30 September 2009 and its interest therein has
been accounted for as an available-for-sale equity investment
thereafter.

The Group's share of the interest in CSCHL amounted to
HK$959,393,000 as at 30 September 2009, including the
Group’'s share of results, net of tax, of HK$49,142,000 in
the prior year. The gain on deemed disposal amounted to
HK$330,717,000 was credited to the consolidated income
statement in the prior year.
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21.

22,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 3k 25 Bt 33

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The above table lists the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length. All associates were
indirectly held by the Company.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of the Group's associates extracted from
their management accounts at the end of the reporting
period:

(=

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

21. BHWELF (&)

REFSNER ALMIIAEHE
MBE AR REEFEAEERA
FEMEASEAXRNAEEEEFE
T2MHEEE QR AR
IR KRB H A EREHE
£ AlgSRERBRITR - FTA M
CWNCTIERNNGITDEES SR

T AREERRFER A N EE
LSRBIEERBEABIUMBEER:

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2——§ -—T-%f
FET FAETT
Assets BE 505,050 37,342
Liabilities afE (364,650) (46,367)
Revenue I &= - -
Profit/(loss) a¥, (E8) 149,425 (1,959)
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 22 AfHHERSE
Group
r. 340
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——5%F _—_ZT—TF
FTET FAETT
Listed equity investments REBELTREAKE
in Hong Kong, at fair value b /N [ 1,120,098 1,200,105
Unlisted equity investments, at cost ~ 3E EMRAIKE LK AE - 1,270

During the year, the gross loss in respect of the Group's
available-for-sale equity investments recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$80,007,000
(2010: gross gain of HK$42,608,000).

1,120,098 1,201,375

RAFE AEBEFHRAIHEHHER
& 7 #8518 /A80,007,00058 7T ( —
T—ZTFFWzE A 42,608,0008
L) WEEMEEREAER -

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X %
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(continued)

The above investments consist of investments in equity
securities which were designated as available-for-sale
financial assets and have no fixed maturity date or
coupon rate.

The fair value of listed equity investments is based
on quoted market prices. As at 31 March 2010, the
unlisted equity investments were stated at cost because
the range of reasonable fair value estimates was so
significant that the directors were of the opinion that
their fair values could not be measured reliably.

At 31 March 2011, the carrying amount of the Group’s
interest in the following listed equity investments
classified as available-for-sale investments exceeded
10% of the total assets of the Group.

Particulars of

22 fEHHERSE (&)

LR EBEREERATHEESR
BEZRAES BEBEEIHA
HEEER-

EHESREZRAFEER QR
mEZER - BE_T—TF=-A
=t+—H FLETEFREHIUAK
AEHNH AAEEE—RINEBEN
NP EGE MEREFRZER
Z R FEA A ARG A -

R-ZB——F=ZA=t—H &%
R EEARNEEI0 NI BEEL
EHARARE 2EAAHEER
&

Percentage of
equity interest

issued Business Place of attributable Principal
Name shares held structure incorporation to the Group activities
2011 2010
RERE FRERGRE
1 RREEBTRF R i 7 A Aol TEXRB
—T——% —2-%f
CSCHL Ordinary shares of Corporate Hong Kong 14.87 14.82  Property development
HK$0.01 each and management
and hotel services
=] EER N BB NEERRER
SRO.0TET RBEXH
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23.

24,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 3k 25 Bt 33

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

23.

(=

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

BAFEINERRIRRPER
ZEMBE

Group
KM
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F5 C—ZIT-FF
FHET FAET
Unlisted investments, at fair value FELEMEE  BATE 497 8,759
Current portion Bl EA - (8,270)
Non-current portion FEBNER 497 489

The above investments at 31 March 2010 and 2011
were, upon initial recognition, designated by the Group
as financial assets as at fair value through profit or
loss as they are managed and their performance are
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management and investment strategy,
and information about the investments is provided on
that basis to the Group’s key management personnel.

The fair values of the above investments were based on
the market prices provided by financial institutions at
the end of the reporting period.

At 31 March 2011, all of the Group's above
investments were pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 44).

OTHER RECEIVABLE

The balance represented an unlisted investment
classified as loans and receivables, and was stated at
amortised cost, calculated using the effective interest
rate method. At the end of the reporting period, the
unlisted investment was pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 44).

24.

ERR-F—FFR-_F——F=
A=+— B2 & TR IA TR e
WIETE B IRA FEFIR R B2 T
REZSRAE FEARSRAE
TRBEEE 2 B E R R
BoRATFEEEEERAMGLR
B MEBRSRE AR DER
EENALBIEIBERARR
fit o

LR EZ AFEDEMBEER
BEPREHITELSELE-

R-—_ZE——F=ZA=+—H8Ltiut
LERMEEREER EAXEHE
FrE—mRIRITEEZER (T
44) °

H i FE U =%

BHRRRFLTREDBER/ER R
J& WK B i 0 BERR AN IE LA B BR R
MEBIDEFAHE - RMEHKR - IF LT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

25. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 25. FRPMER
Group
*5EH
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
“E——5%F _—_T—TF
TFHET FET
At beginning of year REA 1,006,797 651,994
Additions NE 332,732 353,902
Transfer from deposits paid for ®EEEHEMBEiZS - 81,058
purchases of land
Transfer to properties held for  EEEHIEFE 2 W (207,957) (81,836)
sale
Exchange realignment ME 5, 38 B 28,358 1,679
At 31 March R=A=+—H 1,159,930 1,006,797
Properties under development ~ FEHJR] ER[E
expected to be recovered: BRPYE:
Within one year —FK 209,926 197,966
After more than one year ZR—F 950,004 808,831
1,159,930 1,006,797

The Group’s properties under development were
located in Mainland China.

Included in the Group’s properties under development
as at 31 March 2011 were land use rights with
an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$618,601,000 (2010: HK$550,104,000) held under
medium term leases.

At 31 March 2011, the Group’s properties under
development with a value of HK$417,349,000 (2010:
Nil) were pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 44).

Further particulars of the Group’s major properties
under development are included on pages 202 to 203.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 753k &5 M3

LN

31 March 2011 ZZE——F%=A=+—H
26. INVENTORIES 26. K&

Group

*5EH
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F5 C—ZZET-FF
FTET FET
Raw materials R - 945
Finished goods 2K on 3,304 3,710
Food and beverages B &Rk 45,875 36,362
49,179 41,017

27. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS

Included in the balance is an amount of HK$42,510,000
(2010: HK$50,577,000) representing the trade debtors

27. BERER ReERAMARR

4 B2 8 $542,510,0008 1 ( —Z & —
T :50,577,0008 ) BAEE 2

of the Group. JEWE 5 BR K °
Group
*5H
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E——F5 ZZ-ZF
FET FH&ET
Trade debtors & W E 5 BR 5K 58,557 63,916
Impairment DERIE] (16,047) (13,339)
42,510 50,577

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X %
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

27. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 27. BIKIER - EHERFAMRIA

150

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The aged analysis of such debtors as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
provision, is as follows:

(%)

RBEMR BRESERRIEEER
BEINORE < BRiik 2 DT IR T

Group

EKRE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F _—ZT-ZF
FERT FET
Current to 30 days BB Z30H 10,346 8,768
31 to 60 days 31£260H 5,016 5,653
61 to 90 days 61£290H 3,292 3,957
Over 90 days B #@90H 23,856 32,199
42,510 50,577

Credit terms

The restaurant business is normally traded on a cash
basis. For property sales, credit terms vary in accordance
with the terms of the sale and purchase agreements.
All trade debtors are recognised and carried at their
original invoiced amounts less impairment of debtors
which is recorded when the collection of the full
amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are written off
as incurred.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group's trade debtors relate to a large number
of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade debtors are non-
interest-bearing.
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27. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 3k 25 Bt 33

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

27. BIGIEH - HREe R AT RITR

PREPAYMENTS (continued) (&)
The movements in the provision for impairment of trade LTEIRWERREREZ
debtors are as follows: £/ BN
Group
*5HE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —ZT-TF
TET FHET
At beginning of year R4 13,339 12,690
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) Jg B &5 18 & 38 (K{5E6) 6,539 3,948
Amount written off as uncollectible B~ 4E Uk B #ifi B (4,370) (3,342)
Exchange realignment E R AT 539 43
At 31 March R=A=+—H 16,047 13,339

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
debtors is a provision for individually impaired trade
debtors of HK$16,047,000 (2010: HK$13,339,000) with
a carrying amount before provision of HK$16,613,000
(2010: HK$13,945,000). Such provision was determined
after taking into account the ageing of individual
debtors’ balances, the creditworthiness of the
debtors, the repayment history and historical write-off
experience. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

The aged analysis of the trade debtors that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

it FRWE SRR ZRERE
FEEERNERERKE S ERRE
2 B 516,047,000 T (Z & —
T4 1 13,339,000/ 7T ) % & e U BR
RZEEMEA16,613,0008 T (=
T — T4 : 13,945,000/ 7T ) © 5% B
HrEITRLBEE[ERIERFEY
IRIERER EWER R 2 E AR &
R RBTMERER AEBE
ZHBE AT HEMEFSEMmIE
FERZRE-

R ME B A2 B O SRR B8 5 4T
mT :

Group

*x5KHE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F Z—ZT—ZF
FET FHET
Neither past due nor impaired RiEHA o R IB B 10,196 13,413
Less than 1 month past due — & A M HA 5,236 3,626
1 to 3 months past due mEl—Z=={EH 3,621 4,048
Over 3 months past due 0 BB iE = (& A 22,891 28,884
41,944 49,971

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X %
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

27. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 27. BIGIEH - EREe R AT RITR
PREPAYMENTS (continued) (&)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired AR HA Sk R IBE 2 W BR 508 &R
relate to a large number of diversified customers for EEREZEPRERIFLH-
whom there was no recent history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate BEEHERBEEWEERTE
to a number of independent customers that have MNZZEAEERSRIFERLE
a good track record with the Group. Based on past ZEURF - REBBELR  KXRA
experience, the directors of the Company are of the EERR URBFEHMES ARG
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary EEEZWABTAEREE B%E
in respect of these balances as there has not been a DA B BB - iR B AR UL
significant change in credit quality and the balances are H A AR (B B 4 o AN &R B 0 M B AR
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not ERHBFETMEERKEMEAR
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over ERZRE-
these balances.
28. DUE FROM A DIRECTOR 28. Bl —RES
Particulars of amount due from a director, disclosed BB A RHEHIZE161BIE BIL—F
pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong Companies BEEZHBOT:
Ordinance, are as follows:
Group *TKME
Maximum
amount
outstanding
31 March during 1 April
2011 the year 2010
—2——%F FARS —E-2%
Name W& =A=+—-H RRE MA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FTET
Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John BB L& 652 1,554 1,291

The amount due from a director is unsecured, interest-

free and has no fixed terms of repayment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Bt 5%
H

31 March 2011 =2 ——&%=A=+—

29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 29. 5l BEFERBRCEMN
PLEDGED DEPOSITS EMER
Group Company
x5H P /N
2011 2010 2011 2010
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——% —_T-%TF “E——F _ZT-ITF
Bt 7 T#R FET T#xT FETT
Cash and bank balances R4 RIBITHETE 205,949 112,883 133 142
Time deposits EHER 43,243 34,653 44 41
249,192 147,536 177 183
Less: Pledged time B BT TR
deposits for long RERITER
term bank loans (18,524) (21,276) - -
Pledged time R—RRIRIT
deposits for ERERz
general banking EHIER
facilities (2,044) (7,055) (44) (41)
Restricted cash BERHE (a) (7,018) (5,827) - =
Cash and cash RekRE&EEIER
equivalents 221,606 113,378 133 142
Note: P 3 -

(@) According to relevant contracts, property development
companies of the Group are required to place at designated
bank accounts certain amounts as deposits for potential default
in payment of mortgage loans advanced to property purchasers.
Such guarantee deposits will only be released after the property
ownership certificate is submitted to the banks as collateral.

(a) HRIEBEEL AEERNEEMEER
ZARAGFH —EEBNEERITA
AR RIZBERZ MEEREHIE
R BRI S TR ERTTES AR

P EERFIER RS AR 5k o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bt 5%

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

29.

30.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
bank balances (including time deposits) of the
Group denominated in Renminbi amounted to
HK$144,761,000 (2010: HK$89,523,000). The
Renminbi is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange Renminbi for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

TRADE CREDITORS

The aged analysis of trade creditors as at the end of

29.

30.

He - BeFEHRARCEN
EMER (&)

RREPR AEB2RERES
EEHR (BREEHERBEARE
B(TARE]) ABNETZEHBA
144,761,000 L (Z T — T 4F:
89,523,000/ T) - ARMEKREE B
HfaAHMER BREPHAH
2 HNE B B N 45 TE - B TR N A
EERRAREARTFAERFE B
BRI ER ZRITEBRARE
AHME.

RITBEERBRZAMETIREART
TFRAMRZZEM KM E - EHE
PERZBMELI— N F—RHE=
BATE TBERFASE 2K
Re®K TRTRANERERTF
IR B - R17 4677 M IR 17 3K
FHREERFEOHRBENT
Bz RiTe

FE 11 8] 5 IR &

RBEEPR BNEZERFILZER

the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as HERZBRECDITAAT -
follows:
Group
*T5KE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —ZT-ZTF
FET FHET
Current to 30 days BB Z30H 23,885 21,734
31 to 60 days 31E260H 14,111 11,533
61 to 90 days 61590H 14,721 5,120
Over 90 days B #@90H 22,490 13,108
75,207 51,495

Trade creditors are non-interest-bearing and repayable
within the normal operating cycle.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Eﬁ%%&%ﬁﬁ%

31 March 2011 —ZZE——%=A=

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER B1. MBRZRITRAMER
BORROWINGS
31 March 2011 31 March 2010 1 April 2009
—E--5¥Zfh=1-H ZE3-ZE-f=1-H “Z2ENENE-H
Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest

Group rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000

.3 1] EREf® HEA T#T EBREHZE 38R Thr EBEEHZE  3HA TAT
(Restated) (Restated)

(#85)) (#87)

Current

&

Bank overdrafts - - - - - - 55-78  Ondemand 962

- unsecured

BOEY-EER BER

Bank overdrafts - secured 5.3 On demand 50 - - - 53-6.0  Ondemand 12,290

BITEL-HHA BEn ZEA

Bank loans - unsecured - - - 2.3-57  April 2010 17,000 37-80  April 2009 17,000

BOEN-EER “T-TEMA “ZTNEMA

Current portion of 1.1-15 by March 2012 448,305 18-9.5 by March 2011 362,978 2.1-9.5 by March 2010 392,493

long term bank
loans - secured

NBRIRBER —2-2%Z§ Z2--£=§ ZZ-TE=f

-RER
Other loans - unsecured 7.0 by March 2012 2,721 7.0 by February 2011 11,962 - - -
EER-RER Z2-Z%ZR “Z-—£Cf
Other loans - secured - - - 30 by March 2011 1,786 43 byMarch 2010 1,786
EER-BER “T-ZEZf “Z-ZEZf
Long term bank 2.1-1.5 On demand 89,998 2.1-95  On demand 89,552 35-9.5  Ondemand 97,471

loans repayable on
demand - secured

(note) )
RARERRTRARHK BER gyl BB
~HER (1)
541,080 483,278 522,002
Non-current
FEH
Bank loans - secured 1.1-5.8 2012-2025 369,424 2.0-95 20112017 218,922 34-95  2010-2017 197,503
RITER-FEA o —2——f% Z2-%f%
k- ok 3 3tf Btf
Other loans - secured - - - 30 2012 2,678 43 2012 4,464
ﬁm%%_ﬁﬁﬁ :g—:i :;?_:E
369,424 221,600 201,967
910,504 704,878 723,969
31 March 2011 31 March 2010 1 April 2009
~2—-%¥zh=+-H “Z-TE=R=1-H ZZZNENA-H
Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest
Company rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
308 RRE® MR TEr ERENE  HEA TEL  ERENZE  HEA TAL
(Restated)
(&=31)
Current
L
Current portion of - - - - - - 4.9 by March 2010 3,324
long term bank loans
-secured
NBRIRBER “T-T5=R
Long term bank loans - - - - - - 49 Ondemand 5,305
repayable on demand
- secured (note)
EXRRESTREEN BBA
—HHER (M)
- - 8,629
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bff =3

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 1. IBRZHBRITRHEMER (&)

BORROWINGS (continued)

Group
*TKE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F _—_ZT-ZTF
TFHET FAET
(Restated)
(geE5)
Analysed into: S5
Bank overdrafts repayable within RITHEERBA—F AL
one year or on demand ERFEE 50 -
Bank loans repayable: RITEFER -
Within one year or on —F R Bk
demand (note) E&& (Kak) 538,303 469,530
In the second year F_F 125,320 45,449
In the third to fifth years, F=FEFRF
inclusive (BEEMEBEEN) 231,065 136,800
Beyond five years AFENE 13,039 36,673
907,727 688,452
Other borrowings repayable: ARUATHRAEEZ
HiE:
Within one year or on demand R—FARAHEKREEE 2,727 13,748
In the second year F_F - 1,786
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=FEFRF
(BEREMEBEEN) - 892
2,727 16,426
910,504 704,878
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #7653k & Btz %

. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Note: As further explained in notes 2.2 and 48 to the financial
statements, due to the adoption of HK Interpretation 5 in
the current year, the Group’s term loans with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$172,350,000 (2010: HK$183,758,000)
containing on-demand clauses have been classified in total as
current liabilities. Accordingly, a portion of those term loans
due for repayment after one year with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$89,998,000 (2010: HK$89,552,000) has been
reclassified as current liabilities. For the purpose of the above
analysis, the loans are included within current interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings and analysed into bank loans
repayable within one year or on demand.

Based on the maturity terms of the loans, the amounts
repayable in respect of these term loans are: within one year
or on demand HK$82,352,000 (2010: HK$94,206,000); in
the second year HK$35,844,000 (2010: HK$40,188,000);
in the third to fifth years, inclusive HK$54,154,000 (2010:
HK$49,364,000).

During the year, the Group did not comply with
certain financial covenants as set out in a banking
facility agreement entered into with a bank. The loan
with the bank of approximately HK$89,556,000 has
been classified as current liabilities in its entirety in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
of 31 March 2011. Despite the non-compliance, the
banking facility was renewed in its original terms and
conditions on 31 March 2011. Further, the Group has
made all previously scheduled repayments on time and
no request for early repayment was made by the bank
up to the date of these financial statements. As such,
management believes the defaults have been informally
waived.

Included in the Group’s interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings as at 31 March 2011 are borrowings
with a carrying amount of HK$313,684,000 (2010:
HK$290,230,000) which are denominated in Renminbi.
The remaining interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Certain of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings were secured by the pledge of certain of
the Group’s assets as further detailed in note 44 to the
financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, certain directors of
the Company have guaranteed certain of the Group's
banking facilities up to an amount of HK$31,000,000
(2010: HK$278,387,000).

N\

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

1. R ZBITREMER (&)

BT« 4R 75 BF 7S BT 5E2.2 & B1 75 AR S 3R 48
ARAFERAEBSRESSE A&H
ZHBREEFEFAE172,350,0007%
T (ZE—FF 1183, 758000,%7z>
BREA—BENNREGRRBCHENE
BAERHEE Bt ;iﬁMﬁZﬁﬂE
HERER —FERIMNZIRASEA
#/589,998,000 Tt (=T —FF:
89,552,0007% 7t ) J5 B 1§ & %1 & iﬁi’%
RBAE - RIBEA LM ZEER
@%E—imﬁﬂﬂﬁ}%ﬁ%Zﬁ%ﬂw,@\
BITREMERMBITELERA

BEERINHEI BEEESES
Bl & — & A =k B #§82,352,0007% 7T

—ZE 4 194,206,000 ) ; F
= 435,844,000 7T (= F —FF:
40,188,000/ ) : =2 AF (BR
MEBFEIEA )54,154,000/8 T (= F
—Z4F : 49,364,000/ 7T )

‘$¢F AREBUVEERE THE

TEERRCTBRY -ZER
i%ﬂﬁ%% 556 ooo,%rzai\ &1
—E——F=-RA=1+—HZ&EEY
ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%qjéigﬁ /}Ibéjjié\1 °§‘&7)‘
EEERETUHBRL RITDODRN
—E——F=-A=+—HERET
REEEGRR - MAEEAEHTIZ
HEEERMBEATEREL L
WAREBRITERKEAER Bt E
%%u/u EQIELHU%ﬁ;'EIE_tFQEO

RZE——F EEBEMWE 2T
NEMEFFERHEE 313,684,000
BT (ZZF —Z 4 :290,230,0007%
TIZERUNAREEBER Hi
MEZRITREMERANEE AR
Z’Ko

AEEETHEZRITREMER
DREHAREEE TEERER
FHBEN B B RR M 447 -

REERERR ARaBMHES
ABAREEIBMIBITEREEIRMEIE
R4 #31,000,0008 L (ZE—F
£ : 278,387,000/ 7T ) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bt 5%

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

32. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 32. BEffMEAK
In the prior year, the Group leased certain of its motor REF RAEBRMERERER
vehicles for its property investment and development XBEABOERMERERE
business. The leases were classified as finance leases Z3RMEMRL R TIHEBARIF-
and had remaining lease terms of one year.
At 31 March 2010, the total future minimum lease RZE-—ZTF=A=+—H0 RE
payments under finance leases and their present values BEMAOBERKRZI M Z&DEL
were as follows: HIERAEGBERAT
Group
FEH
Present
value of
Minimum minimum
lease lease
payments payments
&4 &L
AR IE HIBHE
2010 2010
—T-TF _IET-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Amounts payable FIAE & B
within one year and total minimum —FAREMNBEME
finance lease payments AR IEAARE 250 245
Future finance charges 15 2R B 75 & (5)
Total net finance lease payables JE Bt & 78
X FRBE 245
Portion classified as S RENEI R ER
current liabilities =85 (245)
Non-current portion SE BN EA B 17 -

158 ANNUAL REPORT 2011 £



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#% 3R

M

R

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

33. DEFERRED TAX 33.RER T
The movements in deferred tax during the year are as REFRLEHRB 2 ZEWOT -
follows:
Deferred tax liabilities BERFER
Group KM
2011
—E-—-f
Depreciation Fair value
allowance in adjustments
excess of arising from
related  acquisition of Revaluation
depreciation subsidiaries of properties Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERERE
BRHRNE NAEEL
HRESRE NTERE NRER #it
TET TET TET TET
At 1 April 2010 RZZ-ZFMA-A 8,946 270,295 120,049 399,290
Deferred tax charged/(credited) RERRERT
to the income statement during %/ (BitA)z
the year (note 10) BRI (W10) 68 (3,298) 20,768 17,538
Reclassification ENHEAE (6,951) - 6,951 -
Exchange realignment R HE - - 650 650
Gross deferred tax liabilities at W-E-—FZfZ+-HZ
31 March 2011 EXHARKLE 2,063 266,997 148,418 417,478

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X %
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bff =3

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

33. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 33.;EERIA (&)
Deferred tax assets RIEREE R
Group XEH

2011

Losses available for
offsetting against
future taxable profit

HK$'000

—E——%

AALERERERR

BRIESZER

FEx

At 1 April 2010 RZZ-—ZTFMA—H 7.457
Deferred tax credited to the income REEWREERFP MR CELERIE

statement during the year (note 10) (KFzE10) 1,177

Gross deferred tax assets at 31 March 2011 RZE——F=F=+—HZ
ERERBEEERE 8,634

Deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the HWMEMR BELERBEERBEE TR
reporting period, presented after appropriate offsetting: 8 -

HK$000
FTHET
Deferred tax liabilities recognised RER & B Bk &
in the consolidated statement of RZELEFHIBERE
financial position 408,844
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#% 3R

b3

31 March 2011 ZZE——F%=A=+—H
33. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 33.BEMRER (&)
Deferred tax liabilities BIERFEH R
Group XEH
2010
—T-TF
Depreciation Fair value
allowance in adjustments
excess of arising from
related  acquisition of Revaluation
depreciation subsidiaries  of properties Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
G
BREANE RAlEEZ
MTrESEHE RYERER MEER @t
THT THT THT THT
At 1 April 2009 RZZENENA-A 1,466 272,670 115,950 390,086
Deferred tax charged/(credited) REERERTNR/
to the income statement during (23t A\) ZEILRA
the year (note 10) (KrzE10) 7,480 (2,375) 4,061 9,166
Exchange realignment B AR - - 38 38
Gross deferred tax liabilities at RZE-ZF
31 March 2010 =R=t-Bz
ERHAGKEE 8,946 270,295 120,049 399,290

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X %
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 = Z——%=F=+—H

33. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 33.:EERIE (&)
Deferred tax assets RIEREE R
Group XEH
2010
Losses available for
offsetting against
future taxable profit
HK$'000
—E-TF
A FA DA B R 2R B ER A
i F K 8 2 B 18
FETT
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZNFHA—H 330
Deferred tax credited to the income AEZWmKRPHIR 2 BEERIA
statement during the year (note 10) (FFzE10) 7,127
Gross deferred tax assets at R-ZE—ZFTF=A=+—H8BZ
31 March 2010 BEETRIBE EBE 7,457

Deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the
reporting period, presented after appropriate offsetting:

RBEHRR - BEEHRBEEERERE
BT

HK$'000
FATT
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the — R4R4& B Ak &K
consolidated statement of financial RZBEERIEGE
position 391,833
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33. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$134,482,000 (2010: HK$128,742,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. The Group also has estimated tax losses
arising in Mainland China of HK$116,827,000 (2010:
HK$85,415,000) that will expire in one to five years
for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available which the tax losses can be
utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rates
are 5% and 10%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2011, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it
is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately HK$203,936,000 at 31 March 2011
(2010: HK$161,299,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

33.:EEMRIA (&)

rEEBEREEAZCHEEBE
134,482,000 Tt (—_E—ZF F:
128,742,000/8 ) " Mt ZEE1E 7]
EIBEAFA A G AR 2 R RER
Fm M e REE A B oKRE
B2 BIEE1E4)116,827,000% 7T
— =& — T 485,415,000 7T ) -
mtEBENER—FEZERAFAA
PAELAE B8 A Bl 2 A K JE SR 0k A1) 4K
H-ARNRBAERRIAUREEELETH
ZIERT R AERE L EHIEE
B ARt EEEERIELRE
BE-

BRI (FBETEMESFRE)  FER
MK ZINERIRIMNEEETIRLZ
A% B B HBUR10%TENT - BRI
EFE_TENF-—A—BRBER
YTHEAR -_ZEZ+tF+_A=+—
Hi&FTE A 2 B o i B B35 Hp
KEEMBRIZEER 2BEEARBHRB
R4 BRI L SR FE N/ R R o
AEBZHEALEAE5%K%10% &
e ANEEERZER B A
MNIZHBAR B _EENE— A —
ARELEZABFMD IR KEHR
AR -

R-_E——F=A=+—H K&
B R gt A T B A Ak 3 BB SRS
FEMF 2K B R A 2 KE T &EF
BRENZENMR - EERAE %
EMBRARINARARD KZER
FzHEeETK-R-_TE——F=AH
=t+—HB RABER KB R T
Rk 4 ZEA 4975 203,936,000 7Tk
THAAREEMREEEBE(ZZ—F
% :161,299,000 1) °

AN ) (A BB SRR 5 BB I R A AR
FTSHIER
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31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

34. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 3. tMERGTEIR
Group XEMH
Liabilities
AR
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E——F —Z-ZTF
THET FHET
Interest rate swap A 4= H 669 -
The Group uses interest rate swap to minimise its REEFEHAEEELE200,000,0008
exposure to movements in interest rates in relation TT 2 ) X3 AR AR ) 2082 B Y —
to one of its floating rate term loans with a nominal HERBEEER 2R E -

amount of HK$200,000,000.

The above derivative was measured at fair value at the NESTETAENBRBREZA
end of the reporting period and was determined based FTEERRERERAGTE -

on discounted cash flows model.

35. DEFERRED INCOME 35. B EM A
The deferred income represents cash subsidies received iR FE W A 3R W B A B BAT B —
from government authority in respect of a property BHYHXEREFAECRe@BH -BHE
development project in Mainland China. No deferred —E——%®=ZA=+—HLEFE"
income was released to the income statement during BaRP I EELERA-

the year ended 31 March 2011.

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. g &
Company
ENF
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —ZT-ZF
TFi#&T FET
Authorised: g NE
2,000,000,000 (2010: SREE.10E T2 TR,
2,000,000,000) ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000% (ZZE—=F
HK$0.10 each £ :2,000,000,0000% ) 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRBRERA:
1,144,122,328 (2010: BREEI10E T LBk,
1,144,122,328) ordinary shares of 1,144,122,328 (ZE—F
HK$0.10 each F:1,144,122,3284%) 114,412 114,412
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the Company’'s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, and
other employees of the Group. The Scheme became
effective on 10 October 2005 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company's shares at the date of the grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

37. f B 4 51 &

ADNERAE AR B ([
B)) RUARBEBELERY
2B 1 2 5K 1R 0 SR R R - %
HEZARBSREREARAE
5 AEBUNATEERALE
HiAT RN -FERE+
A+ B A SR R SR 5 T
S BB Y BRI T ENERE
e

BIEZTE REHERD 2 EK
ITHEEIRE FRTNEBBARTTN
BEZETRMDAEHRZ10% - R
EET2EREER2EERERE
R AT 21T AR D LR AERI1218 A
HM T BBBARRTED TR
MBEZ1% - TAE—FREZE
J% 8 B 38 1L BR B8 - Il & SRR R AE AR
RAE ik

RYTEZEREVNTHELESAA
BB ERITESHE (HEBE R
AL) BEBARATEEEITR
190.1% s PAEM1218 B HARE - 4218
B (ERETAHPRARRZRE) B
85,000,000/8 7T - Bl S B 78 SRR
BRBEEAS E#LE -
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer. The amount
payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1. The
exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by
the directors and shall be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bt 5%

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

37. MR HEEt & (1)

BREEREE AE28RAEIR
BOEMBRERFNREAR/E
TeoRTHBEENTRHRESRE

iE °

BRELTEETHESET &
ARUTRHZERE  (HRE
ZHH (ZAMBAREREH) R
PR mERMZWTHE: ()R
DREEEZARMABELEAR
BT E B RERMI ZFHRT
&: RiphmEE-

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

The following share options were outstanding under the

Scheme during the year:

BB ERTRE AREFERR
BENBRE LER-

EREEAN ZT&8 THARTEZ
AT

2011 2010
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
HK$ per share HK$ per share
—2——f —T-%%
miEEY MEFH
TEE BEENA T E EREHE
BRET BRET
At beginning of year i) 0.59 29,300,000 0.59 29,300,000
Granted during the year RERE N 1.03 7,000,000 - -
At 31 March R=R=+-AH 0.67

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 ¥
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #7653k & Btz %

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

2011

Number of options Exercise price*

HK$ per share

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H
37. MR REER ()
R EBRERITEZBREZTT
EERITEMELT
—E——f

Exercise period

FEERE TR fTEH
BiRET
21,300,000 0.30 26-10-2005 to 25-10-2015
7,300,000 1.30 18-12-2006 to 17-12-2016
700,000 2.15 24-2-2008 to 23-8-2012
3,000,000 1.03 3-1-2012 to 2-1-2014
1,000,000 1.03 3-1-2013 to 2-1-2015
1,000,000 1.03 3-1-2014 to 2-1-2016
1,000,000 1.03 3-1-2015 to 2-1-2017
1,000,000 1.03 3-1-2016 to 2-1-2018
36,300,000

2010

Number of options Exercise price*

HK$ per share

—E—FF

Exercise period

BRRESHE TfEE* 1T EAfE
BRBTT
21,300,000 0.30 26-10-2005 to 25-10-2015
7,300,000 1.30 18-12-2006 to 17-12-2016
700,000 2.15 24-2-2008 to 23-8-2012
29,300,000
g The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment * BERETEEARBRHERKARIET

in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.

AR AR Z E RN E T
o
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31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 37. B ERE (&)

The fair value of the share options granted during
the year was HK$3,446,000 (HK$0.49 each) of which
the Group recognised a share option expense of

RAFEEREZAFLEES
3,446,000 7T (& i%0.498 L) °
M2011FE3 8310 NEBKRZE

A% #EFE Xk /484,000 70 FEEW
ERTERE-

HK$484,000 during the year ended 31 March 2011. No
share options were granted during the prior year.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted RAFE BTRELE ZAFE
during the year was estimated as at the date of grant, BEUARTHZ ZIBN 2 HR R EH
using a binomial model, taking into account the terms fEfEt - AT RINEZ —EA
and conditions upon which the options were granted. ANEH}o

The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

168

2011

—E——%f

Dividend yield (%) AR FME F (%) 2.5
Expected volatility (%) 8 HA R 18 (%) 68-79
Historical volatility (%) JE 5208 18 (%) 68-79
Risk-free interest rate (%) 7 2 b F 2= (%) 0.956
Expected life of options (year) FER R A (F) 3-7
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) niEFaE (BRET) 1.03

The expected life of the options is based on the
historical data and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility
is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 36,300,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 36,300,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$3,630,000 and share
premium of HK$20,965,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 36,300,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 3.17% of the Company’s shares in issue
as at that date.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 3R

BREAMRARRBESLEEEDT
ARNAETEEA EREE -BH
B R DA R SEOR MR 1 R 1R Bl il R TR 2R
BY Y TRERER-

I % T AR T B EN G2 H b1
LA AR AE -

R|EMR REFE - X2AA
36,300,00017 B A% #E M AR 1T o
BRIBEARGIRITRALRE 28T
FHRTZERBEEERALNARE
425 7736,300,0000% & @ A% © EE )
f% K £3,630,000/%8 7T ' B 19 % B
/420,965,000 7t (IR B 1TH X
A ) o
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38. RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior
years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 54 to 55 of the
financial statements.

Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the
acquisitions of subsidiaries in prior years remain
eliminated against consolidated reserves, as
explained in note 17 to the financial statements.

The reserve funds of the Group represent the non-
distributable statutory reserves of the Group’s
subsidiaries operating in Mainland China. The
transfers to these reserves are determined by the
board of directors of the subsidiaries in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations of Mainland
China. The reserve funds can be used to offset
against future losses or to increase the capital of
the subsidiaries.

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

38. i s

(a) F#&E

AEEHERFEFERAFEZ
RERALEREESHE 2R
B iR FEo4E5B 2 AR
mEEEK -

0B 75 R MY SEV 7R L - DA RD
F R U BT B~ 7] i & 4 2 &P
EERBRID ARG S HEY

AEEZHEEREERTERA
o B /B BT BE 0 Ik 2 VA TE BX
K-MBRAARIZEEZRBRE
FERKEZEREREBEEZRS
-t FREAERKZE
RIS AER (= PN
P A o

(b) Company (b) =27
Share Capital Share
premium Contributed redemption option  Retained
account surplus reserve reserve profits Total
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ki &%

RE EOER REGR RREER GEEN At

s Thn Tin Tin Tin Tin TiEn
At 1 April 2009 RZZENE

MA—A 1,275,015 59,759 316 6,277 39,329 1,380,069
Profit for the yearand ~ AFERFR
total comprehensive BRENA

income for the year 1 - - - - 34,065 34,065

Proposed final dividend ~ BERERS 12 - - - - (22,88) (22,882)
At31March2010and  R-F-%F

1 April 2010 ZR=+-Bk

_2-2F

MA—A 1,275,015 59,759 316 6,277 50,512 1,391,879
Profit for the yearand ~ AFERFHR
total comprehensive BREHA

income for the year 1 - - - 484 29,241 29,725

Proposed final dividend ~ BERERS 12 - - - - (22,88) (22,882)
At 31 March 2011 RZE——%F

ZA=t-H 1,275,015 59,759 316 6,761 56,871 1,398,722

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 3 i & 169



170

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H
38. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Company (continued)

38. ffm (&)

(b) F27 (%&)

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as
a result of the Group reorganisation on 12 August
1991 and represented the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital issued by
the Company and the combined net assets of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation, less the effects of the bonus issue
of shares in previous years.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), the contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders under certain specific
circumstances.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value
of share options granted which are yet to be
exercised, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payment transactions in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount
will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised,
or be transferred to retained profits should the

AKRAWNEHEHKT
—AN—FNA+T-_BENEHE
EAMEL RARRETH
7R B TE B B2 AR 9 5% [ S5 40 1 U
BB ARNAHEERE
MER BEBETFRENLK

BTeRE-

REBRE-NN—FQEA
(RER]) BEHEBHRAURET
EEBRD K TR

BAEFEEERR O ERNRT
82 BAE R F{E - S5 —
SRR IS IRAK I TE2. 4ABD
XARHZEHARR-ZFS
BRI N BB RIT RS
BERMNEERINEBEBER
%?@Eﬂﬁiﬁi&ﬂﬂ%%%%ﬂ%%iﬁé
Rl o

related options expire or be forfeited.

39. DEREGISTRATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

39. ) &8 & M B B8 4 5

2011
HK$'000
—E——%F
FERT
Net assets disposed of: ERBEEFE:
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BNRE R R
H A & YR 3,576
Accruals and other payables st B R RE M EMNRK (9,770)
Tax payable JE T B 18 (7.634)
Non-controlling interests FE 128 AR 2 (8,698)
(22,526)
Exchange equalisation reserve relating to BB A RE X &
the subsidiaries reclassified from equity to BEREEER
profit or loss (209)
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries BB A B9 8H a1 2 W (22,735)

In the prior year, the Group deregistered a dormant
wholly-owned subsidiary. No net asset value remained
at the date of deregistration and the exchange
equalisation reserve relating to that subsidiary was

REF SECRE—HEEEH
ZEEBEANB AT - NEEEM
HNEBRARBEREFEEREER
T RER A943,0008 T 2 W

recognised in the income statement as gain on o

deregistration of a subsidiary of HK$943,000.
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31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 40. FEBHERERME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of profit before tax to net (a) BRAAFEHEEREHR S
cash flows from operating activities: mBHZHIE:
Group
30 ]
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——% —T-ZF
THET FTAET
Profit before tax BR LA 7l 224,250 436,517
Adjustments for: HER
Bank interest income FATH S WA (981) (867)
Interest income from an other receivable H e A B A (686) (174)
Dividend income from available-for-sale AHEHE FERERSKA
listed investments (17,779) =
Depreciation neE 39,438 37,974
Equity-settled share option expense DR BB R RE S 484 =
Finance costs BB 31,857 31,092
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets BAFEINEZERMEELZ
at fair value through profit or loss, net AFEER/ (M)
R 71 (908)
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries B 8 22 =] 3UE = s A (22,735) (943)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment Sz ER/ (s (3,620) 29
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale HE—HAfHERE T
investment (6) (20,587)
Gain on deemed disposal of B & — B E D R
an associate - (330,717)
Impairment of trade debtors ERESEN 2 R VRE 6,539 3,948
Fair value loss on derivative instruments THETEZRME
— transactions not qualifying as hedges 2,927 -
Release of goodwill upon sale of developed HEBERMEZHEEH
properties - 153
Write-off of items of property, plant and ME - BE KEE 2 MR
equipment - 2,354
Recognition of prepaid land lease payment BN AETEZER 385 378
Share of profits and losses of associates JE( B &N AR R K B 18 (74,712) (48,163)
Changes in fair value of investment REMELATEEZE:
properties, net R (98,874) (26,186)
86,558 83,900
Increase in properties under development TERYZE 21 (198,028) (350,344)
Decrease in properties held for sale BIELEME 2R 68,361 34,303
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEMRD,/ (Em) (6,689) 4,549
Decrease in debtors, YRS - e REWHKIER D
deposits and prepayments 50,424 69,320
Increase in trade creditors JERNE 5 B 3H93E 21,789 12,721
Increase in sundry creditors, accruals and HbEMRR  EFERR
deposits received TR #9IE AN 126,488 10,871
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income BB,/ i) (5,541) 261,305
Increase in deposits received W ER iz & 42 8 5,637
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to ANEE S PG )
directors (44,135) 20,757
Cash generated from operations REXBHEBELRE 99,235 153,019
Hong Kong tax paid Eﬁﬁx’ﬁim (862) =
Mainland China tax paid B3 B R 7 (8,838) (61,643)
Net cash flows from operating activities REXBZRERAFE 89,535 91,376

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X %
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31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

41.

(b) Major non-cash transaction

On 30 September 2009, the Group’s advance to
CSCHL, a then associate, of HK$17,160,000 was
capitalised into 896,000,000 ordinary shares of

CSCHL at HK$0.01 each.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities
not provided for in the financial statements were as

40. FEBEKRERME (8)

(b) EXHEBXH

RZBEENFNLA=ZF+H &
SEREROESARZERHN
R#—%17,160,0008 T2 &
K EEEREMMFAR0.0
7 TCA896,000,000/% L 3@ A% ©

41. X R AR/

RB|EMR NEERARF R
A BREZKARABEMT

follows:
Group Company
*5KE b 3/
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —T-FTF ZET——F —T-IFF
FHT F&T FHET FH&ET
Guarantees given for REFEEMEL
mortgage loan facilities  RIEE K
granted to property /E B AR
purchasers 117,642 90,238 - 1,473
Guarantees given for DS NETRE 25
banking facilities granted $R17IE &
to subsidiaries 1 & FE AR - - 1,466,444 1,284,472
117,642 90,238 1,466,444 1,285,945

The banking facilities granted to subsidiaries subject
to guarantees given by the Company were utilised to
the extent of approximately HK$884,149,000 (2010:

HK$632,538,000).
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31 March 2011 —ZE——F=/F=+

42. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note
15) under operating lease arrangements, with
leases negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to
17 years. The terms of the leases generally also
require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to
the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 March 2011, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as
follows:

(=

S|

42. EEHERH

(a)

ESHEA

AEERBRLEHEERHFEE
HEETHREDE (WiE15) - &
LHELHREX ZHBNF
—E+tEF-HEHRK RN
BRETAXMNERZE IR
£ TIB0 T A A e E Bt im
EHABES-

R-B——%=A=+—8"
AEBRZEEMAP TR T
MEES A REEERE
ERHEAERZ REHEERE
m

Group
*RE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E——F _—ZT-ZTF
FET FAT
Within one year R —F A 31,826 50,125
In the second to fifth years, MRE_EFRF
inclusive (BREEMF) 124,237 135,527
After five years NERFHE 82,798 66,425
238,861 252,077
As lessee (b) EREHEA

The Group leases certain of its properties
under operating lease arrangements. Leases
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging
from 1 to 12 years and rentals are normally
fixed in accordance with the respective tenancy
agreements.

AEERBEEHELHHEA
ETHE-DEHELHHE
KeBBNF—ZE+=%F-H
EZBBE-RREBEABCHE

BHEBE-

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X %
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31 March 2011 =T ——%F=HF=+—H

42. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 42. EEHER (&)

(continued)

(b) As lessee (continued)

At 31 March 2011, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

(b) EBAEBEA ()

R-ZE——F=A=+—8"
AEBBRBER T HMEEHEZ
O R EHEREREAY
NMz&ERASHEBEMOT

Group

r 3 .|
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F5 —EZ-ZF
FHET FET
Within one year R—FNRN 27,334 23,329

In the second to fifth years, RE_ZFRF

inclusive (BREEREME) 70,541 70,579
After five years R ERF % 22,535 28,248
120,410 122,156

The operating leases of certain properties also
called for additional rentals, which would be
based on certain percentage of turnover of the
operations being undertaken therein pursuant
to the terms and conditions as stipulated in
the respective rental agreements. As the future
turnover of these operations could not be
accurately determined as at the end of the
reporting period, the relevant contingent rental has
not been included.
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43. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 42(b) above, the Group had the following
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

(=

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

43, & ik

RIS Bk - 1 51 M 3E42(0) 2 18
SHRE AN AEEE U TAR

Group

*5E
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——%F _—_ZT—TF
TET FHET

Contracted, but not provided for: B ET A e R B -

Property, plant and equipment e R 964 845
Purchases of land use rights B At AR 475,307 512,318
Properties under development BERPYE 391,000 83,264
Capital contribution to a subsidiary H—RENBRRICERER 37,498 54,561
904,769 650,988

In addition, the Group has rights to purchase pre-
determined lots of land in the PRC pursuant legal
binding agreements. The commitment under such legal
binding agreements amounted to RMB401 million
(2010: RMB450 million).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company did
not have any significant commitments.

Bt AEEBEEEEEZR N ZH
FOARETRBEERELAINL
HoRKIEZE LRI N BEESREAR
AR #401,000,0007T (ZE—Z:
A R #450,000,0007T) °

RBEBR AQARIEEEME
RAHE o
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31 March 2011 =T ——%F=HF=+—H

44. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

45.

As at the end of the reporting period, certain of the
Group's property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, properties under development, properties
held for sale, time deposits, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, and an other receivable, with a
total carrying value of approximately HK$1,993,949,000
(2010: HK$1,515,962,000) were pledged to secure
general banking and other facilities granted to the
Group. In addition, rental income generated in respect
of certain investment properties of the Group was
assigned to bankers to secure loan facilities granted to
the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had the

a4,

45.

HEEH

RIRERR AEB LB REREMEY
1,993,949,0008 L ( =& — & F :
1,515,962,0008 7T) < & T ¥ % %
ER&E REYVFE EEME &
EFELEDE THER BAFE
quMa SR BB E R HEMER

REEERE RS —RBITRE
W;E AN s REBIRAIB DL E
MEzZHEWEEER ULEER
TZIEE-

BHEALES

(a) PBRERCERMB 5 At
MR 540 - N6 B A R E

following transaction with a related party during ATRERET IR S :
the year:
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E——F5 ZZ—ZTF
THET FAT
Rental paid to a director NHESHE—NES
(note) (F3E) 48 48

Note: The rental paid to a director was determined based
on mutually agreed rental rates. In the opinion of the
directors, the above transaction was entered into by the
Group in the normal course of business.
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) Other transactions with related parties:

(i)

(i)

In the prior years, the Group acquired a
55% equity interest in Hunan Carrianna
(the "Acquisition”) from KC Ma and KY Ma,
the substantial shareholders and executive
directors of the Company. In respect of the
Acquisition, KC Ma and KY Ma have given
an undertaking to indemnify the Group
against monetary losses up to RMB216 million
arising from the failure of Hunan Carrianna
to acquire any portion of the pre-determined
lots of land and Hunan Carrianna’s cost of
acquisition of any portion of these pieces of
land which is higher than the pre-determined
price.

The above transaction also constitutes a
connected transaction as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The directors of the Company have
guaranteed certain of the Group’s banking
facilities up to HK$31,000,000 (2010:
HK$278,387,000) as at the end of the
reporting period, as further detailed in note
31 to the financial statements.

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i)

Except for an amount due to a director of
HK$37,522,000 (2010: HK$63,151,000) by
the Group which is not repayable within one
year, the remaining balances are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

Except for an amount due to a director of
HK$15,747,000 (2010: HK$25,415,000)
by the Company which is not repayable
within one year, the remaining balances are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

45. FREBEALTRH (&)

(©)

fit B2 A

ol

IBATETZX

Ea R

5

() RAF AEERAEE
ZEEBRRRNITES
ENBREERENREE

U 8 WA R = 55 % R a1
(TKE=m\]) - ARAWE
FE BNEEERSEN
RERERBARRARE
216180 LIRBEREHE
F 4 AR A MR
% 3 B9 (EART BB 1D I I
BLHAKASREEE
MK

bt SN EmHRAE
THAERERRBEA
TR5e

(i) RFEHR- A7
EERAAEER ZRTT
SERHEERLER B
31,000,000 0 (=&
—Z £ :278,387,000/%
TC) B E R AR B R
EHFEE3T ©

N

ERAR ) 2 REEHK

0

(i) BAEEREN—RE=Z
37,522,000/ JT Z & X
HEB—FN(ZE—F
£ :63,151,000087T) * &
BREEBR A S ERKE I
2 [E F i o

iy BRARAEN—ZRES
15,747,000 ;T oh (=
T —F 425,415,000/
TC) c HER K B E IR
RB WEETENRSE-
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31 March 2011 =T ——%F=HF=+—H

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties:
(continued)

(iii) Except for amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of HK$49,126,000 (2010:
HK$37,653,000) which are not repayable
within one year, the remaining balances are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

(iv) Details of the amounts due from/to associates
as at the end of the reporting period
are included in note 21 to the financial
statements.

(v) Details of the Group’s advance to a director
of the Company are included in note 28 to

the financial statements.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel of

(©)

(d)

ERAR ) 2 REEEH

(&)

(i) B P& 3 1= B% AR =®
49,126,000 T (—_ & —
T4 :37,653,000/% 7T )
ZEFTHABBE—FHH
BEBRAEERE 2B
B T B R e

(iv) RIREHIREU A B
ENRIRAFIBHNI I
WEKFE21 ©

(v) AEBR-BEF 2B
ERCE- SR Sl s
28 °

REEFEEBAB ZHM:

the Group:
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$°000
—®——F _—_FT-F

THET FHET
Short term employee benefits % HE 8 1& A 16,931 21,387
Post-employment benefits RIKEF 178 166

Total compensation paid to key 4 EZBEIE A B 2 2 R
management personnel 17,109 21,553

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.
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31 March 2011 ZE——F=A=+—H
46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 46. BENBNZ&MI R
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of Ty ARG RBENSRITANSE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting HAIRH)AREME -
period are as follows:
2011 —2——%
Financial assets eMEE
Group
*5H
Financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit or loss
designated Available-
as such upon for-sale
initial Loans and financial
recognition receivables assets Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BOFEE
RREER KRR e
REENEMEE & e B eRMEE - h)
FTET FTExT FTET FTET
Due from associates, JEMEE & N A
net of impairment ERE - 150,792 - 150,792
Available-for-sale investments A it 1% & - - 1,120,098 1,120,098
Other receivable H fth e W 3K - 11,626 - 11,626
Financial assets at fair value  ZAFEFIRR
through profit or loss RERTREH
THEE 497 - - 497
Financial assets included FTARKERR
in debtors, deposits and ReRENHEBELZ
prepayments EREE - 132,492 - 132,492
Due from a director B —fES - 652 - 652
Due from non-controlling JE T I 1 IR AR 3R
shareholders - 67,234 - 67,234
Restricted cash BR#RE - 7,018 - 7,018
Pledged time deposits HRTEBHER - 20,568 - 20,568
Cash and cash equivalents ~ RE&RREZEER - 221,606 - 221,606
497 611,988 1,120,098 1,732,583

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X %
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31 March 2011 =T ——%F=HF=+—H

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows: (continued)

2011

Financial liabilities

46. BENMRNZEMIA (8)

MIRE-—RBENERTARKRE

HRmREE: (&)

—g——%

eRAR

Financial

liabilities

at fair value
through Financial
profit or loss liabilities at
- held for amortised

trading cost Total
BOTFEE
RRR&H
BEY VS ¥ ]
AR BEEED
-BERE eRARE 4]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET TERT
Due to a jointly-controlled entity  J&{f £ [F4% % & g2
(note 20) (K$3E20) - 612 612
Due to associates (note 21) JE - Bk & 2 A
(FFEE21) - 3,778 3,778
Trade creditors ERTE SRR - 75,207 75,207
Financial liabilities included ST A E i FE AT BR K
in sundry creditors, accruals and ~ fET & A & B %
deposits received EZEemAaR - 139,547 139,547
Due to directors ERNESE - 39,884 39,884
Due to non-controlling JE 1F FE 122 AR AR 3R
shareholders - 60,692 60,692
Interest-bearing bank and other  FFEIRITREMEE
borrowings - 910,504 910,504
Derivative financial instrument ERME@MZIITETLAR 669 - 669
669 1,230,224 1,230,893
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31 March 2011 ZE——F=A=+—H
46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 46. BRI ZEMI R (&)
CATEGORY (continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of TR REENERIANSRS
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting HIRHBREE : (48)
period are as follows: (continued)
2010 —T-FF
Financial assets eMEE
Group
A&HE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit or loss
designated Available-
as such upon for-sale
initial Loans and financial
recognition receivables assets Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BATESIR
RRERT ERk AEHEZ
EENEREE JEHBR X TREE @it
TET TEL TET BT
Due from associates, JE B = R A
net of impairment BERE - 21,644 - 21,644
Available-for-sale AHRLERE
investments — = 1,201,375 1,201,375
Other receivable H it & W% - 11,626 - 11,626
Financial assets BRATEINER
at fair value through REBEFRER
profit or loss THEE 8,759 - - 8,759
Financial assets included AR
in debtors, deposits and REREAFEL
prepayments SREE - 181,093 - 181,093
Due from a director ER—UESE - 1,291 — 1,291
Restricted cash BERHRE — 5,827 - 5,827
Pledged time deposits BHREBRER - 28,331 - 28,331
Cash and cash equivalents ~ He&RkEEEEEH - 113,378 - 113,378
8,759 363,190 1,201,375 1,573,324
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31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 6. BEMRNZCEMI R (&)

CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows: (continued)

NMIRE—RBENERTARKRE
HIRMWEREE: (&)

2010 —ET-FF
Financial liabilities eMAR
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
HK$'000
LABE SHRK ANETEAY
eHRAE
FET
Due to a jointly-controlled entity JE T 2[Rl 15 6 & 28 (Fff5E20)

(note 20) 612
Due to associates (note 21) FETEE N A (BFRE21) 3,515
Trade creditors ERE SRR 51,495
Financial liabilities included in sundry FTAEMBENERER B ER R

creditors, accruals and deposits EEeremBE

received 81,309
Due to directors ERES 81,025
Due to non-controlling shareholders FEF FEFE AR AR R 47,089
Interest-bearing bank and other FFRRITREMEER

borrowings 704,878
Finance lease payables JET B E F 4V 245

970,168
Financial assets EMEE
Company
b 3/ |
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$000
—E——5 Z—ZZT-ZF
TET FAT
Loans and receivables: B ERIRK
Due from subsidiaries, JE U BfT /8 A -
net of impairment EREF R 1,766,641 1,819,100
Financial assets included in other FT A KLt B U AR 3K
receivables and deposits e eMEE 32 82

Due from associates JE W Bk & 1 A 3,930 159

Pledged time deposits EHE BF R 44 41

Cash and cash equivalents RekReEFEIEE 133 142

1,770,780 1,819,524
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47.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7% 3 &5 Bf

31 March 2011 —ZE——F=/F=+

CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows: (continued)

HRREE: (&)

(=

AN

S|

46. BENRNZaMI A (8)

NMIRE—REBENERTARKRE

Financial liabilities eRAaE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——5% _—_ZT—ZTF
T#T FETT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:  LAEESS K At BRI SR A &
Due to subsidiaries AN NG 273,980 310,176
Financial liabilities included in S AHMEMNEDR R
sundry creditors and accruals EAER s eMmAaE 1,092 1,221
Due to directors JENES 21,677 41,195
296,749 352,592

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining

47. 2 F(ERIE

AREBEATIRBEE MFKEY

and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments: BIAZATFE:

Level 1:  fair values measured based on quoted prices F—E: KRAZEEXBERE
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical BRT%HZWME (REH
assets or liabilities B)rEATE

Level 2:  fair values measured based on valuation FE: HBEESTEFELF
techniques for which all inputs which have a B M&FEGEHTEAZFR
significant effect on the recorded fair value FEZH A \BEBEETE
are observable, either directly or indirectly ERHEEBEREE

Level 3:  fair values measured based on valuation FE=ZE: REBEREFERF

techniques for which any inputs which have
a significant effect on the recorded fair value
are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs)

B M&ZEFH/ETEZE
{i] & 22 8 A\ BB I IR K
EABREM S EE (1T

ABREGABE) G

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X %
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31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

47. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)

Assets measured at fair value:

47. X FERIE (&)

BAFEINRNMBEE

Group XEH
As at 31 March 2011 R-ZF——F=ZA=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5—B "8 =B -1 ]
THT THET THT THT
Available-for-sale equity AEEERE
investments 1,120,098 - - 1,120,098
Financial assets at fair value AT ET RN ER
through profit or loss mREZEREE - 497 - 497
1,120,098 497 - 1,120,595
As at 31 March 2010 RZFE-—FF=HA=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F—E F_B E=E B
TAT FTET FTET TET
Available-for-sale equity AHEHERE
investments 1,200,105 - - 1,200,105
Financial assets at fair value R AFEFIR LN ER
through profit or loss NRE/EHAE - 489 8,270 8,759
1,200,105 489 8,270 1,208,864
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31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

47. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued) 47. 2 F{ERE (B)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BERLOFEHHE: (B)
The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 REN FZEBZ2RFEFTEEF
during the year are as follows: wmr
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——5%F —ZT—ZTF
F#ET FET
Financial assets at fair value BAVEVERERRTRIELZ
through profit or loss: TREE
At beginning of year NG| 8,270 7,347
Total gains/(losses) recognised in N EE A N C
the income statement H&ESY HER 2 W
included in other income/other (E518) %z
operating expenses (79) 923
Disposal k=4 (8,191) -
At 31 March R=A=+—H - 8,270
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RER BEEENEME —EH
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no F_RBZAVEFAERTERE=
transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value measurements BrzAFEFEFEARE L (=
(2010: Nil). T—FF &)
The Company did not have any financial assets RZE-——F=A=+—HBKZZ
measured at fair value as at 31 March 2011 and 31 —ZEF=ZA=+—H8 XARAWR
March 2010. EEMEAFEFECECREE
Liability measured at fair value: DAFErIEZCAR:
Group XEH
As at 31 March 2011 W_E€——f=HA=1+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E—-E -l - wE
FHT FET THT FHET
Derivative financial instrument @BERIT4ETA - 669 - 669
The Group did not have any financial liabilities RZE—ZTF=A=+—H &&
measured at fair value as at 31 March 2010. B SEEMAEAFEFE 22/
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31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 48. MERREEHRERBEE

186

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
bank loans and overdrafts, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings, and cash and bank balances. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group's operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade debtors and
trade creditors, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings with floating
interest rates. The effective interest rates and terms
of repayment of the interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 31. The
Group has put in place interest rate swap arrangement
for one of its floating rate term loans during the year to
limit the variability in cash flows attributable to changes
in interest rates. Details of the interest rate swap are
disclosed in note 34.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#&#R Btz

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group's
profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings). There is no impact on the Group’s equity,
except on the retained profits.

N\

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

48. MERMBEEHEHFERBE

(4
\ 8/

FIEmBR (5)

TREREEMBATSERZSHZTIE
ZIERT AREMESENKREE Y
NE B BR A & A (3F B )FEF =X
BEZEE)HALEB ZRALIRE
FE RBBEFBRIN

Group
x5E

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

in basis in profit

points before tax

HK$'000

/m

8~ (D)

(D) BER BRRMER

FET
2011 —E——%

Hong Kong dollar BT 50 (4,541)

Hong Kong dollar BT 100 (9,082)

Hong Kong dollar BT (50) 4,541

Hong Kong dollar BT (100) 9,082
2010 —E-TF

Hong Kong dollar BT 50 (3,526)

Hong Kong dollar BT 100 (7,051)

Hong Kong dollar BT (50) 3,526

Hong Kong dollar BT (100) 7,051

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland
China with most of the Group’s monetary assets,
liabilities and transactions principally denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi, respectively. Majority
of the sales, purchases and expenditure incurred by the
operating units of the Group were denominated in the
units" functional currency and as a result, the Group
does not anticipate significant transactional currency
exposures. The Group has not used any derivative to
hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.

b s & B3

AEETBELEETBRPEARE
MASBEEREE AEARSE
BUBTRAREGHE-SEEE
BUELZHE RBAXHIAZ
LEBU 2B E ANEH
WIRABFMEMOTET R EHINE
[\ B o
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31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

P

48. MR EE B RER HE

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk. The credit risk of the Group's financial assets,
which comprise cash and bank balances, time deposits,
an other receivable, debtors and deposits, amounts
due from a director and non-controlling shareholders,

amounts due from associates,

and quoted and

unquoted financial instruments, arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to

the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents and have available funding through
bank and other borrowings to meet its working capital

requirements.

(&)
{5 & & B%

SEVEEXREASTHREMR A
’Elﬁi\@’i\rﬁﬁﬁ(ﬁ BERS
&fEﬁ E1F - EHF R HAEK
EE FEJ‘IKEE/T/\&$§é JEl—ZEE
RIERER BUHEAR RS
BMTAE)REHFHAENMELEREE
Jﬁkg'ﬁiﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁiglﬂﬂﬁﬁ
E o

ik Bh 37 & B PR

ASBZBRRRIT TR S MG
THFELHB  BEBRTERK
HEENREARBEEEAS 2

==
ﬁﬁ>\°

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities T?§7%$$@75/‘# HHRNES/E
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the & A RFTRMRAEN DN
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: EEIE/R
Group T5KME
2011
- Lol
Within
1 year or Over
on demand 1 to 5 years 5 years Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—EUTF -EhlE
RREXE EIEUT AENE &
TH#T THT THET TH#T
Due to a jointly-controlled entity ~ JEfT R A 612 - - 612
Due to associates JEREEE DRI FUR 3,778 - - 3,778
Trade creditors ENE SRR 75,207 - - 75,207
Financial liabilities included qu)\ﬁﬁﬂJ*ﬁﬁEm
in sundry creditors, accruals and EHAEAR
deposits received EM&U&@Z@@EE 133,663 3,573 2,311 139,547
Due to directors ENES 2,362 37,522 - 39,884
Due to non-controlling shareholders ~ E{ 3F#% Hxﬂnﬁ 11,566 49,126 - 60,692
Interest-bearing bank and W SRITREMEER
other borrowings (note) (BsE) 541,080 356,385 13,039 910,504
Interest payments on MERITRAMEE 2
interest-bearing bank and MEZ
other borrowings 26,932 51,316 5,765 84,013
Finance lease payables ERRERL - - - -
Derivative financial instrument PMERZITETIA - 669 - 669
Guarantees given to banks in REEME—HERT
connection with facilities granted £ E MIELER
to property purchasers 117,642 - - 117,642
912,842 498,591 21,115 1,432,548
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31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 48. MERMBEEE B R R BK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRE (F)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities THRERRABNBERARNEHE
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the & AR FTRMNRGESN D
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: B (&)

(continued)

Group XEH
2010
(Restated)
—E-2F
(BE5)
Within
1 year or Tto5 Over
on demand years 5 years Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—FHT —FE

IRBXE  EAFUT EEME @t

TR TAT TAT TAT

Due to a jointly-controlled entity ENLFZHERBRE 612 - - 612
Due to associates JENEE DRI FUR 3,515 - - 3,515
Trade creditors ENE 5EH 51,495 - - 51,495
Financial liabilities included SR BRT

in sundry creditors, accruals and EAEAR

deposits received BElkeceRBE 75,662 5,647 - 81,309
Due to directors ENES 17,874 63,151 - 81,025
Due to non-controlling shareholders ~ FE{ FE42 R B & 9,436 37,653 = 47,089
Interest-bearing bank and MERITREMES (M)

other borrowings (note) 483,278 184,927 36,673 704,878
Interest payments on MERITRAMEE 2

interest-bearing bank and other MEZ

borrowings 25,290 36,427 1,254 62,971
Finance lease payables ENRERY 250 - = 250
Guarantees given to banks in REENE-HERTEE

connection with facilities granted I fEH &R

to property purchasers 90,238 - - 90,238

757,650 327,805 37,927 1,123,382
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31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

48. MR EE B RE HE

(#&)

REBEmRE (F)

Note: Included in interest-bearing bank and other borrowings MizE: MBZHRTREMSSPhAaAE
are term loans with an aggregate carrying amount of ETEWZ 350 OOO%EZ%BEHEE
HK$172,350,000 (2010: HK$183,758,000). The loan Z (=T T4 :183.758,000%
agreements contain repayment on-demand clauses giving the L) c B ggjm BIE— T — @ B
banks the unconditional right to call in the loans at any time BB (RS A TRITEEETRE
and therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, B BB SI2 0B SR AE R o [ I LA b B s
the total amount is classified as “on demand”. BRENE B EAE R -
Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not HMABIU LG BEFRHW AR
believe that the loans will be called in in its entirety within SIEEHENI2EE NEESRE
12 months, and they consider that the loans will be repaid BoBEERUTRZEERAIRER
in accordance with the maturity dates as set out in the loan BENA O EE . AEFEEHE
agreements. This evaluation was made considering: the BN E S BERS G BiEA
financial position of the Group at the date of approval of the AREBBIEZRLY  WEEHT
financial statements; the Group’s compliance with the loan B EE L AEE—HIREETE
covenants; the lack of events of default, and the fact that the 3% o
Group has made all previously scheduled repayments on time.

In accordance with the terms of the loans which contain BEESZRHES—TH—&CBRA
repayment on-demand clauses, the maturity profile of those FF 38 FX 1553 AE’\]E%’\ FREREEIR - A
loans as at the end of the reporting period, based on the AHRTBENRAERBRRRIEE
contractual undiscounted payments and ignoring the effect of SKENBF 38 3 |§$§(E’jéljﬁﬂ ERMAT :
any repayment on-demand clauses, is as follows:
Within 1to5
1 year years Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—FULE
—&£UTF REEUT @5t
TRT TET TET
As at 31 March 2011 R-F——%=A=t—H 88,933 101,514 190,447
As at 31 March 2010 “Z-ZE=A=1-H 101,863 95,874 197,737

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial —F%ﬁ%$/ AR EHRNSRE

liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on & A ,%’Hi?ﬁfﬁﬁ HETER R

the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: 50

Company E=AF

2011
—g——%
Within 1
year or on 1to5 Over 5
demand years years Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—FUTH —FULE
REXE  EENT  EEML it
TET TET FET TET
Due to subsidiaries ERMERAHE 273,980 - - 273,980
Financial liabilities included in ~ F AE MM
sundry creditors, accruals and A ERR
deposits received Bz eRAR 1,092 - - 1,092
Due to directors ERES 5,930 15,747 - 21,677
Guarantees given to banks in RHERRERITEER
connection with fadlities 0 {E i 4R
granted to subsidiaries 884,149 - - 884,149
1,165,151 15,7417 - 1,180,898
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31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 48. MGEAREEERR B %
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (#8)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRE (F)
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial TRARRTRREHRNDEHE
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on & AR FTRMNRGESN D
the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: B (&)

(continued)

Company . /N |
2010
“B-%f%
Within 1 year Tto5 Over 5
or on demand years years Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—EUTH  —FULE

RENF RERT  BENE Bt

THET TAL TAL TAT

Due to subsidiaries FE AT K8 2 A1 30R 310,176 - - 310,176
Financial liabilities included STARMEMAER

in sundry creditors, accruals and EAERR

deposits received BElize s emEk 1,221 - = 1,221
Due to directors ENES 15,780 25,415 - 41,195
Guarantees given to banks in RHBLRABRITEE

connection with facilities granted M fEH &R

to subsidiaries 632,538 - - 632,538
Guarantees given to banks in REENFE-—HERITEE

connection with facilities granted M {EH R

to property purchasers 1,473 = = 1,473

961,188 25,415 - 986,603
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every 5% change in the fair values of the equity
investment, with all other variables held constant and
before any impact on tax, based on their carrying
amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the
purpose of this analysis, for the listed available-for-sale
equity investments, the impact is deemed to be on the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve and no
account is given for factors such as impairment which
might impact on the income statement.
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 48. MGAREEERR B %
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (%)
Equity price risk B% {5 R, b=
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity IR 2B 18 [ B 45 A AR BB 48 BUKF K&
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels BEREFBEZEZHMEBBKR
of equity indices and the values of individual securities. BRI AFETRKZER RN_F
The Group was exposed to equity price risk arising ——F=ZA=+—HB A&KEFE
from equity investments classified as available-for- H2RAEBRRETIRES A
sale investments (note 22) as at 31 March 2011. The BB (WF22) cRBEMKR A
Group's listed equity investments were listed on the SEZ EMREDNRIGFAFI®R2
Stock Exchange and were valued at quoted market price mEME-
at the end of the reporting period.
The market equity index for the Stock Exchange, at the BEXGMZEFEE RARS
close of business of the nearest trading day in the year HRCZEEIRXRZEY  REAFE
to the end of the reporting period, and the respective HEz &= EREBEHOT :
highest and lowest points during the year were as
follows:
High/low High/low
during the during the
year ended year ended
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2011 2011 2010 2010
RIB——Ff RZZ-ZF
=ZA=t-H ZA=+—-H
—E——-f FEAMA —Z-%% FERARN
ZA=t+-H ZE/€& =R=t+-H 2B/
Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index BE - BEEY 23,528  24,989/18,972 21,239 23,100/13,412
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to TRERE B8R T KRG

BEARBEZEZE T RERAKR
ERNBEMREEE BRAKR
BZ2RVFESHBRAS%E T 2 B
B e BADHmE I HEHE LM
AEE ARZPHRARKEAH
HEREEMRFBERTE MY
BE R M ES A e B Wt
RZHAEK-



48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6325 Bt 33

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

31 March 2011 = ZE——%=A8=+—H

48. M RMEEE R R BE

( 43=
(#&)

BREmBE (5)

Carrying
amount of Increase/
equity decrease
investment in equity*
HK$'000 HK$'000
BERE
IREE BEB R
FET FET
2011 —2——%F
Investments listed in Hong Kong BEBELMZAHEE
—available-for-sale (note 22) A E (M1EE22) 1,120,098 56,005
2010 —T-FF
Investments listed in Hong Kong BEALEMZAHEE
—available-for-sale (note 22) ARG E (FisE22) 1,200,105 60,005

TNEIEREFE

* Excluding retained profits *

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital
management are to safeqguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010.

BrER

AEBEAEENERZRE R
RAEBAEFBEERNRE N A
HRREMERNL R UAXHHEE
BEE FRERANKRREE-

AEERBEBBINES 12
HEAERBRUEL AR  BEFN
AEEAER AEBEA TR
FR BB B 1A A% BRK [B] B AN 5k 3%
TR -BE-_E——EFER_FT—
EE=ZA=+t—HIEFER &
EEAEEEREBZ BEHE
ﬁio
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2011 —=ZE——%F=HF=+—H

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 48. MERREEHRERBEE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the total capital plus
net debt. Net debt includes trade creditors, sundry
creditors, accruals and deposits received, amounts due
to directors and non-controlling shareholders, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, finance lease
payables and deposits received less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital represents total equity. The gearing
ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as

(#&)

BEXER (&)

AREBUABEREGBLRETERD
Bh-BEABBELRRFAERMN
RMEAEFRBEZM FRERR
FERN B ZRR - Bt ARSR AT
ERkBEMNES BNES BMAF
R IRIR B Z RITREME R
MEMBERAOREERRE BE
RBekBReEFEERBE EARKAE
BEARE - RBEMRERNABEL R

follows: N
Group XEH
2011 2010
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
—E——F ZZ-ZF
Bt 5 FHET FH&ET
Trade creditors ERTE S RN 30 75,207 51,495
Sundry creditors, accruals and ~ H b B BRFN - FEETE A
deposits received NEWE S 319,351 196,419
Due to directors ERNES 39,884 81,025
Due to non-controlling JE T FEHE R AR 3R
shareholders 60,692 47,089
Interest-bearing bank and BB 2 $R1T R H M E K
other borrowings 31 910,504 704,878
Finance lease payables JET B E 7 4V 32 - 245
Deposits received TE AR K 5,884 5,647
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : & MR EEIEE 29 (221,606) (113,378)
Net debt FEE 1,189,916 973,420
Total equity FEN N 3,457,089 3,293,177
Total equity and net debt BREARFEE 4,647,005 4,266,597
Gearing ratio BEARBEEE 26% 23%
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49.

50.

51.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 3R 2 Bft 5

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
financial statements approximated to their fair values at
the end of the reporting period.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial
statements, due to the adoption of new and revised
HKFRSs during the current year, the accounting
treatment and presentation of certain items and
balances in the financial statements have been revised
to comply with the new requirements. Accordingly,
certain prior year adjustments have been made, certain
comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform
with the current year’'s presentation and accounting
treatment, and a third statement of financial position as
at 1 April 2009 has been presented.

During the year, certain comparative amounts have
been restated to conform with the current year's
presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 30 June 2011.

49.

50.

51.

N\

ol

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H
EeMERZLTFE
RARBIZEERRRBEENEBRY
BREZEREERSMBERE
BERAFEE:

o R
RIEF K 2.2 I REFERAA

FEFIERBII BB EREE
B -2stREBHERATEE k&
ﬁiﬁfﬂ”lﬁﬁ ST EFAR-
%mfé%ZEﬁ“ﬁuéwﬁ
FREZUBREZIRETRES
52033%%2009&4)% 18 2 B ik
MK ©

RAREE ETHRERLEIA
BRAMPBHHRR 22 -

MBHRE A E

BBHREER=ZT——F A=+
AREFTSHEL RERM-
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES &YX 2

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

Particulars of the investment properties held by the Groupas RZ-ZE——F=ZA=+—HAAKEEE

at 31 March 2011 are as follows: WIREMEFHBTLOT
Approx.

gross area Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion

AEROE BEREHR
BB R GRHE ®|h (EHXK) BO ERER
Hong Kong
g8
Unit B, 26th Floor Medium term 1,568" 100 Completed
Wyler Centre, Phase Il lease

200 Tai Lin Pai Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories

AR HHAFE 4 I &K
Kﬁﬁkuoo?ﬁ
BmALEZ
2612BE
Ground Floor and Cockloft, Medium term C 87# 100 Completed
61 South Wall Road, lease
Kowloon City, Kowloon

BENEWMEE AR AT £l BERK
6155 T R EE
Unit No. G37, Ground Long term C 77* 100 Completed
Floor, Peninsula Centre, lease

67 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon
BADHERIBEME REHELD 5] B &K
mﬂ¢%¢mmT
G375 EfL

Tak Sing Alliance Building, Medium term C 780* 100 Completed
1/F-3/F, 15/F-18/F, lease

115 Chatham Road South,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

NERDE RHITE A9 ] BEK
BB 1155

EREENE

11EE3 -

15 51812
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Particulars of the investment properties held by the Group as

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES =&Y E

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

at 31 March 2011 are as follows: (continued)

Name/location

1.0 L

Tenure

GRAMH

Type

w5l

R_IE-——F=RA=+T—HBAXKE®HEHE

MIREMEFBNT - (F)

Approx.
gross area
(m?)
AEROE
(EHXR)

Effective
% held
ERBS
Bal

Stage of
completion

5¢ R B B

Hong Kong
gd

15th Floor and

Carparking Space No. 5,
Young Ya Industrial Building,
381-389 Sha Tsui Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories

AL

YD IR 78381-3895%

RLETEAE
158 %

3N 55 RE AL

Mainland China

o KR

Units 9D-F, 10A-F, 22-C
Man Wah Mansion,
Shenzhen Special Economic Zone

AR B
XEREARE

9D-F, 10A-F, 22-C

Carrianna Friendship Square,
Junction Renmin Road South
and Chunfeng Road,

Shenzhen Special Economic Zone

RN [

ARE®EEREZR
EEPRERES

Medium term
lease

R EIA A

Medium term
lease

R EIA A

Medium term
lease

REIA A

CR

B/

2,594%

1,881%

28,491*

100

100

72

Completed

Completed

Completed

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # fX £

197



SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES &YX 2

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

Particulars of the investment properties held by the Groupas RZ-ZE——F=ZA=+—HAAKEEE

at 31 March 2011 are as follows: (continued) WIREMEFBROT : (&)
Approx.

gross area Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion

HERHY RREH
t1 8 1 GRS ) (EHXK) BO TRER
Mainland China
PEXE
A building at Shi Lien Road, Leasehold 3,322% 100 Completed
Chiu Tien Industrial Park,
Shi Lou Town,

Panyu County,
Guangdong Province

IR ERE BFH T &K
REH
HH TR

MERZ —EET

A building at Gowtong Leasehold 14,754% 100 Completed
Village, Panyu County,
Guangdong Province

fRERE BEH T BIEMK
HBE

RENZEBTF

Imperial Palace, Long term CR 4,899¢ 80 Completed
Hong Yi Cun, lease

Baoan South Road,

Shenzhen

RN R REAHA B/ BI&K
R B

E—

BEAE

14 Zu Miao Road, Leasehold C 6,838* 100 Completed
Foshan Municipal

1L BEH 5] B &K
18 B RE 1455%
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Particulars of the properties held as property, plant and
equipment by the Group as at 31 March 2011 are as follows:

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES =&Y E

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

R_B——F=A=+—HAKEHE
ERYE BEARKEBEZOEFBOT:

Approx.
gross area Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion
RERHE BEREHR
BB R GRHE ®|h (EHXK) BO ERER
Hong Kong
g8
Unit A, 26th Floor and Leasehold 812* 100 Completed
Carparking Space Nos. 19, 20, 21,
22, 39 and 40 on 2nd Floor and
Lorry Parking Space No. L21
on 1st Floor, Wyler Centre, Phase I,
200 Tai Lin Pai Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories
R BEH T [RE:359

ANEHEE200 57
Bfah OB B
261AE M2IEE 1955
2057~ 215% ~ 2258
39%% 405 B K2
L2198 BEREN

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E fX £

199



SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES &YX 2

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

Particulars of the properties held as property, plant and R-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HAEEEEAE
equipment by the Group as at 31 March 2011 are as follows:  {EAY%E - BEMREZWEFBUT

(continued) (%&)
Approx.

gross area Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion

HERHY EREH
E1 8 1 HHANE 5 (EHXK) BO TRER
Mainland China
E KR
Nos. 2-6, 5/F, Leasehold C 1,922# 100 Completed

Carrianna Friendship Square,
Junction Renmin Road South
and Chunfeng Road,

Shenzhen Special Economic Zone

ARYI R BFH [l B X
AREE K
ERBERZR

FEPRERES
FiE2-65%

2 Zishan Road, Leasehold C 34,490% 100 Completed
Yiyang Municipal

g [ 0 A L B& 2557 BEH ] BI&K

14 Zu Miao Road, Leasehold C 12,954% 100 Completed
Foshan Municipal

A BEH 5] BI&K

16 B B& 1457

Notes: Bt &

Types of properties: I-Industrial, R-Residential, C-Commercial YIZEER: I-T%¥ R—FE C—E%

# Gross floor area # RIEEEE
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Particulars of the properties held for sales held by the Group

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES =&Y E

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

R_EBE——F=A=+—BAKEHRHE

as at 31 March 2011 are as follows: HEMEFBWT -
Approx.

gross area Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion

RERHE BEREHR
BB R GRHE ®|h (EHXK) BO ERER
Mainland China
PEXE
Carrianna Friendship Square, Medium term C/R 3,484% 72 Completed
Junction Renmin Road South lease
and Chunfeng Road,
Shenzhen Special Economic Zone
R E R R h HiAE 4 B/ fE B&RK
ARBEBERERERZR
EERBRARES
Imperial Palace, Long term lease CR 562# 80 Completed
Hong Yi Cun,
Baoan South Road,
Shenzhen
RN [ RBAMEL B/ B &R
1R % 8 5%
B B2 2 B
Residential units and car parks of Long term lease CR 32,052¢ 75 Completed
Grand Lake City,
Yiyang Road, Hunan
R N REH A B/ B &K
FELLRFTEE R E L
Shopping street of Medium term C 10,820* 75 Completed
Grand Lake City, lease
Yiyang Road, Hunan
Gk N I AR 4 5] B &R
FELLH 3T 8 %
Notes: B aE -

Types of properties: I-Industrial, R-Residential, C-Commercial

# Gross floor area

YIERER I-T¥ R—FE C—HE

# BIZEE TS
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES &YX 2

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

Particulars of the properties under development held by the

R_EBE——F=ZA=+—BXEEHEF

Group as at 31 March 2011 are as follows: BERPYEFBOT:
Expected
Site Stage of Effective completion
Location Use area completion % held date
BEREHR
it B R& THE R 5E R P& BX BSL WatxEHEH
(m?)
(F5K)
Mainland China
E KR
Chaoyang Road to the north, Commercial/ 29,997 Foundation work 72.5 N/A
Zishanhu to the south, Yiyang residential in progress
2 5 T 90 53 B DA B+ LB DAL CEYAEEe METREETH
Zishancun Reservoir to the east, Commercial/ 103,584 Foundation work 72.5 N/A
Yiyang Road to the north, Yiyang residential in progress
AL R K ETE Al HME/EE METRETH
w5 K&l
Tuanyuan Road to the east, Yiyang Commercial/ 318,709 Design work in 72.5 N/A
residential progress
7 5 T [ ] 2 7 1 HE /X Rt TEETH
Yangwuling Village, Lucigiao Village, Commercial/ 120,040 Design work in 72.5 N/A
Yiyang residential progress
w5 T F IR BBEN BE/EE Rt TIEETTH
East of Xin Guang Road/South of Commercial/ 105,916 Foundation work 72 N/A
Da Gang Road B section residential in progress
Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyungang Eco & Tech
Development Zone, Lianyungang
BEEBFRERGEEREN LR ME/fFE ETRRETH
RAB R EBR
East of Xin Guang Road/South of Commercial/ 77,757 Foundation work 72 N/A
Da Gang Road F section residential in progress
Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyungang Eco & Tech
Development Zone, Lianyungang
BEBRERGEEZERBN LR HE/EE METRETH

RABBEFR
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Particulars of the properties under development held by the

Group as at 31 March 2011 are as follows: (continued)

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES =&Y E

31 March 2011 = ——%F=F=+—H

R_B——F=A=+—BXEERFFH
ERPYEFBOT: (F)

Expected
Site Stage of Effective completion
Location Use area completion % held date
BER&EHR
it 86 R#& THER 5E Rl B B Bt WixESEH
(m?)
(FIK)
East of Xin Guang Road/South of Commercial/ 130,846 Foundation work 72 N/A
Da Gang Road C section residential in progress
Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyungang Eco & Tech
Development Zone, Lianyungang
ETERERGBERENLE HE/EE M ETRETH
RABHEECR
East of Xin Guang Road/South of Commercial/ 93,643 Foundation work 72 N/A
Da Gang Road E section residential in progress
Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyungang Eco & Tech
Development Zone, Lianyungang
EEERERGBERBALE ME/fEE ETRETH
RABBEER
East of Xin Guang Road/South of Commercial/ 122,577 Foundation work 72 N/A
Da Gang Road G section residential in progress
Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyungang Eco & Tech
Development Zone, Lianyungang
ETERERGBERBNLE mE/Ex METRETH
RAREBEEGR
East of Xin Guang Road/South of Commercial/ 83,618 Foundation work 72 N/A
Da Gang Road H section residential in progress
Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyungang Eco & Tech
Development Zone, Lianyungang
ETERERGBERENLE HE/EE M ETRETH

RAEKEHER
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING REERiAFE A=

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an annual general
meeting of Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) will be held at Carrianna (Chiu Chow)
Restaurant, 1st Floor, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong on Monday, 29 August 2011 at 11:00 a.m. for the
following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited financial statements
and the reports of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) and of the auditors of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2011.

2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31 March
2011.

3. To re-elect Directors and to authorise the board of
Directors to fix the Directors’ remuneration.

4. To re-appoint the auditors of the Company and
to authorise the board of Directors to fix their
remuneration.

5. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass
with or without amendments, the following resolutions
as ordinary resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
A. "THAT

(a) Subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise
by the Directors during the Relevant Period
of all the powers of the Company to
purchase issued shares of HK$0.10 each in
the capital of the Company, subject to and
in accordance with the applicable laws and
the requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited as amended from
time to time be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares to
be purchased pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10% of
the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue on the date
of this resolution, and the said approval shall
be limited accordingly; and

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 3R

BBEEEZNEE ([ARA)EFTRE
——&FNAZ+NH(BH—)EF51+—
REREEBETELITEISIR —EE
= M) BEBRARTREBAFER
P NAIEIE:

1. AEBE-_B——£=F=+—A
LFE @BRIBERRETY
o LB B -

2. ERBE_T——F=A=t+—H
FE RS -

3. BENEREF UIRBREEFSET
EEZM=-

4. BHZEREM IBREEFESE

EEHME -

5. 1/57,%%%]%15%%]\1@@%@;@(4&
uFHH 7{ nT)T;ﬂJ/jQ %ﬁ%ﬁ/ﬁ‘%é‘%

BERER
A [EhER:

(@) FEARAZEE(b)ER 2R &l
T E\GEHEBETESS —
BN EREERZ
%W&%%%éx%%ﬁ

NAalEE AR (&
?WﬂnDZﬁmIEﬁ
MR ZIERT - R E #EH
MITHEARRAE 2 —J#
N AEBEARRFEETT
IR AR F R EEO0. 105 7T
2

(b) RI#E L (a)R 2 HLIEFR
BRzROHEELRE B
THB B AR %Liﬁaﬁﬁ
ZEBITRAEEHRAE
10% ' i Lt E AR
SE BRI &



B.

(@

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING &SR BEA2®EE

for the purpose of this resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the date of
passing of this resolution until whichever is
the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company;

(i) the revocation or variation of the
authority given under this resolution by
ordinary resolution of the shareholders in
general meeting; and

(iii) the expiration of the period within which
the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the Bye-laws of
the Company or the laws of Bermuda to
be held.”.

“THAT

(a)

subject to sub-paragraph (c) of this resolution,
the exercise by the Directors during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all
the powers of the Company to allot, issue
or otherwise deal with additional shares of
the Company and to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require
the exercise of such powers be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved;

the approval in sub-paragraph (a) of this
resolution shall authorise the Directors during
the Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require
the exercise of such power after the end of
the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted (whether
pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the
Directors pursuant to the approval in sub-
paragraph (a) of this resolution, otherwise
than pursuant to:

(i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined);

(@

BRARBRMS  [H R
HIR | iR ARZERB
B2 BENIMEA — AR
BEAEZ A2 HME:

(i) ANRRTEBRBF
KGR

(i) ANRBREHDZED
RAEBCRERR KRS
BREBRBRETIA
BEHHERT 2B &

(i) AAaElZRAAIHAI
BREXEEAR
RIZARITTERREBA
FREHRE®Z
Holo

(B -

(a)

ERFR(OD B ZIRH
T —REEGREHRES
EEFEBAPRAN(EER
TX)TEARBIE#
NIABCE - BATHEEIE AR
DA BN - RAR
SR TAREFEITELF
Bh 2% HhaEMBKR
i

AR (a) 0 BLZ HEAS
BRESEEHEAREAE
H IR T AT RE AR A A H
R RRITEZTEN Z
B W AR

EERBEANRER@DE
Z AR BRI B A IR
FEGHRE (THED
REBREREAMAA)
Z AR EEARRE  ERE
NI A EITERI

(i) EREHFK(EERT
X))

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # fX £

205



206

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING R%ER#E K

(i) the exercise of any option scheme or
similar arrangement for the time being
adopted for the grant or issue to officers
and/or employees of the Company and/
or any of its subsidiaries of shares or
rights to acquire shares of the Company;
and

(iii) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement
providing for the allotment of shares in
lieu of the whole or part of a dividend
on shares of the Company in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company;

shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue at the date of the passing
of this resolution, and the said approval shall
be limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the passing
of this resolution until whichever is the earlier
of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company;

(i) the revocation or variation of the
authority given under this resolution by
ordinary resolution of the shareholders in
general meeting; and

(iii) the expiration of the period within which
the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the Bye-laws of
the Company or the laws of Bermuda to
be held.”;

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares in
the Company open for a period fixed by the
Directors to holders of shares of the Company
whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on a fixed record
date in proportion to their then holdings of
such shares (subject to such exclusions or
other arrangements as the Directors may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or having regards to
any restrictions or obligations under the laws
of, or the requirements of any recognised
body or any stock exchange, in any territory
outside Hong Kong).".
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“THAT conditional upon the passing of the
ordinary resolutions no. 5A and 5B set out above,
the general mandate granted to the Directors
pursuant to resolution no. 5B be and is hereby
extended by the addition thereto of an amount
representing the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital repurchased by the Company
under the authority granted in resolution no. 5A,
provided that such amount shall not exceed 10%
of the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue at the date of the
passing of this resolution.”.

“THAT:

subject to and conditional upon the granting by the
Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited of the listing of and permission to deal in the
shares which may be issued pursuant to the exercise
of option to be granted under the refreshed scheme
mandate limit (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"”) under
the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 10 October 2005, which entitles the Directors to
grant options after the listing of Shares on the Stock
Exchange, in the manner as set out in paragraph (a) of
this resolution,

(a)

the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit of
up to 10 per cent. of the shares in issue as at the
date of passing of this resolution be and is hereby
approved; and

the Directors be and are hereby authorized to
do all such acts and things and execute all such
documents, including under seal where applicable,
as they consider necessary or expedient to give
effect to the foregoing arrangement.”

To transact any other business.

By Order of the Board

Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited
Ng Yan Kwong

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 30 June 2011
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Notes:

ANNU

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend and
vote at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on
Monday, 29 August 2011, the Register of Members of the Company
will be closed from Wednesday, 24 August 2011 to Monday, 29
August 2011, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. In order for a shareholder to be eligible
to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Shares Registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited,
at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 23 August 2011.

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend, the Register of Members of the Company
will be closed from Wednesday, 28 September 2011 to Friday, 30
September 2011, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend (subject to shareholders’ approval at the Annual General
Meeting), all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 27
September 2011.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to
appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote on his/her behalf. A
proxy need not be a member of the Company. If more than one proxy
is so appointed, the appointment shall specify the number and class
of shares in respect of which each such proxy is so appointed.

To be valid, a form of proxy and the power of attorney or other
authority, if any, under which it is signed, or a notarially certified
copy of such power of attorney or authority, must be lodged with
the Company's share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at
26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not less than
48 hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting.

An explanatory statement containing further details regarding
ordinary resolution No. 5 above will be sent to shareholders shortly
together with the 2011 Annual Report.
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